Democratic Services
Riverside, Temple Street, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1LA
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard

Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 395090 Date: 18 February 2016
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk E-mail:  Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
To: All Members of the Pension Board

Howard Pearce
Gaynor Fisher
Steve Harman
Tom Renhard
David Yorath

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Dear Member

Pension Board: Thursday, 25th February, 2016

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Pension Board, to be held on Thursday, 25th
February, 2016 at 10.30 am in the Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath.

The agenda is set out overleaf.

Yours sincerely

Sean O'Neill
for Chief Executive

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author
whose details are listed at the end of each report.

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper




NOTES:

Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Sean O'Neill who is
available by telephoning Bath 01225 395090 or by calling at the Riverside Offices
Keynsham (during normal office hours).

Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the
meeting has power to do. They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a
group. Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)

The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as above.

Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for
the next meeting. In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as
above.

Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:-

Public Access points - Riverside - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, Hollies - Midsomer
Norton, and Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms.

Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all
or part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast,
please make yourself known to the camera operators.

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or
guardians before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to
the camera operator

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be
available for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound
recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the
meeting.



6. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM
NUMBER.

7. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are
sign-posted.

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Pension Board - Thursday, 25th February, 2016
at 10.30 am in the Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath

AGENDA

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC

ITEMS FROM MEMBERS

MINUTES: 5 NOVEMBER 2015 (Pages 7 - 16)

CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE

The Chairman will give a verbal update.

MINUTES OF AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 11TH DECEMBER 2015 AND
3RD FEBRUARY 2016 (Pages 17 - 38)

MINUTES OF AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE INVESTMENT PANEL 18TH
NOVEMBER 2015 (Pages 39 - 44)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION FUND UPDATES AND DEVELOPMENTS (Pages
45 - 48)

BENCHMARKING UPDATE (Pages 49 - 80)

COMPLIANCE REPORT (Pages 81 - 106)

RISK REGISTER AND INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE (Pages 107 - 136)



15. BREACHES PROCEDURE (Pages 137 - 148)

16. PENSION BOARD BUDGET (Pages 149 - 152)

17.  TRAINING UPDATE (Pages 153 - 168)

18. WORKPLAN UPDATE (Pages 169 - 176)

19. CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW OF MEETING

The Chairman will give a verbal review of the meeting.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on
01225 395090.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

PENSION BOARD

Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Present:- Howard Pearce (Chair), Gaynor Fisher (Employer Representative), Steve
Harman (Employer Representative), Tom Renhard (Member Representative) and David
Yorath (Member Representative)

Also in attendance: Andrew Pate (Strategic Director, Resources), Tony Bartlett (Head of
Business, Finance and Pensions), Jeff Wring (Head of Audit West) and Andy Cox (Audit
Manager)

16

17

18

19

20

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Democratic Services Officer read out the procedure.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were none.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

The Chair thanked officers for the excellent training session on LGPS benefits
administration that had taken place before the meeting. Members had noted the

many changes taking effect on 1% April 2016 that would impact on pension funds.
These included:

negative CPI

the State Second Pension
National Insurance changes
tax changes

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions invited Members to let officers know if
they felt a need for more information on specific issues. This could be provided via a
phone call or a training session, as appropriate. Members said that they would be
helped by more information on the valuation process and by looking at key
comparative data for other LGPS funds. The Head of Business, Finance and
Pensions said that comparative information would need to put in context by taking
into account demographic and longevity data for each area.

RESOLVED it was agreed that the 2016 valuation and comparative benchmarking of
the fund should be part of future training and future pension board work respectively.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were none.

Pension Board- Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Page 7



21

22

ITEMS FROM MEMBERS

A Member questioned the appropriateness of some of the paperwork on the agenda.
He said that as he understood it, the role of the Board was to focus on governance,
compliance and risk. He therefore wondered why, for example, it was necessary for
the Avon Pension Fund’s latest financial statements and that had already been
approved by the Pension Fund Committee, to be copied with the agenda. The
agenda papers of the Committee were already easily accessible to Members, and he
wondered what the Board was supposed to do with this agenda item and how it
could add value. Another Member said that information presented to the Board
needed to be contextualised.

The Chair said that the Board had only just been established and was still in the
process of establishing a mode of operation, it had to keep its statutory duties in
clear view at all times. These were to secure compliance with the LGPS regulations
and the requirements of the Pensions Regulator and ensure efficient and effective
governance and administration of the scheme. To do that it was vital that Members
should read and understood the papers that had gone to the Pensions Committee in
order to perform their role, but the Board would not necessarily need to receive
exactly the same papers. The Board should be examining the basis of how decisions
were taken by the Pensions Committee and their implementation.

The Member who had raised this issue suggested that the Board should be
examining whether the Committee was doing what it was supposed to be doing, or
whether there were any gaps. The Chair agreed and, said that in future the Board
should assure itself, for example, whether the Report and Accounts of the Avon
Pension Fund had been prepared in accordance with LGPS regulations and CIPFA
LGPS accounting guidance.

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions said the Fund’s annual report
contained important information about governance, and drew attention to the section
on fund governance beginning on page 134 of the agenda. This should be useful
background information for Members and it was important that Members were aware
that it existed.

RESOLVED that future Board agendas will enable Members to raise issues on the
content and format of meeting papers.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting of 30 July 2015 were approved subject to the following
amendment:

page 4, item 14, last paragraph: “monitor compliance” should be “monitor and
secure compliance”

The Chair requested an update on the progress of appointing the two additional
Members of the Board (Minute 8). The Head of Audit \West reported that a potential
candidate for the additional employer representative had been identified, and that the
recruitment process for the remaining employee representative would close in the

Pension Board- Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Page 8



23

24

first week of December. He confirmed that he Board should be up to full strength by
the time of the next meeting.

The Chair invited Members to give feedback on their experience of the fund training
(Minute 13) so far and members indicated it was useful.

AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE MINUTES

The Board considered the Minutes of the Avon Pension Fund Committee meeting of
25™ September 2015.

A Member asked about Agenda ltem 29 and the Committee’s unwillingness to
approve a collective investment vehicle in principle. The Head of Business, Finance
and Pensions said this arose from a lack of clear guidance from the Government.
There had been speeches and references in the Budget, but nothing definite.
However, the Committee had understood that the Government intended to compel
funds to adopt collective investment procedures if they did not do so voluntarily.
Under these circumstances the Committee had not rejected the principle, but had
adopted a cautious approach and had authorised continuing work with the other
Funds on proposals for a collective investment vehicle.

A Member noted the information in agenda item 27 to overpayments of contributions
by Bristol City Council and asked what arrangements had been put in place to
prevent a recurrence. The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions said he did not
know off hand whether the money had been repayed; it was up to Bristol City
Council to decide whether they wanted a repayment, or for the fund to treat the
overpayment as a prepayment of contributions. The issue arose because before the
last valuation calculating employer contributions had been simple: they were always
6% of pay. After the valuation employers had to contribute a lump sum towards
deficit reduction, and there was no longer a simple method of calculating
contributions. The Chair said that the overpayment was a systemic failure by Bristol
City Council and, to some extent, the Fund’s processes. Whilst it occurred before the
establishment of the Pension Board it would provide a good example to think about
in terms of the Breaches Policy and future reporting to the Pensions Regulator.

No issues were raised on the minutes of the Investment Panel meeting of 11"
September.

RESOLVED to note the minutes of the most recent meetings of the Avon Pension
Fund Committee and Investment Panel.

LGPS DEVELOPMENTS AND UPDATES
The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions presented the report.

He said that the Government was encouraging LGPS funds to merge or pool their
assets in order to reduce fees. In his budget speech the Chancellor indicated the
direction of travel that he wanted, and set out some suggested criteria for the size of
funds. The Chancellor wanted there to be six very large pooled funds. If funds did
not pool investments voluntarily, there would be backstop legislation to force them to
do so. The London Pensions Fund had established a partnership with the Lancashire

3

Pension Board- Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Page 9



25

County Fund. Several LGPS funds in the South West, including the Avon Fund, had
established a joint project to examine options for pooled investment. Options were
being subjected to cost-benefit analysis. A pooled fund would not be created
overnight; there were, for example, issues relating the pooling of liquid and illiquid
funds. The Funds also had different strategies and funding levels. A Government
statement is expected in November setting out criteria and a timetable, to which
Funds will have to respond. Any proposed pooling arrangements would have to be
approved by the individual governing bodies of each Fund.

A Member asked whether only investments would be merged or whether
administration would be merged as well. The Head of Business, Finance and
Pensions replied that it seemed likely that when a substantial portion of investments
had been merged, there would questions raised about merging administration. The
Government had in fact looked at the possibility of merging all Funds into one in
2008. His expectation was that pooling investments would be a sufficient challenge
for the next four—five years and that Government would not wish to change too much
all at once.

The Chair reminded the Board that it should keep its terms of reference constantly in
mind. There were no LGPS or TPR compliance issues involved in the pooling of
Funds, because currently there were no specific regulations or legislation about it,
but the Board did have interest in it because of its duty to ensure effective and
efficient governance. The Board would be assisted in this by comparing how other
funds were implementing pooling arrangements. He suggested that one positive
action the Board could take would be to ask “what would governance look like in the
future?” if there was a full pooling of assets.

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions said that a move towards greater
integration between Funds would raise governance issues about the role of the
Council, the Committee and officers in relation to delegations.

A Member suggested that it was possible that participation in pooling arrangements
might increase investment risks for the Avon Fund.

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions commented on a table he had
distributed, which summarised other changes affecting the LGPS. This is attached
as Appendix 1. The Chair said that the presentation of this information in tabular
form was extremely helpful and that he would welcome the presentation of
appropriate information in this format at future meetings.

RESOLVED to note the report and latest developments and that Members should
receive training about governance so that they had a clear understanding of the roles
of the Council, the Committee, the Panel and the Board.

TRAINING PLAN UPDATE

The Head of Audit West introduced the report. He drew attention to Appendix 1,
which tabulated the knowledge and skills responsibilities under the Pensions
Regulator’'s Code of Practice no 14. He said that training comprised several aspects.
There was formal training provided by Pensions officers to Members, the second
session of which had taken place immediately before today’s meeting. Secondly,

Pension Board- Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Page 10



26

27

there was the possibility of joint events involving members of the Pension Boards of
other Funds, but he suggested these would be more effective if these took place
later after the initial period of getting the Boards up and running. Thirdly there was
Members’ individual learning; he drew attention to the competency self-assessment
matrix in Appendix 2.

Members gave updates on their attendance at LGE Pensions Fundamental Course
training events. No Member had yet completed the tPR e-learning trustee toolkit. The
Chair said it would be good if they could do so by 31% March, so that it could be
reported in the Board’s first Annual Report.

Members discussed the self-assessment matrix. The Head of Audit West suggested
that Members did not complete and return it until they had finished the Pensions
Fundamental Course. He would then discuss with the Chair how Members’ training
records could be update.

RESOLVED to note the proposals to develop a training plan and for members to
complete the tPR e-training by 315 March.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST POLICY

The Chair said that he had requested that this item be put on the agenda because
the Pensions Regulator’s supervision of Local Pensions Boards would include
checking whether they had a conflicts of interest policy and whether declarations of
interest had been made as required.

The Head of Audit West presented the report. He said that further work had been
done since the last meeting on whether the Board should have its own code of
conduct and conflict of interest policy distinct from that of the Council. It was now
proposed that it should, and the draft policy was given in Appendix 1 to the report. In
response to a question from a Member, he said that the policy, if agreed, would
come into effect from the end of the year.

RESOLVED to agree the policy at Appendix 1.
REGULATORY BREACHES POLICY

The Head of Audit West presented the report. He explained that there was a legal
requirement on Local Pension Board Members (as well as Pension Fund Committee
Members, officers, employers and advisers) to report material breaches of relevant
laws and regulations to the Pensions Regulator. The Pensions Regulator Code of
Practice no 14 advised that pension funds should have a procedure in place to
identify and assess breaches.

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions commented on the draft policy and
clarified its context. He drew attention to the fact that the Board was being invited to
recommend the policy to the Committee for adoption.

Members and officers discussed the draft policy. It was felt that before the policy
could be recommended it needed further work on a number of aspects, including the

Pension Board- Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Page 11



28

level of detail, the definition of materiality and the specific duties of Members of the
Pension Board.

The Chair noted that other Pension Funds designate the Monitoring Officer rather
than the Section 151 Officer as the responsible officer for recording and reporting
breaches. The Strategic Director of Resources responded that in the case of the
Avon Pension Fund the independent Section 151 Officer has responsibility for the
day-to-day supervision of the Fund, which would be of great assistance to him in
discharging the role of responsible officer for recording and reporting breaches.

RESOLVED that the policy should be revised and come to the Board’s next meeting.
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Chair said that as agreed in previous discussion the Board should seek to
review the Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts earlier in future years.

The Head of Audit West presented the report.

The Head of Finance, Business and Pensions commented on the External Audit
Governance and Annual Report.

The Head of Audit West and the Audit Manager commented on the Internal Audit
Report.

There was a discussion between Members and officers.

The Chair reiterated that the focus of the Board was on compliance with regulations
and requirements. How would the Board get assurance that accounts had been
prepared in accordance with regulations and CIPFA guidance? The Head of
Business, Finance and Pensions responded that there were statutory requirements
for reporting and rules about the reporting of assets and liabilities; breaches would
be picked up by the external auditors.

The Strategic Director of Resources pointed out that there was now a separate
external audit report for the Avon Pension Fund, and that following a
recommendation from the external auditor the Committee had decided that the Fund
would separate its bank account and other financial arrangements from the
Council’s. This was a good instance of the Fund improving its governance following
advice, and established a good starting point for the work of the Board.

A member asked about the Governance Compliant statement in respect of the
Committee composition. The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions referred to
the changes in the composition of the Committee over the past ten years, including
the appointment of Independent Members, who came from other areas and were
entirely independent of the Fund. He thought the Committee now had a very broad
representation of the Fund’s members in the public sector. In the past few years,
however, public sector functions had increasingly been outsourced to the private
sector, as for example in the case of academies. Looking forward, there would an
increasing number of members in organisations performing outsourced functions and
some form of democratic means of representing them would have to be developed.

Pension Board- Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Page 12



29

The Chair indicated the Pension Board would review the Fund’s governance
arrangements in due course.

A Member asked how the Investment Panel monitored transaction costs. The Head
of Business, Finance and Pensions that responded that changes to CIPFA rules had
revealed that many internal fees had not been disclosed in previous accounting
statements. He said that there was difficulty in measuring transaction costs in pooled
funds because the costs were shared; investment managers would have to do more
analysis to ensure that they were fully measured, so it was not clear that there would
be cost savings from the pooling of funds.

The Chair asked for the Board to be advised on the separation of the BANES and
Avon fund accounting, and for clarification that the fund’s next accounts would be
prepared and audited against the CIPFA LGPS accounting disclosure checklist.

Responding to comments from Members, the Strategic Director of Resources said
that it was not clear at present whether the audit programme of the Fund properly
reflected the statutory role of the Board. This would only become clear over time.

RESOLVED to note the report and issues raised with regard to the future work plan
of the Board.

ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions presented the report. He said that the
strategy had been introduced in the context of the increasing complexity of
regulations and the number of employers in the Fund. The Fund now had the power
to charge employers for additional costs they imposed by poor administration or
breach of regulations. The Administration Strategy was underpinned by an IT
Strategy aimed at providing efficient and integrated digital services to employers and
members. Responding to a question from a Member, he said that the Fund’s officers
offered employers staff training and encouraged Pensions staff to progress in their
professional development. The Strategic Director referred to the section on Training
and Development (agenda page 224) and suggested that this demonstrated a very
proactive approach to training.

A Member commented that the Administration Strategy was a very comprehensive
document.

The Chair said that the Board should receive a progress report on the Administration
Strategy annually, including an indication of areas where there were problems, and
information about the costs and benefits of the strategy.

RESOLVED to note the report and the issues raised with regard to the Board’s
future workplan.

Pension Board- Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Page 13



30

31

32

AVON PENSION FUND WORK PLANS

The Head of Audit West presented the report. He said that this item had been
included to provide to show the Board what the Fund was doing in order to provide a
context.

RESOLVED to note the workplans and issues raised for the future work of the
Board.

PENSION BOARD WORK PLAN

The Head of Audit West presented the report. He said that the draft plan in Appendix
1 was an attempt to set out the work of the Board for the next six months to one
year.

The Chair said that it was important that the Board did not attempt to duplicate the
work of the Committee. The Board should focus on the areas where it would add
value. He hoped the Committee would provide feedback about whether the Board
was adding value. The workplan would be a rolling programme, so should appear on
each agenda.

RESOLVED to note the report and the work plan outlined in Appendix A.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

25" February 2016.

The meeting ended at 4.28 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

Pension Board- Thursday, 5th November, 2015

Page 14



ssaoo0.d uonenjepn 9102

‘suoljenjeA jeluuaia} 91L0¢

oy

lo 0] SUOljepuaWWooal O} paxul] 8s1019X Alojepuew e o} Joud Gl0c Jeog AIOSIA
u”_WMwM_BHmSN.#OWD Buunp SOA GL0Z/0L/LE G10zZ aie| Bunp sajep) pue puelbug | asiolaxa Buppewyousaq pieod mEm.cwM
vwhmv_mcoo oq 0} wmc_v.c_n_ ul spun} Sd97 ||e jo sduewlouad pund SdO1
: T 3y} YJewyouaq 0} 8sI01axa |euoljeu e
siahojdwa anjep 1sag
M 1084J€ ||IM SIY} MOy JN0 }8s 0} ale 57100
@_tocw pajoadxa sI uoljeyNsuod JapiQ uonoalip
@ pue Jsjjew siy} uo pajalq pajeme €102 120 Ul Juswuianob | Jajsuel) yels pue anjep 9710d
= Bulaq Ajpuaiind si JS)SIUIN |e20] Buipnjoxa sawayos 10}0ag dlgnd | }sag uo uole}NsSu0)
Q wouy Buloinosno uo |ea( Jie 1o}
=) aouepinb paysiignd juswuianob ay |
= sawayos uoisuad soljsiels
> Aaning swayog
V/N SOA G102/01/0€ |euonednooo Agq paJanod ale N ul uorsuad uonednoo |[euoneN
soakojdwa yoiym 03 Juaixa ayj ashAjeuy : H O JO 32O
GLoc
1 @9110e1d JO0 9p0D | ASAINS uoielSIUIWpPE loje|nbay
VIN SOA §10¢/60/20 Bunuawajdwi yum aiem saiioyjne pue asueulanob suoisuad ay|
Buuslsiuiwpy alaym HYdl wiopul o] 92IAISS 21|gnd Y
w3 0} uononpal S90UBMO o
Jusweled ybno.yy souemojje me_ﬁ&_._rw:m oomho%& OUINH 0} mm__w_mm;o g
passasolid Buiaq Ajjuaiino V/N A Ainseail] NH>
Jano Bululesa siaquiaw 10} 8oUEMO||B 1ebpng
lllg @oueul 0} }o8(qng
|[enuue pajol}sal JO UOIONPOIU| Jawwng pue yolep
Jalal xe} suoisuad
126pnq 1xau Jal|al Xe} 10} pajeal) aq p|noys uo uol}e}nNsu0d
a10jaq payoadxa asuodsal oN SOA §102/6/0¢ sbBuines uoisuad moy uo smain }ob 0] B :9ABS 0} 9AJUdDUI Ainseai] W H
ay} buluayibuaing
uoneynsuod Jad se Ajjeoiseg ‘Sjusuwihed
: : uxa Buluiwisap Joy Juswabuelre de)
SL0Z/60/9L PONSSI UONENNSUOD SOA G102/80/.2 | _u,o sadAy ||e 0} deo ayy Aldde < |  juswAed }ix3 10}08S Ainseal] N H
000°'G63 03} JuswAholdwa Buines) 2l|gnd & uo uoljeynsuo)
0} asuodsay Ainseal| AH
s|enpiAlpul 0} 9|ge|ieAe sjuawAed
}IX® JO SWLO} ||e JO }S09 [ejo} 8y} ded e
dn mojjo4 Ssuodsal oied uonduosa(g 108lgng panjoAu| Apog
4dv JUEAS|ISY s .

uoleJISIuIWLPY SWayog Joaye 0] pajoadxs sanss| pue SASAING / SUOIIEYNSUOY) Jusdal JO ISIT




Page 16

pajoeluod siabeuew (11 a1d4un) eanoalg
punyj ||e pue aaRIWwWo9 SOA ,10Z/1L0/€0 SJUBWISOAUI SO U0 Joedwi s) | sjuswiniisu| jeloueul suoisuad vo
0] puas aq ||Im poday ul s}axie ayL
pJeog
AiosInpy awayos 0} papiwgns GgLoc/oL/ch
9( 0] SUOIIEPUBWIWIOIDY

siakojdwg
awayog wolj paysenbal smaip

d¥al wawsainal
UIESH ||l Jo Mainay

9911IWWOD gns

uoieLSIUIWLPY SWaYIS 109)e 0] pajoadxa sanss| pue SASAING / SUOIBYNSUOD JUS3I JO 1SIT

pleog awayosg



Agenda Item 9

Bath and North East Somerset Council

AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held
Friday, 11th December, 2015, 2.00 pm

Bath and North East Somerset Councillors: David Veale (Chair), Christopher Pearce
(Vice-Chair), Paul Myers, Cherry Beath and Shaun McGall

Co-opted Voting Members: Councillor Steve Pearce (Bristol City Council), Councillor
Mary Blatchford (North Somerset Council), Councillor Mike Drew (South Gloucestershire
Council), William Liew (HFE Employers), Richard Orton (Trade Unions), Ann Berresford
(Independent Member) and Shirley Marsh (Independent Member)
Co-opted Non-voting Members:
Advisors: Tony Earnshaw (Independent Advisor) and Steve Turner (Mercer)
Also in attendance: Tony Bartlett (Head of Business, Finance and Pensions), Liz
Woodyard (Investments Manager), Matt Betts (Assistant Investments Manager), Geoff
Cleak (Pensions Benefits Manager) and Martin Phillips (Finance & Systems Manager
(Pensions))
38 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Democratic Services Officer read out the procedure.
39 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies were received from Cheryl Kirby, Steve Paines and Wendy Weston.
40 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none.
41 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

There was none.

42 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS

There were none.
43 ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS

There were none.

Page 1
Page 17



44

45

MINUTES: 25 SEPTEMBER 2015

A Member drew attention to a formatting problem at the bottom of page 4 of the
minutes resulting in ‘RESOLVED’ and the list of items resolved being split between
pages.

The minutes were otherwise approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.
LGPS POOLING OF INVESTMENTS - UPDATE

The Investment Manager presented the report.

Pooling of Investments

She drew attention to the DCLG’s criteria and guidance document, which was
attached as Appendix 4 to the report (agenda page 71). The key criteria were listed
in paragraph 4.4 of the covering report. She drew attention to the criteria that pooling
proposals must demonstrate reduced costs with no deterioration in investment
performance, and that pools should improve the capacity to invest in infrastructure.

There were very tight deadlines for the next stages of the process as detailed in
paragraph 4.4(b) of the covering report. An outline proposal has to be submitted by
19 February next year and a detailed proposal by 15 July 2016. The Government will
examine whether initial pooling proposals are likely to meet their objectives and, if
necessary, will have “conversations” with funds.

The SW group of funds is the most advanced on progress to pooling. They had
commenced a joint project in August 2015 following the Chancellor's announcement
in July. The SW group is looking for additional partners, including funds outside the
Southwest, and has changed its name to Project Brunel. Oxfordshire Pension Fund
had recently decided to join the group. It is expected that the £25bn pooled
investment target will be achieved.

She suggested that it was important that the Government had set a baseline for cost
savings and that this recognised that significant savings had already been achieved
through framework agreements and changes to procurement, for example.

A meeting had been arranged in January 2016 for the Chairs and Vice-Chairs and
Section 151 Officers of all the funds at which the business case would be discussed.
All the relevant Councils/funds would have to decide on whether to accept the
pooling proposal in principle by 5 February. This would leave two weeks for any
remaining details to be settled before the 19 February deadline. Because of this
timescale it was proposed that the power to approve any proposals or expenditure
relating to the project be delegated to a working party, with an opportunity for all
Members to comment.

The Committee then debated a number of issues including:

- the appropriateness or not of a geographical grouping

- ability to invest in local infrastructure

- the apparent lack of joined-up thinking in Government that could lead to
projected costs savings from pooling being negated by MIFID II.

Page 18 Page 2



The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions responded that there was a history of
co-operation between the funds in the Southwest, which made it easy for them to
work together on pooling. Elsewhere large funds were establishing joint
arrangements with smaller funds in other areas, like the London fund working with
the Lancashire fund. In many cases geographical factors were not the main drivers.
The Investment Manager added that shared values were important, and this would
be made clear to potential new partners.

A Member said that having recently attended a recent LAPFF meeting, he was
aware that civil servants recognised the difficulties in the way of co-operation
because of differences between funds. He was not convinced that the Government
would be able to comply with its own timetable.

A Member said that the Avon Fund was efficiently administered by its local officers
and she was concerned that administration might be centralised.

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions said that as the pooling model
developed, there would have to be compromises because of the differences between
funds. They had different investment managers and different governance
arrangements, for example. The work would really begin after the detailed proposal
is submitted next July. There would be a long transition period. However, the Fund’s
investment strategy would continue to be driven by the Committee in the interests of
its members.

A Member said that she would regret any loss of local control over the Fund and that
she would not wish to see investments being made to the detriment of the Fund’s
members. The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions responded that strategy
and policy would remain with the Committee. For operational reasons powers would
have to be delegated to managing the pool, but there would be a recall process if the
Committee felt that the pool was not working effectively.

The following points were raised by members:

¢ the savings accruing to the Avon Pension Fund, the largest in the pool, would
be less than those of the other funds. A request was made to officers to
produce an assessment of the savings that could be expected for the Avon
Fund

e votes on pool investment decisions should be weighted in accordance with
the number of members in each fund, so that smaller funds did not have
undue influence

The Investment Manager responded to these points. She agreed that further work
needed to be done on potential savings; this was difficult because investment costs
changed over time as the strategy evolves. However, it would be reasonable to
assume the larger funds would save less as they may already benefit from lower fee
rates; the project had been set up on the basis of equality across funds, hence one
vote for each fund in a pool; equally the fund would not want to be disadvantaged by
a large fund joining a pool and acquiring a dominant influence over the pooling
decisions.

Page 19 Page 3



There was then a debate about the circulation of information outside the meeting
agenda, investing in infrastructure, delegation to a working party and proposed
governance for the pooled body.

Members were not supportive of a working party, so the Investments Manager
replied that officers would be happy to arrange a special meeting, but it could only
take place after the report was ready and long enough before the deadline for
submission to Government for any details to be finalised. Information had been
circulated outside the meeting agenda as not all documents were available at the
time the Committee papers were published. The document had been sent to
Members so that they would have the information before the meeting. Things were
happening fast and the pace of developments did not always fit well with the
Committee’s meeting schedule and regular processes.

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions explained that the detailed proposal to
be submitted in July would have to be approved by the full council of each
administering authority and by the Environment Agency. The submission in February
would simply state that the pool would have a governance structure which could take
one of various forms. Defining the structure would be part of the follow-on work, in
which the Committee would be fully involved. The time frame was so tight that it was
important that officers continued to work on the draft proposals. It was not certain
that all the other funds in the Southwest would ultimately support pooling
arrangements, though at present they seemed to be so inclined. A special
Committee meeting would be arranged if Members wished to have one.

A Member objected to the Government doing things before legislation had been
passed giving them the power to do them. When a Bill was eventually introduced, it
might be amended in its passage through Parliament, and there might be conflict
between new regulations and existing legal rules about the fiduciary duties of
trustees, particularly in relation to infrastructure investment. How will it be decided
whether such investment is in the interest of the members of the Fund? He felt that
the Government knew in broad outline what it wished to achieve, but lacked a clear
sense of the powers it had, or would need to have, to achieve it. What the
Government wanted to do might not be in the interest of the members of the Fund.
Another Member asked how a Government minister would be qualified to take
decisions about which infrastructure projects to invest in.

The Head of Business, Finance said that in the draft Regulations the Treasury was
given powers to intervene if funds did not co-operate; it was better for funds to
submit their own proposals that they believe will be in the best interests of their
members voluntarily rather than have something imposed on them by government.

A Member said that she was concerned about whether the Fund was actually
empowered to do things in response to a Government initiative. As she saw it, the
role of the Committee was to ensure that the assets of the Fund were managed
effectively, and Members believed they were doing that. However, because of this
Government initiative the Committee had agreed to spend £25,000 of members’
money on a project on pooling, without knowing the amount, or the Fund’s share, of
any costs savings that were likely to be achieved. She wanted assurance that the
Committee was legally empowered to do this; perhaps the Council should be paying
for this work. The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions replied that he had
consulted a Council lawyer and had been advised that the Council had delegated to
the Committee the power to appoint investment managers. The Committee had

Page 20 Page 4



delegated that power to another body, though it was not entirely clear that it had the
power to sub-delegate powers delegated to it by the Council. That is why any new
arrangements would have to be approved by the Council. In response to a question
from a Member, he explained that the proposal put to Council would be in the form of
a recommendation from the Committee.

A Member said that she feared that responsibilities were being blurred, so it would
be hard to identify who was to blame if anything went wrong. The Head of Business,
Finance and Pensions that the new governance structure was emerging very slowly;
the Southwest group had simply got on with work on this project on the basis that if
they did not, something was likely to be imposed by Government. The Investment
Manager said that what ultimately determined the Fund’s performance were the
Funding Strategy and the Investment Strategy, which would remain the responsibility
of the Committee; she recalled that a Government document had stated that asset
allocation would remain the responsibility of local funds.

A Member said that it was important that the Committee should meet in the Spring,
at a stage when it could still influence outcomes, rather than being presented with a
fait accompli in the Summer.

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions said that the Chair, the section 151
Officer and he would be attending a Project Brunel meeting in January at which they
would report the Committee’s views and concerns.

The Chair assured the Committee that the officers and he recognised the
seriousness of this issue. The Government was setting a challenging timetable, just
as they were in relation to local devolution. He was confident that officers would
continue to act in the interest of the Fund.

Consultation on LGPS investment Regulations

The Investment Manager reported that on 25 November DCLG had launched a
consultation on revoking and replacing the current LGPS Regulations. New
Regulations were required to facilitate the pooling of assets. Responses were
required by 19 February 2016, the same date as the deadline for initial pooling
proposals. The Regulations were based on a prudential framework. The requirement
for a Statement of Investment Principles would be replaced by a requirement for a
Statement of Investment Strategy, which would have to include the fund’s approach
to pooling assets. There would no longer be a requirement for short-term
performance monitoring; the focus would be on the longer term. There will be powers
allowing the Secretary of State to intervene. The consultation document would be
circulated to Members by email, and they were invited to let the Investment Manager
have their comments.

RESOLVED:
1. To note the information in the report.

2. That an emergency meeting of the Committee will be held in early February at
which a report and recommendations on pooling proposals will be presented.

Page 21 Page 5



46

47

MIFID Il - IMPLICATIONS FOR LGPS FUNDS
The Investment Manager presented the report.

She said that the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MIFID Il) is an EU
Directive, which was due to come into force from 1 January 2017. This directive
classifies LGPS funds as retail not professional clients. An announcement that its
implementation would be delayed until 2018 is anticipated. This would allow further
time for its impact to be assessed. Investment managers would have to monitor
compliance and would need to set up complex systems to do this. There was a risk
was that some managers might not want to manage retail funds. In addition, MIFID
Il might make pooling of assets and investment in infrastructure more difficult for
LGPS funds.

A Member asked whether it was possible to make a representation asking for LGPS
schemes to be exempted from this Directive, which did not apply to private pension
schemes. She also noted the statement in the report that LGPS funds were not
separate entities from the local authorities and that this may be reviewed. The
Investment Manager replied that there was discussions about the possibility of
separating LGPS funds from their administering authorities, and that the implications
of this Directive might feed into that. The LGPS Scheme Advisory Board was
supposed to be doing work on this, but it was on hold because of delays in
appointments to the Board. The LGA was in discussions about an exemption for
LGPS funds with the FCA (responsible for MIFID Il in UK).

A Member asked whether any work was being done in relation to the Avon Fund
opting for professional status. The Investment Manager said this was not possible
until the Government clarified the criteria. The fund was in discussions with
managers. Most of the Fund’s managers probably would regard us as a professional
investor, but evidence of that would have to be presented. It was hoped that
discussions between Government and the LGA would result in a relatively
straightforward process for LGPS funds to opt for professional status.

RESOLVED to note the potential impact of MIFID Il on the Fund and the actions
being taken to manage the risk to the Fund’s investment portfolio.

INTERIM VALUATION AND 2016 VALUATION PROCESS

The Investment Manager presented the report, which summarised the information
given to the Committee at the workshop in October. She reminded Members that
there had been a great deal of discussion at the workshop about the appropriate
discount rate to use in the next valuation. The actuary was concerned that if gilt
yields were again used to calculate this, too much prudence would be built into the
funding strategy, resulting in higher than necessary contributions from employers.
However, whatever the base used to calculate the discount rate, the same level of
prudence would be sought as at the last valuation. Because this would the first
experience of a valuation for many Members of the Committee, it was proposed that
there should be a workshop in March to explain the principles of the Funding
Strategy Statement (FSS). A draft FSS would be put before the Committee at the
June meeting and would then be sent to employers for consultation. The final FSS
would be approved by the Committee at the September meeting.

Page 22 Page 6



48

In reply to a question from a Member, the Investment Management clarified that
calculation of the discount rate by the real expected asset return above the CPI
baseline assumption was the current recommendation from the actuary, and might
change in accordance with the circumstances prevailing at the time of the valuation.

RESOLVED to note the information set out in the report including the timetable for
the 2016 valuation.

REPORT ON INVESTMENT PANEL ACTIVITY
The Assistant Investments Manager presented the report.

Liability Management

He reminded Members that the aim was to put a framework in place to manage the
mismatch between the changes in the value of assets and liabilities over time, thus
allowing the Fund to minimise funding level volatility and stabilise employer
contribution rates more effectively. In June the Committee had requested the Panel
reviewed the range of investment options available to more effectively manage
liability risks, how they could be implemented and the cost. The Panel had taken two
decisions as noted at 4.2 a) and 4.2 b). The interim step recommended in 4.2 a)
would be beneficial irrespective of whether the full proposal was eventually
implemented, and would not reduce the expected return on assets.

Rebalancing policy

The policy of the Fund is to rebalance the portfolio back to the target allocations after
market movements cause allocations to vary by a certain amount. Rebalancing is
important because it ensures that the Fund is invested in accordance with strategic
asset allocations. It can also add value over time as it forces selling of relatively
expensive assets and the purchasing of relatively cheaper assets. The Committee
was invited to agree the recommended changes to the rebalancing policy as set out
in 4.3 a) of the report.

A Member expressed concern about the potential for overtrading. He was unable to
find information in the papers about how often illiquid assets would be rebalanced.
The Investments Manager referred to line 7 of the table on page 171 of the agenda.
Mr Turner said that he did not think overtrading would take place; he considered that
the proposed new policy would establish a much clearer framework for decision
making. The Member requested that the Investment Panel should monitor trading
frequency. Mr Turner suggested that the main issue would be ensuring that the Fund
was close to the target allocation of some asset classes, which depended on the
draw-down period and whether the manager had called on all the capital that the
Fund had committed. The Fund might also find that it was below a target allocation,
because the value of other assets had risen, in which case it would a question of
catching up, rather than rebalancing back.

The Investments Manager said that it was proposed that a workshop on the funding
strategy should be combined with a workshop on the concept of liability-driven
investment (LDI), after which Mercer would draft a framework to be considered by
the Panel before it came to Committee. The LDI strategy should be considered as
part of the valuation debate.

Page 23 Page 7



49

RESOLVED:

1. To agree the recommendation to increase the benchmark allocation and
allocation range to index-linked gilts as at paragraph 4.2 a) of the report, to
better match liabilities.

2. To note the decision by the Panel to prepare a framework to more effectively
use the investment assets to match the liabilities, as set out in paragraph 4.2
b) of the report.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE AND STRATEGY MONITORING REPORT

The Assistant Investments Manager presented the report. Over the quarter the
funding level had decreased by 4%, because the value of the assets had fallen and a
fall in the discount rate had increased the liabilities. Over the year since September
2014 the funding level had fallen from 83% to 72%, primarily because of the fall in
gilt yields increasing the value of the liabilities. These figures were based on the
2013 valuation level, so are different to those given in the interim valuation report.
The asset portfolio had underperformed the returns required by the Funding Strategy
over the year, but returns were in was in line with the Strategy over three years. He
invited the Committee to approve the revised Statement of Investment Principles
(Appendix 4 of the report). The minor changes in the revised Statement reflected
changes in the hedge funds and currency hedging mandates agreed by the
Committee.

Mr Turner commented on the Mercer investment report. He said that market
conditions had been difficult, with a general flight from risky assets, such as equities,
into more secure assets, such as gilts. This had caused the “double-whammy” of a
fall in the value of assets and an increase in the value of the liabilities. It was likely
that US interest rates would rise next week, the first increase in ten years. This
would the opposite of what most countries were doing. It was not clear how markets
would respond to the rise. It might make it difficult for the Fund’s managers to
continue to generate the level of outperformance they had achieved over the last 4-5
years. He drew attention the table of manager performance on agenda page 219.
The relative performance of Jupiter appeared good, but the asset class in which they
invested had fallen further than some others. Pyrford and Standard Life, despite their
negative returns in the quarter, were playing the role they were expected to in the
strategy. Mercer would introduce changes to this table to give a more informative
picture of performance.

In response to a question from a Member he said that in the buoyant equity markets
of the past view years it had been relatively to generate good returns. In the future,
managers like Pyrford, who had an unconstrained approach, would be increasingly
useful in navigating market volatility.

The Independent Investment Adviser suggested that the performance table was

misleading because Pyrford and Standard Life had relatively high cash-based
benchmarks. Mr Turner agreed this was the case.

Page 24 Page 8



50

A Member referred to the Government’s wish that funds should focus on returns in
the long term rather than the short time, and suggested that a lack of monitoring in
the short term might result in an unpleasant surprise in the long term. Mr Turner said
he agreed, but he thought the Government was trying to lessen the burden on
administering authorities by reducing the amount of detail they had to consider. The
Investment Manager said that the Government was worried that a focus on the short
term resulted in funds changing managers too frequently, resulting in higher costs.
Officers would continue to monitor managers quarterly in order to identify whether
there was a trend of poor performance.

A Member expressed concern about the use of bank accounts by terrorist
organisations. These accounts might be with a bank in which the Fund was invested,
giving rise to a reputational and investment risk to the Fund. He wanted assurance
that any banks in which the Fund had an investment were trying to prevent such use.
The US Treasury had a project on terrorist funding and on recruitment by terrorist
organisation, which would be reviewing internet and phone companies; there might
be reputational and investment risk to Fund here as well. The Head of Business,
Finance and Pensions replied that this was a real risk. He thought that the most the
Fund could do was to ask its investment managers how they addressed this risk
when considering investments. The Member responded that if the companies
managing internet infrastructure did not know who was using it, then they were not in
control of their business, which raised questions about whether it was appropriate to
invest in them. He acknowledged this was a difficult issue for an individual fund, but
felt it should be a concern for the wider investment community.

RESOLVED:
1. To note the information set out in the report.
2. To note the LAPFF Quarterly Engagement Report.

3. To agree the minor updates to the Statement of Investment Principles (SIP)
as explained in section 7 of the report and to approve the revised SIP in
Appendix 4.

BUDGET AND CASHFLOW MONITORING REPORT
The Finance and Systems Manager (Pensions) presented the report.

He said that the finance and administration reports had now been separated to
permit a clearer focus on each aspect.

Directly-controlled administration budget expenditure was forecast to be £50,000
below budget. This resulted from the delay in appointing staff to assist in the GMP
data reconciliation project, the delay in appointing a Custody & Finance Officer and
savings on communication costs. In the part of the budget not directly controlled,
expenditure was forecast to be under budget by £793,000, because investment
manager fees were below the level assumed when the budget was prepared. The
forecast net outflow of cash was £16m, compared with £24m forecast in the Service
Plan 2015/16. The reasons for this were set out in paragraph 5.2 of the report.

Page 25 Page 9



51

A Member asked whether the termination deficit payment referred to in 5.2 was
actually a cash inflow rather than an employer’s secure bond. The Investment
Manager confirmed that it was.

RESOLVED to note:

1. The administration and management expenditure incurred for 7 months to 31
October 2015.

2. The cash flow forecast to 31 March 2016.

PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND RISK
REGISTER

The Pensions Benefit Manager presented the report.

He said this was the first combined administration performance and Data
Improvement Plan report (the latter being introduced as a requirement following the
introduction of The Pension Regulator Code of Practice 14).

Performance

There were no significant issues to report. The Balanced Scorecard showed that the
key performance indicators were all within or near target. However, there was a
slight underperformance on the processing of early leaver cases, mainly due to the
increased workload in this area following the year-ending data cleansing exercise.
There had been a further increase overall in work cases during the reporting period,
attributable mainly to data reconciliation and a build-up of aggregation cases.

The Avon Pension Fund also administers the Firefighters Pension Schemes on
behalf of Avon Fire and Rescue Service. Recent developments relating to the Fire
scheme had significantly impacted on workload:

o the scheme had become a CARE-based scheme in April 2015; much staff
time was dedicated to implementing the new scheme and providing training
events

¢ Retained firefighters had been granted access to the scheme on an historic
basis. The Fund provided training to Fire Authority HR and Finance staff and
detailed calculations on admission of qualified members

e The Ombudsman had made a decision in the case of Milne v. GAD in favour
of Milne. As a result additional payments would have to be made to certain
Firefighter scheme leavers whose pensions had commenced between
December 2001 and August 2006. Payments in these cases would total about
£2.2m and would be made within the next two months. All payments will be
funded by Fire Authority

e DCLG had also advised that firefighters who had joined the old Firefighters
Pension Scheme before the age of 20 and had 30 years of service would be
allowed to take a contributions holiday from the age of 48 up to the age of 50.
Further details on this are awaited from DCLG

Page 26 Page 10



There was a requirement to issue an Annual Benefit Statement to all members by
31% August. Only 105 statements were not issued by this deadline, and this was
because nine employers failed to provide any year-end information at all. Penalties
charges would be imposed on employers who failed to meet the advertised criteria
for correct and timely supply of data at year end. It was vital now the LGPS scheme
was no longer a final salary scheme that current data was held for each member. He
drew attention to the table of TPR Improvement Plan Data in Appendix 8 on agenda
page 277; there was an increase in the number of leavers being identified. Additional
efforts would be made to engage with and train employers. Officers would visit
employers, because in general those employers attracting penalty charges were not
interested in attending training workshops or conferences. Continuing refinement of
the performance reports would allow problem employers to be targeted.

A Member asked whether it was possible to estimate the additional costs being
imposed by new Government requirements. The Head of Business, Finance and
Pensions replied that it was difficult to estimate the costs, but officers were spending
much more time on compliance and employer engagement. There were 220
employers in the scheme, which would rise to over 400 as schools became
Academies. Not all employers could be expected to understand their duties in
relation to pensions. There was no doubt that the Fund’s costs would increase. How
much they would increase would depend on how effective the Fund’s IT systems and
the policing of the governance arrangements within employers were.

A Member asked about the accuracy of data in relation to the CARE scheme, for
example about hours worked. The Pensions Benefit Manager replied that work
would have to begin in the near future to identify gaps in data held. There would
need to be reconciliation between contributions received and the CARE data
collected from employers. Employers did not really understand their obligations,
despite the large amount of information circulated and training offered. There were
issues relating to unpaid sickness entitlement, APC’s and AVCs that they did not
have to deal with before.

A Member said she was encouraged by the level of data completeness and accuracy
reported for the Fund, particularly in the light of a survey published that day, which
had revealed a shocking picture for pension funds in general. It was obvious that The
Pensions Regulator would need to address this, so the regulatory burden would not
get lighter.
RESOLVED to note:

1. The Summary Performance Report to 30 September 2015.

2. Performance Indicators and Customer Satisfaction feedback for 3 months to
30 September 2015.

3. Progress on the Data Improvement Plan.

4. The Risk Register.

Page 27 Page 11



52 INTERNAL DISPUTES RESOLUTION PROCEDURE

The Pensions Benefit Manager presented the report. He said that the revised
procedure reflected the new LGPS regulations and took into account guidance
received from The Pensions Regulator as set out in its Code of Practice 14. He
invited the Committee to approve the revised procedure.

A Member said that she thought two months before a response was sent was too
long. She also thought it was not clear who was involved at Stage 2. The Pensions
Benefit Manager replied that most cases would be dealt with by the employer, which
is Stage 1. At Stage 2 cases are dealt with by the Fund. The attached appendix to
the report outlines the responsibility at each stage of the process.

RESOLVED to approve the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure as outlined in
the report.

53  WORKPLANS
The Investments Manager presented the report. She reminded that Members’
attendance at training events was reported in the Annual Report and Accounts and
in the Annual Report to Council. Members had been invited to undergo training to
meet the requirements of the CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Toolkit within their first
year on the Committee.

RESOLVED to note the workplans and training programme for the relevant periods.

The meeting ended at 4.08 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 28 Page 12



Bath and North East Somerset Council

AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held
Wednesday, 3rd February, 2016, 3.00 pm

Bath and North East Somerset Councillors: David Veale (Chair), Christopher Pearce
(Vice-Chair), Paul Myers, Cherry Beath and Shaun McGall

Co-opted Voting Members: Councillor Steve Pearce (Bristol City Council), Councillor
Mary Blatchford (North Somerset Council), Councillor Mike Drew (South Gloucestershire
Council), Richard Orton (Trade Unions), Ann Berresford (Independent Member) and
Shirley Marsh (Independent Member)

Co-opted Non-voting Members: Steve Paines (Trade Unions)

Advisors: Tony Earnshaw (Independent Advisor)

Also in attendance: Tony Bartlett (Head of Business, Finance and Pensions) and Matt
Betts (Assistant Investments Manager)

54

55

56

57

58

59

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Democratic Services Officer read out the procedure.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies were received from William Liew, Cheryl Kirby and Wendy Weston.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

There was none.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS

There were none.

ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS

There were none.

Page 29

Page 1



60

61

62

63

MINUTES: 11TH DECEMBER 2015
These were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

A Member requested an update on Minute 46 (MFID Il — Implications for LGPS
Funds). The Assistant Investments Manager replied that the criteria by which the
Fund would be classified either as a professional or a retail investor were still not
known. It was also unclear when the Regulations would come into effect; there was
still talk about them being delayed for at least a year. The Head of Business, Finance
and Pensions said that impression given at an LGA meeting in January was that the
Treasury was unconcerned about the proposal, and would not take any steps to
counter it.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

The Committee having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served
by not disclosing relevant information and in accordance with the provisions of
Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, RESOLVED that the public
should be excluded from the meeting for agenda items 8 and 9 and the reporting of
these items be prevented under Section 100A(5A), because of the likely disclosure

of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of
the Act, as amended.

LGPS POOLING OF INVESTMENTS - PROPOSAL

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions introduced this item.

After discussion, it was RESOLVED to agree the recommendations with one
amendment.

DRAFT INVESTMENT REGULATIONS - CONSULTATION

The Assistant Investments Manager introduced this item.

After discussion it was RESOLVED to delegate approval of the final response to the
consultation to the Chair.

The meeting ended at 5.18 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 30 Page 2



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Agenda Item 10

Bath and North East Somerset Council

AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE - INVESTMENT PANEL

Minutes of the Meeting held
Wednesday, 18th November, 2015, 9.30 am

Members: Councillor Christopher Pearce (Chair), Councillor David Veale, Councillor
Cherry Beath, Ann Berresford, Councillor Mary Blatchford and Shirley Marsh

Advisors: Tony Earnshaw (Independent Advisor), Steve Turner (Mercer) and James Giles
(Mercer)

Also in attendance: Tony Bartlett (Head of Business, Finance and Pensions), Liz
Woodyard (Investments Manager), Matt Betts (Assistant Investments Manager) and
Matthew Clapton (Investments Officer)

12 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
The Democratic Services Officer read out the procedure.
13  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were none.
14  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
There were none.
15 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
There was none.

16 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS

There were none.

17  ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS
There were none.

18  MINUTES: 11 SEPTEMBER 2015

The public and exempt minutes of the meeting of 11 September 2015 were approved
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

19 MANAGING LIABILITIES - ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS

The Investments Manager introduced this item. She reminded members that at the
previous meeting they had examined the concept of better matching the Fund’s
asset base to its liabilities and thereby reducing volatility in the funding position. They
had considered the use of index-linked gilts to help with the management of inflation

Page 1
Page 39



risks throughout the portfolio. At the end of the discussion the Panel had asked for
further work to be done, in particular on how the framework would impact on the
Fund’s portfolios in terms of cash flow. Mercer’s had accordingly prepared another
presentation, which had been circulated with the agenda. She said that if the
decision was taken to adopt the proposal in principle, the implementation would be
spread over a period of years and would be taken into account in the next valuation.

Mr Turner and Mr Giles commented on the Mercer document Risk management
framework — further training and scenario analysis, which had been circulated with
the agenda.

Mr Turner said the aim was to address the volatility in and growth of the deficit with a
long-term plan to manage risk in an effective way. He reminded Members that since
the last valuation the funding level had been as high as 87%, but had now come
down to about 75%. Liabilities had increased. At the previous meeting the Panel had
decided to implement the first step, which was to switch the Fund’s current holdings
in fixed interest and overseas and overseas government bonds into index-linked gilts
(to hedge 12% of the Fund). Mercer was in addition proposing that leveraging should
be used to allow the Fund to match 36% of funded liabilities. The presentation gave
details of the hedging instruments that could be employed. These were divided into
physical instruments (fixed-interest gilts, corporate bonds, and index-linked gilts) and
synthetic/derivative instruments (interest rate swaps, inflation swaps and gilt repos).

The report by Mercer was debated with significant discussion around the concept of
leverage, the risks arising from leverage and how they would be managed including
credit and counterparty risk and how the cash flows would be effectively hedged.

Responding to comments from the Independent Investment Adviser and from
Members about the timing of investments, Mr Turner said timing was important, but
there would never be a magic bullet to cope with short-term market changes; what
was important was having a long-term plan to increase the level of protection. He did
not think that interest rates would rise significantly in the near future. However, the
deficit had risen, which would affect the valuation this year, and as the scheme is still
open the liabilities will continue to grow.

The Chair asked Mr Turner about the supply of instruments to hedge the liabilities as
supply might dry up as an increasing number of pension schemes invested in them,
with the implication that the Fund should invest in them as soon as possible. Mr
Turner thought that an increase in demand of a magnitude that would exhaust the
supply was unrealistic, but a large volume of transactions would keep yields down.
The Investments Manager said this needed to put in context, by, for example,
comparison with how gilt yields had behaved over the past 10-20 years. Gilt yields
are lower than they would be, because of pressure from pension funds to hedge their
liabilities. But there were other factors, such as expectations for interest rates and
inflation and the Government’s stated intention to have a budget surplus rather than
a deficit, which made it difficult to predict the trend in gilt yields. Mr Turner said that
there was reason not to delay hedging, and the Fund should be considering a three-
year programme to increase its investment in hedging instruments.

Representatives from Insight Asset Management gave a presentation on how an
investment manager would implement such a strategy and how they would manage
the risks and cashflows.

Page 2 of 5
Page 40



20

Responding to a question from a Member, the Investments Manager said that
hedging of liabilities could be done within a pooling arrangement of LGPS funds, or
could be kept independent of the pooling arrangements.

Members had further questions about the complexity of the concept, the mechanics
of implementation and the difficulty of assessing the risks involved. One said LGPS
funds are reluctant to get involved in such investments, because their complexity is
challenging. Mr Turner replied that LGPS funds now regularly invested in asset
classes that had once seemed too complex.

A Member asked how many LGPS funds were currently using this kind of hedging
strategy. Mr Turner said that there were about ten.

The Head of Business, Finance and Pensions referred to the court ruling some years
ago that it was unlawful for local authorities to invest in interest rate swaps, which
was made after some local authority treasury departments had been using them for
about seven years. Local authorities were therefore still cautious about this type of
instrument. A Member asked whether it was now lawful for LGPS funds to invest in
them. The Investments Manager replied said the investment regulations were going
to be reviewed, and when updated should allow funds to adopt an investment
framework that would allow this. However, funds were currently able to invest via
pooled funds. It would take a long time to develop a liability hedging framework,
which was why work on it had begun now.

RESOLVED:

1. That, in principle, the Fund should put a framework in placed to more
effectively use the investment assets to match the liabilities.

2. To prepare a framework to be considered by the Panel for recommendation to
the Committee. The proposal will bring together the work done to date and the
proposed framework, including a 3 year plan to increase the level of matching
and a longer term plan to reach a target level of matching when affordable.

After the discussion was concluded, the Head of Business, Finance and Pensions
said that it was likely that Members still had questions about these issues. He
suggested that it would unproductive if at the next meeting there was a rerun of
today’s discussions, so he invited Members to email any questions or concerns to
the Investments Manager. Officers would then prepare a response identifying the
benefits that could be achieved from this proposal.

The Chair said that a great deal of information had been presented to Members, and
that it was important not to let the details obscure the fundamental issues. He said
that a future report should focus on the basic principles and on how and when the
proposal might be implemented. The Investments Manager suggested that the
framework and the timescale of implementation could not be discussed until the
basis for the next valuation was known.

REBALANCING POLICY

The Assistant Investments Manager presented the report. He said that there were
target allocations for the different asset classes in the Fund, which were permitted to

Page 3 of 5
Page 41



21

drift within defined ranges. Rebalancing was important to ensure that the Fund’s
assets remain invested in line with the target investment strategy. It also forced the
selling of relatively expensive assets and the purchase of relatively cheap assets,
tending to add value over time.

The Fund’s current rebalancing policy was given in Appendix 1. For liquid assets the
present policy allowed rebalancing between growth and stabilising assets when the
balance deviated by +/-2%, and automatic rebalancing took place when the deviation
was +/- 5%. Mercer had reviewed the policy, and were proposing narrower ranges
and a more robust decision-making framework to reflect their views on the market
outlook for different asset classes. The table on agenda page 163 showed the
proposed rebalancing ranges. Two rebalancing ranges were set for each asset class
in addition to the neutral range, according to whether the assets were deemed
unattractive or attractive. Mercer's dashboard on page 127 summarised their view of
the attractiveness of different asset classes. .

The proposed delegations for the operation of the policy were set out in
subparagraphs 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 6.1 of the report.

The Investments Manager explained that rebalancing was used for cash
management.

A Member commented that the ‘attractive’ range proposed for emerging markets of
9-15% appeared high and out of line with the +/-1% ‘neutral’ range. She suggested
that it might be the right time to increase the benchmark allocation of 10% for
emerging markets, where good growth was to be expected in the longer term. Mr
Turner said that benchmark for equities overall was 50%, of which emerging markets
accounts for about one fifth of this and was a significant allocation.

RESOLVED to recommend to the Committee:
1. the revised rebalancing policy set out in Appendix 3 Section 1.
2. the implementation of the policy to be delegated to officers in consultation with

the investment consultants where appropriate, as set out in Appendix 3
Section 2.

REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

The Assistant Investments Manager introduced this item and summarised the key
performance information. He reported that Schroders were still rated amber on the
RAG monitoring report, but their relative one-year performance had improved
significantly. The mandates with Signet and Gottex had been terminated, so they no
longer appeared in the RAG report.

Mr Turner commented on the Mercer investment performance report.
A Member said that she would like to know the ESG ratings of the Fund’s investment

managers. Mr Turner said this information could be provided.

Page 4 of 5
Page 42



RESOLVED to note the report.

The meeting ended at 12.23 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 43

Page 5 of 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



Agenda Item 11

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD - AVON PENSION FUND

MEETING | 25" February 2016 AGENDA
DATE: ITEM

NUMBER
TITLE: LGPS Update — Latest Developments

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Summary of Consultations & Surveys

1 THEISSUE

1.1 This report summarises key developments within the Local Government Pension
Fund sector, the most significant of these is the proposal for pooling of
investments

2 RECOMMENDATION
That the Board

2.1 Notes the report and latest developments and considers the issues in light of
their own work plan.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are no direct implications related to the Pension Board in connection with
this report.

3.2 With regard to the Pension Fund there will be costs associated with setting up a
pooled arrangement. These are a matter for the Pension Fund and will be
costed once there is a decision as to the pooling arrangements to be
established.

4 REPORT

4.1 In November the Board was updated on key national developments regarding
the future of Local Government Pension Funds and full detail on the proposed
pooling arrangements. The implications in this area are highly significant and
could lead to major changes to future governance structures with regard to Local
Government Pension Funds.

Page 45




4.2 The Head of Pensions will verbally update the Board on the latest position with
regard to these significant changes and also refer to the key developments and
consultations outlined at Appendix 1.

5 RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 A proportionate risk assessment has been undertaken and no significant issues
to report, as this is an information report.

6 EQUALITIES

6.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary.

7 CONSULTATION
7.1 Report has been subject to consultation with the S151 Officer.

Contact person Tony Bartlett, Head of Business Finance & Pensions
01225 477302

Liz Woodyard, Investments Manager 01225 395306
Jeff Wring, Head of Audit West 01225 477323

Background papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Page 46




App1 - List of recent Consultations / Surveys and Issues expected to affect Scheme Administration- FEB 2016

Body

APF

Subject Description Relevant Date Follow up
Involved response
o To cap the total cost of all forms of exit
; e HM Treasury Response
payments available to individuals to consultation issued
leaving employment to £95,000. 16/09/2015
HM Consultation on a Public |« apply the cap to all types of
) . . 27/08/2015 Yes
Treasury Sector Exit Payment Cap arrangement for determining exit P fE ise Bil
ayments. arto .nterprlse |
P now going through
Expected implementation: Autumn 2016 Parliament
HM Consultation: Public Draft regulations for the recovery of exit Expected to be operative
Sector exit payment payments for employees earning over 25/01/2016 Yes P P
Treasury . from 01/04/2016
recovery regulations: £85,000 who are re-employed
Strengthening the Further considerations
HM incentive to save: a To get views on how pension savings :
: . . 30/09/2015 Yes expected in March
STreasury consultation on pensions should be treated for tax relief budaet
< tax relief 9
B March and Summer : :
~ Introduction of restricted annual allowance .
HM Budgets 2015 for members earning over £150,000 and 06/04/2016 N/A Implementation from
Treasury Changes to HMRC e . 2016/17 tax year
Lifetime allowance reduction to £1m
Allowances
The Public service To inform TPR where Administering
. governance and authorities were with implementing Code of Further survey to follow
Pensions dministrati Practice 14 07/09/2015 Yes Valuati :
Regulator administration survey ractice aluation exercise
2015
Changing anomalies from scheme e " .
Amendment regulations | Changing the way service is aggregated As sprchled n Awaglrr;% [r)(_:(‘SI;GS;%r:ssue
between LGPS Employers 9 9
The government published guidance for “3ll the issues have now
Fair Deal on outsourcing from public When been resolved and
DCLG . Sector schemes excluding local Awaited as regulations . .
Consultation on Best overnment in Oct 2013 art of ssued awaited for permission to
Value and staff transfer | 9 am%ndment get the Minister’s
direction Order DCLG are to set out how this will affect regulations agreement to start

Best Value employers

the consultation”
[DCLG at 16 2 2016]




App1 - List of recent Consultations / Surveys and Issues expected to affect Scheme Administration- FEB 2016

a national exercise the performance of all

Findings to be considered

Scheme LGPS Fund LGPS funds in England and Wales during during Dec 2015 to
Advisory benchmarking exercise late 2015 mandatory exercise linked to 31/10/2015 Yes submit recommendations
Board 2015 2016 triennial valuations. to DCLG for 2016
Valuation process
Views requested from Scheme Employers . . .
Scheme Review of ill Health Recommendations to be submitted to On hold until review of il
Board sub . . 12/10/2015 N/A health process for all
. retirement IDRP Scheme Advisory Board .
committee public sector schemes
LGA The Markets in Financial Report will be send to
Pensions Instruments Directive its impact on LGPS investments 03/01/2017 Yes committee and all fund
(MiFID II) managers contacted
1. A package of reforms that propose to
remove some of the existing prescribed
means of securing a diversified investment
9 Consultation on strategy and instead place the onus on Yes
Q roposals to revoke and authorities to determine the balance of
IS prop their investments and take account of risk. Having .
o replace the Local ) . DCLG to review
. 2. The introduction of safeguards to ensure been .
DCLG Government Pension . A 19/02/2016 responses and issue
that the more flexible legislation proposed presented to .
Scheme (Management | . q el 4 that th i C it regulations
and Investment of Funds) is used appropriately and that the guidance ommittee
Requlations 2009 on pooling assets is adhered to. This & sent by
9 includes a suggested power to allow the 15/02/2016
Secretary of State to intervene in the
investment function of an administering
authority when necessary.
- Yes after
Initial o .
Initial DCLG can impose on
Local Government Proposals di : thorities if ¢
Pension Scheme: . o by 19/02/2016 | 9'SCUSSIons | authorities It process no
DCLG ' Guidance on Pooling investments with other sufficiently adopted
Investment Reform LGPS funds
Criteria and Guidance More detailed . . . . .
in South Discussions still ongoing

by 15/07/2016

West




Agenda Item 12

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD

MEETING AGENDA

25 February 2016 ITEM
DATE: y NUMBER
TITLE: Pension Fund Benchmarking

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

CIPFA — PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION BENCHMARKING

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The purpose of this item is to report to the Pension Board the results of the
CIPFA Benchmarking club survey 2015.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the Pension Board is asked to note the report.

Page 49




3.0 CIPFA BENCHMARKING CLUB REPORT 2014 - Introduction

3.1 Each year, the Avon Pension Fund (APF) participates in the CIPFA Benchmarking
Club exercise for Pension Administration. Following completion of an in-depth
questionnaire on its administration processes, it receives a report detailing performance
and costs comparisons against the other members of the Benchmarking Club.

3.2 For 2014/15 the Benchmarking Club comprised of 44 authorities (out of a total of
89) compared with 49 taking part in the exercise in 2013/14. The survey is reflective of
pension administration only. It must be assumed that all administration authorities will
have different structures. The Avon Pension Fund has an overall single team structure
incorporating administration (including pensions payroll) accounting and investments.
Where necessary data provided has been allocated separately to accurately reflect true
administration costs.

4.0 Administration Costs

41 The APF cost per member remains competitive at £16.55 against the average
fund (£19.17). In 2014/15 the Funds costs decreased by 10.4% by comparison to the
previous year £18.27 reflecting both a higher than normal level of staff turnover during
the reporting period in addition to three separate undertakings of staff secondment
outside of the Fund. The APF continues to have higher costs than average in areas
where resources and investment have been prioritised. Particular factors to note are:

(1) Communication costs £2.21 remain higher than the club average (£0.78) as the
Fund continues to develop and implement its communication objectives in
accordance with the service plan and published Pensions Administration Strategy
promoting greater use of electronic delivery of communication material and data
access.

(i) Staff costs remain competitive demonstrating that the Fund benefits from
economies of scale as membership growth has exceed capacity growth — the
benefits administration team handle ¢.19 % more scheme members per staff
member than the comparator group average.

5.0 Membership

5.1 The membership profile demonstrates that APF is broadly in line with the
benchmarking group average with pensioner/dependant representing 26.6% (avge 27.8%)
deferred members 35% (35.5%) deferred 37% (31.1%). The higher than average number
of deferred members together with lower average unprocessed leavers 0.4% (2.1%)
reflects the ongoing member data cleansing process set up as part of the annual year end
exercise. Additionally, the number of frozen refunds 1.6% reflects the current 3 year
project to clear historic refund cases.

5.2 The Funds’ portfolio has continued to grow in excess of the comparator funds with
the increase in numbers of Academies and Admitted bodies.

6.0 Administration

6.1 APF has the highest recorded proportion of joiners and leavers measured in the
group. The two significant figures are reflected in the increase in numbers of new starters
automatically enrolled into the scheme and the higher than average number of member
deferred leavers as a result of APF’s ongoing data cleansing process and the number of
members opting out following auto enrolment.

Page 50



7 EQUALITIES

7.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary as the report is primarily for
information only.

8 CONSULTATION

8.1 This report is primarily for information and therefore consultation is not necessary.

Contact person Geoff Cleak — Acting Pensions Manager (Tel: 01225 395277)

Background papers CIPFA REPORT

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Page 51




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



C I PFA The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accountancy
Information Services

pensions administration
benchmarking club

2015 - Bath Final Report

Page 53
Page 1



-]
PREFACE

This report compares your data with the group of authorities specified on the title page.

Throughout the report your figures are shown in tables and in graphical form. If you are not familiar with our reports
we hope this page will help you to better understand the way we present this data.

Averages: Almost all of our tables and charts compare your figure with a group average. The average is the
unweighted mean value for the group. This average value ignores missing data, or data that we have excluded and for
this reason sets of averages sometimes do not reconcile precisely.

Charts: We display a large amount of data on charts as this allows us to show the data for the entire group efficiently

and gives far more information than a simple average (i.e. range of data, individual authority values etc.). Below we
have annotated an example chart to help explain what they are showing.

Bar Charts: These are our standard method of displaying a full set of data

Each bar represents an
authority's value Your authority's bar Title
highlights in black

s / A N
50% -+ / 1-5 years |
45% -+ The group average is

40% - shown by a horizontal
line

35% ~ /

30%

25%

20%
15% -
10% -
5% +

. 0%

N

1
o 4

'Missing bars' on the left represent 'Missing bars' on the right
missing data or excluded data and Staff experience represent zero values and are
are not included in calculating the included in the average
average FTE %

< 1 year 1.5 10% 9%

1-5 years 6.5 42% 29%

5-10 years 3.5 23% 21%
> 10 yrs 4.0 26% 41%

Total 15.5

Page 54
Page 2

Pensions Administration 15/10/2015



-]
INTRODUCTION

This report compares your performance with the group of authorities specified on the title page. It is divided into the
following sections.

Page
1 Summary 2015 4
2  Cost Measures 5
3  Workload Measures 11
4  Staff Related Measures 20
5 Industry Standard Performance Indicators 24
6 Comparison by method of service delivery } final reports 25
7  Timeseries } final reports only 26

Section 1 - Summary 2015
This page provides a brief summary of the most salient aspects of the report.

Section 2 - Cost Measures

This section concentrates on cost/member ratios starting with total cost/member which is then broken down by staff
costs, payroll costs, direct costs, overheads and income. Further analysis of direct costs and overheads is also
provided in this section.

Section 3 - Workload Measures

The first measure of workload is the number of members in the scheme, which is shown along with a breakdown by
class of membership. This is followed by an analysis of the number and type of LGPS employers.

Other workload measures include:

- Joiners and leavers with a full analysis of the various types of retirements
- Number of quotations provided and actual events processed

- AVCs, ARCs and Added years

- Appeals

Section 4 - Staff Related Measures

The measures included here are an analysis of staff numbers by pay band, sickness absence, pensions work
experience, staff qualifications and staff turnover.

Section 5 - Industry Standard Performance Indicators

In this section we show how authorities perform against each of the LGPC performance indicators.

Section 6 - Comparison by Method of Service Delivery (final report only)

This shows members' costs and averages compared for in-house and externally managed pension schemes.
Section 7 -Timeseries (final report only)

This shows the individual members' performance over time compared to the club average for cost per member,
which is analysed over staff cost and other costs.

nge 55

Pensions Administration ge 3 15/10/2015



-]
SECTION 1 - SUMMARY 2014/15

NET COST / MEMBER 2014/15 =—®— (Club average
X Bath
e N e N
£40 Cost per member ‘ o5 Cost per member
o) @ %
£15
£20 £10
£10 £5
£0 + . . . . . )
) ) \ 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 )
STAFF COST / MEMBER 2014/15
s W\\‘ e ™~
£20 Staff | " Staff cost

£10

£15 £8 ._.-\._.

X X X
£10 A ;61 X X X
£5 £2
£0 ‘ ‘ ‘ ; ‘ ‘
£0 ) 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
N / \. J/
COST £'000 / FTE MEMBERS LGPS / ADMIN FTE
Ve Ve ™~
£60 1 £'000 per FTE ) 15,000 1 Members per FTE
£40 1 10,000 -
£20 1 5,000 - I
\ 0
N £0 /‘ \\,, /
PAYROLL COST / PENSIONER PENSIONERS AS A % MEMBERS
[£s0 | Payroll cost per pensioner A (0% - Pensioners as % of members)
£40 - 30% -
£30 1 20% -
£20 1
10% -
£10 |
| £0 i ) \ 0% %
N J '
ACTIVES AS A % MEMBERS NUMBER OF LGPS EMPLOYERS
/ N\ // A\
[ 50% - Active Members 1800 1 Total |
40% - 600 1
30%
400 -
20%
200 | I
10% -
L 0% ) 0
- ~ AN /
Page 56

Pensions Administration Page 4 15/10/2015



]
SECTION 2 - COST MEASURES

COST/MEMBER TREE 2014/15

This tree diagram analyses the cost per member. For each benchmark two figures are given the first being the
authority's cost and the second (in italics) is the group average.
Cost per FTE staff
Staff (exc payroll) _< £34,010 £32,429
£6.73 £7.83 Members per FTE
5,050 4,230
Payroll cost per pensioner
_ Direct costs — Payroll (inc staff) < £3.63 £8.16
£11.48 £12.59 £0.82 £1.85 % Pensioners
22.6% 23.9%
External audit
Total cost per member — £0.07 £0.41
£16.55 £19.17 = Communications Employers
£2.21 £0.78 _[ £0.72 £0.27
————— Actuaries Members
£1.20 £1.14 £1.49 £0.51
Other running costs
£0.45 £0.78
— Outsourcing contract costs
na £19.78
IT - Pensions admin
£2.39 £2.32
IT - all other
L Indirect costs — £0.66 £0.81
£5.27 £5.38 Accommodation
£0.82 £0.65
Other central charges
L Income (Total) £1.40 £1.60
(£0.20) (£0.23)
£'000 member Y\"/:]
Pension Section total 38.4 Staff - administration 704 6.73 7.83
less Staff - payroll 44 0.42 0.36
IT staff 2.0 Payroll 42 0.40 1.49
Payroll staff 3.0 Communications (Total) 231 2.21 0.78
Communications staff 2.0 Actuaries 125 1.20 1.14
Employing authority work - External audit 7 0.07 0.41
Work for other schemes 1.5 Other running costs 47 0.45 0.78
Other work 9.2 Total Direct Costs 1,200 11.48 12.59
Admin of LGPS 20.7 Outsourcing costs - na 19.78
IT - Pensions admin 250 2.39 2.32
IT - All other 69 0.66 0.81
Accommodation 86 0.82 0.65
Net Costs £'000 Other central charges 146 1.40 1.60
Total Indirect Costs 551 5.27 5.38
Pension Section total 19,909 Gross Cost 1,751 16.75 19.39
less Income - Members (11) (0.11) (0.06)
Work for other schemes - Income - Employers (10) (0.10) (0.11)
Employing authority work - Income - Other - - (0.06)
Other work 18,179 Total Income (21) (0.20) (0.23)
Admin of LGPS 1,730 Net Cost 1,730 16.55 19.17
| Total Scheme Membership 104,532 |

Pensions Administration

*Qutsourcing Contract Costs average only includes those members
who have outsourcing costs.

Page 57

Page 5

15/10/2015




COST PER MEMBER 2014-15

£40 - Cost per member R
£35 4
£30 4
£25 4
£20 4
£15 -
£10 4
£5 4
£0
,/
(/’ ™~ //'
£25 - Direct costs £14 - Indirect costs
£12 4
£20 4
£10 4
£15 A £8 4
£10 1 £6 1
£4
£5 £ |
£0 £0
% N
£2.0 - Total Income £35 - Outsourcing Contract Costs
£30 4
£1.5 4 £25
£20 4
£1.0 4
£15 -
£0.5 - £10 4
£5 A
£0.0 I ) £0
/
Admin of LGPS costs £ per
£'000 member Avg
Total Direct Costs 1,200 11.48 12.59
Outsourcing costs - na 19.78
Total Indirect Costs 551 5.27 5.38
Total Income (21) (0.20) (0.23)
Net Cost 1,730 16.55 19.17
| Total Scheme Membership 104,532 |

Pensions Administration FPQQ%GS8 15/10/2015



COSTS PER MEMBER - Direct costs 2014/15

£25 4 Direct costs
£20
£15 4
£10
£5 4
£0
£20.0 4 Staff - admin [ £2.0 Staff - payroll )
£15.0 A £1.5 4
£10.0 A £1.0 4
£5.0 | I £0.5 |
£0.0 £0.0 I
e N / \\
£10.0 4 Payroll £2.0 External Audit
£8.0 1 £15 |
£6.0 1
£1.0 1
£4.0 A
£2.0 | £0.5 A
\ £0.0 u ) £0.0 =
, ) [ .
£2.5 Communications £4.0 4 Actuaries
£2.0 A
£3.0
£1.5 -
£2.0
£1.0 A
£0.5 - £1.0 I
| £0.0 ) £0.0
Direct costs £ per )
£'000 member Avg (£4.0 Other running costs
Staff - admin 704 6.73 7.83
Staff - payroll 44 0.42 0.36 £3.01
Payroll 42 0.40 1.49 £.0 1
External audit 7 0.07 0.41
Communications 231 2.21 0.78 £1.0
Actuaries 125 1.20 1.14 I
Other running costs 47 0.45 0.78 £0.0
Total 1,200 11.48 12.59
Page 59

Pensions Administration Page 7 15/10/2015



DIRECT COSTS PER MEMBER - Staff and Payroll costs 2014/15

£60 £'000 per FTE
£ per
£'000 member £40
Staff - admin 704 6.73 7.83
" . £20
Staff - admin costs per member
£16 -
£14 £0 ;
£12 - /
£10 4 Bath 34.0 Avg 32.4
£8 | \/
15,000 - Members per FTE
£6 -
£4 1 10,000 -
£2 -
£0 5,000 -
N ) |
0
Bath 5,050 Avg 4,230
p - o \
( 40% - Pensioners as % of members
£ per o
£'000 member 30%
Payroll (combined) 86 0.82 1.85 20% |
£9 - Payroll per member 10% -
£8 -
0%
£7 1 /
£6 -
Bath 23% Avg 24%
£5 A
£4 | \
£3 1 ( £50 - Payroll cost per pensioner
£2 A
£1 4 £40 -
£0 I ) £30 .|
: £20 A
£10 A
£0 i

Bath 3.6 Avg 8.2

Page 60

Pensions Administration Page 8 15/10/2015



COSTS PER MEMBER - Indirect costs 2014/15

£14 Indirect costs
£12
£10 -
£8 -
£6 -
£4
£2
£0
£6 4 IT - Pensions admin \ [ £10 4 IT - All other |
£8 -
£4 -
£6
£4
£2 -
£2
£0 ) £0 N
£8 4 Other central charges [ £2.5 - Accommodation )
‘6 | £2.0 -
£1.5
£4 -
£1.0 A
[ |
£2 1 £0.5 1 I
£0 I ) £0.0
Indirect costs £ per
£'000 member Avg
IT - Pensions admin 250 2.39 2.32
IT - All other 69 0.66 0.81
Accommodation 86 0.82 0.65
Other central charges 146 1.40 1.60
Total 551 5.27 5.38
Page 61

Pensions Administration Page 9 15/10/2015



COSTS PER MEMBER - LGPS Administration Expenses Analysis 2014/15

Gross Total Admin Costs Per Member\

£80
£70
£60
£50
£40
£30
£20
£10
£0
£50 1 Staff (
£40 -
£30
£20 -
£10 I
£0 )
£30 4 General
£25 4
£20 -
£15 4
£10
£5 4
£0 i

Pensions Administration

LGPS Administration Expenses

£25 -

£20 A

£15 A

£10 A

IT

£0

" £8 4

£6 -

£2 A

Other Costs\

£0

£ per
member

Avg

Staff Costs 1,259 12.04 10.71
IT Costs 302 2.89 3.59
General Costs 212 2.03 4.25
Other Costs 17,598 >max 1.57
Gross LGPS Admin Exp. 19,371 >max 20.84
Gross LGPS Income 245 2.34 0.44
Net LGPS Admin Exp. 19,126 182.97 23.87

Page 62

Page 10

15/10/2015



]
SECTION 3 - WORKLOAD MEASURES

COMPOSITION OF MEMBERS AS AT 31/3/2015 [ 30% - Active full-time
50% - Active Members 20% +
40% - 10% - I
30% - [ 0%
N~
20% - Ve
30% - Active part-time
10% -
20%
0% |
~ 10%
40% - Deferred - Staff 0%
30% - - ; )
o [ 0.2% Active elected
20% -
0.1%
10% -
0.0% I
0% ~ i
~—
— ™~ // h
40% - Pensioners as % of members 20% 1 Dependants
30% - 15% -
20% - 10% A
10% - 5% -
0% 0% I
— ~
s RN
15% - Frozen refunds 10% - Leavers unprocessed
8% -+
10% -
6% -
4% A
5% -
2% -
0% I \ 0% u

Composition of members

Active:

- full-time 13,530 13% 15,569 14.8%
- part-time 23,107 22% 17,862 20.7%
- no. of elected Members 34 0.03% 52 0.07%
- sub-total 36,671 35% 33,067 35.5%
Deferred:

- Staff 38,267 37% 27,618 31.1%
- Elected Members 81 0.1% 21 0.0%
Pensioners 23,660 23% 22,128 23.9%
Dependants 3,751 3.6% 3,629 3.9%
Frozen refunds 1,673 1.6% 2,848 3.4%
Leavers unprocessed 429 0.4% 1,805 2.1%
Total 104,532 91,115

Page 63

Pensions Administration Page 11 15/10/2015



COMPOSITION OF MEMBERS AS AT 31/03/2015

80% - Under 50 yrs old 50% - 50 yrs old and over

40% -

60% -

30% -
40% -
20% -

20% -
° 10% -

0% 0%

Composition of active members

Under 50 yrs old 23,147 63% 62%
50 yrs old and over 13,524 37% 38%

NUMBER OF LGPS EMPLOYERS AS AT 31/03/2015

800 ~ Total
700
600 -
500
400 -
300 4
200
100
0
|
500 - Scheduled | [ 400 - Admitted
400 300 |
300
200 A
200 A
100 | 100 4
0 0 I

LGPS employers (31/3/15)

No. Avg of which:

Scheduled 171 141 Local Authorities 4 2% 9%
Admitted 85 82 Transferee 41 48% 46%
Total 256 223

Employer changes 2014/15

Applied Admitted Leaving
No. Avg
Scheduled 18 17 16 20 - 3
Admitted 6 9 3 9 8 4
Page 64

Pensions Administration Page 12 15/10/2015



JOINERS & LEAVERS (per '000 active members)

-
450 - Total joiners and Ieavers\
400 -

350 -
300 -
250 -
200 A
150
100 -
50 -
0 )

- ~ Y ™~
300 Joining 60 1 Retiring
200 - 40 - 1
100 - 20 -

0 ) 0

- _

v ™~ \\

150 Deaths 80 Transferred out

100 60

40
50
20
0 I 0 =
\ y p
/ R

150 Deferred 60 Opted out (auto enrolment)
100 40
50 I 20

0 I 0 I

N Y

Joiners & leavers (per '000 active members)

No. '000 Avg
Joining 8,177 223 164
Retiring 1,520 41 40
Deaths 741 20 23
Transferred out 97 3 8
Deferred 3,029 83 50
Opted out 1,635 45 19
Total 15,199 414 298

LGPS members as % eligible employees
100% - % eligible as members A 100% - % of new starters
80% 4 80% -

60% - 60% -+
40% - 40% -
20% | 20% -
0% 0%
_ o\ )
Bath 80% Avg 76% Bath 92% Avg 77%

Page 65

Pensions Administration Page 13 15/10/2015



RETIRING (per '000 active members)

60 - Retiring
50 -
40 A
30 -
20 -
10 A
0
N ~
100% Normal 12% Incapacity
80% 10%
60% 8%
6%
40%
4%
20% 20, I
0% n 0%
\ g \\
50% Redundancy / efficiency 20% Under 60 (emp. consent)
40% 15%
30%
10%
20% '
10% I 5% |
0% 0% I
J \ J
4
80% 60-65 (voluntary) 25% Over 65 (late) h
60% 20%
15%
40% ’ I
10%
20%
5%
0% 0%
\
1 ()
Retirements No. /o Avg 20% Flexible
Normal 70 5% 18%
0
Incapacity/ill-health 123 8% 5% 15%
Redundancy/efficiency 306 20% 17% 10%
Under 60 (emp. consent) 93 6%  4.4% 5o
(]
60-65 (voluntary) 650 43% 43% I
0y
Over 65 (late) 227 15%  10% 0%
Flexible 51 3.4% 3.3%
Total 1,520

Retiring (per '000 active members) Active members

No. '000 36,671
Retiring 1,520 41 40

Page 66

Pensions Administration Page 14 15/10/2015



NUMBER OF QUOTATIONS PROVIDED (per '000 active members)

/100 1 Retirements-Normal \ 100 + Retirements-Redundancy/ efficiency
80 7 80 m
60 - 60 -
40 A 40 4
20 - 20 -
0 0 |
30 Transfers in 30 4 Transfers out
20 20 A
10 I 10 4
0 0
AN J
(15 Transfers intra ) /30 1 Link ups
10 20 A
5 10
0
\_ 0
20 A Concurrent employments /60 q Refunds h
50 -
15 -
40 4
10 - 30 A
20 -
5 4
10 -
0 0
(15 - Divorce cases
Active members: 36,671
10 -
Quotations provided
TUPE -in - - 0 s
TUPE -out - - 0
Retirements: 0
- Normal 3,123 85 17
- Incapacity/ill-health 108 3 2
- Redundancy/efficiency 328 9 17
- Flexible - - 1
- All other - - 22
Transfers in 357 10 9
Transfers out 541 15 12
Transfers intra - - 3
Link ups - - 3
Concurrent employments - - 2
Refunds - - 9
Divorce cases 225 6 5 No of bulk transfers
Deaths in service - - 0 TUPE -in . na 5
Deaths of pensioners - - 4 TUPE -out .. na 4
Page 67

Pensions Administration Page 15 15/10/2015



NUMBER OF ACTUAL EVENTS (per '000 active members)

50 A Retirements-Normal //20 - Retirements-Redundancy/ efficiency \
40 A
15 A
30 A
10 -
20 A
10 - 57
0 0
\_ /
25 4 Transfers in (15 - Transfers out h
20 -
15 | 10 -
10 -
5 4
) |
0 0 I
N 2N -
"0 | Transfers intra 40 Link ups
60 30
40 - 20
20 - 10
\ [ \ I
A N /
50 - Concurrent employments e 60 - Refunds \
40 -
30 | 40 A
20 A 20 |
10 A
0 0
- VRN /
Active members: 1 Frozen refund?
Actual events . |
TUPE -in - na 19
60 -
TUPE -out - na 17
40 4
Retirements:
20 -
- Normal 1,578 43 12 I
- Incapacity/ill-health 136 4 0
- Redundancy/efficiency 416 11
200 4 Preserved benefits
- Flexible - na 1
- All other - na 18| 1501
Transfers in 151 4 5 100 -
Transfers out 97 3 5
50 -
Transfers intra 751 20 10
Link ups 232 6 11 0
Concurrent employments - na 6| ’
Refunds 1.253 34 14 | (1597 Deaths of pensioners
Frozen refunds 532 ## 8
100 4
Preserved benefits 3,029 83 69
Divorce cases 30 1 1 50 |
Deaths in service 25 0.7 1
Death of pensioners 498 14 23 0 |
Single Status / Job Evaluation - na na
Page 68

Pensions Administration Page 16 15/10/2015



ACTUAL CALCULATIONS (per '000 active members)

350 4 New starters

100 A

50 4

600 - Changes to details

500 -

400 -

200

100 -

RETIREMENTS

Retirements commuting to lump sum

200 A

300

200

Electronically

100

300

200

100

Manually

200

150

[— | 100

50

Electronically

500
400
300

200

Manually

100

Active members
36,671

Actual calculations

100% ~ Commuting to lump sum
80% - New starters 7,866 215 160
- electronically 5,418 148 122
60% - - manually 2,448 67 61
40% 1 Changes to details 8,084 220 166
- electronically 4,910 134 48
20% -
- manually 3,174 87 119
0%
Retirements commuting lump sum
Number % total Avg
1,368 90% 60%
Page 69
Pensions Administration Page 17 15/10/2015



AVCs, ARCs and Added years

% Currently contributing

8% - AVC ) (2.0% - ARC | [2.5% - Added years
6% A 1.5% - 2.0% 7
1.5% -
4% 1.0% -
1.0%
2% A o 4
o 0.5% 0.5%
0% I 0.0% 1 \0.0% I
/
% New contributors this year

- — ~
2.5% - AVC 1.50% ~ ARC 0.15% | Added years
2.0% -

1.00% - 10% |
159 | o 0.10%
1.0% -

0.50% -| 0.05% -
0.5% -
0.0% I 0.00% 10.00%
~— ~—

Contributors to AVCs and ARCS Active members
No. % Avg 36,671

Currently contributing

- AVC 422 1.15% 2.57%
- ARC 70 0.19% 0.22%
- Added years 179 0.49% 0.48%
Total 671 1.83% 2.97%
New contributors this year

- AVC 141 0.38% 0.36%
- ARC - 0.00% 0.20%
- Added years - 0.00% 0.01%
Total 141 0.38% 0.49%

Page 70

Pensions Administration Page 18 15/10/2015



APPEALS
0.80 - Appeals in progress at 03.15 (Ill- R EEEE 5 BERTRLE AR
Health) members
0.60 4 Ill-Health
In progress at start of year 0 0.00 0.04 22
049 In progress at end of year 0 0.00 0.07 30
0.20 4 Non Ill-Health
In progress at start of year 3 0.08 0.03 29
000 In progress at end of year 2 0.05 0.06 37
1st Stage
0.70 - Appeals in progress at 03.15 (:Z:I:II:; Appeals in Progress - 03.14 2 0.05 0.04 25
0.60 A New Appeals in Year 2 0.05 0.12 104
0.50 A Appeals Withdrawn 0 0.00 0.00 3
0.40 4 Appeals Upheld 0 0.00 0.04 26
0.30 4 Appeals Not Upheld 4 0.11 0.06 68
0.20 A Appeals in Progress - 03.15 0 0.00 0.05 33
0.10 - 2nd Stage
0.00 l Appeals in Progress - 03.14 0 0.00 0.01 14
- % New Appeals in Year 2 0.05 0.05 30
Appeals Withdrawn 0 0.00 0.00 -
% .
o 0w oot s
Appeals Not Upheld 2 0.05 0.02 34
Appeals in Progress - 03.15 0 0.00 0.01 (1)
Ombudsman Referrals
Appeals in Progress - 03.14 1 0.03 0.01 8
New Appeals in Year 2 0.05 0.01 10
Appeals Withdrawn 0 0.00 0.00 -
Appeals Upheld 0 0.00 0.00 1
Appeals Not Upheld 1 0.03 0.01 10
Appeals in Progress - 03.15 2 0.05 0.00 6
Page 71

Pensions Administration Page 19 15/10/2015



]
SECTION 4 - STAFF RELATED MEASURES

STAFF PAY
4 [ 7 [ \
12% ~ > £50k 70% ~ £20-25k
10% 60% -
8% | 50% -
40% -
6% -
30% -
4% -
20% -
2% - I 10% A
0% ‘ 0%
\ % \. V4
- ™ g
30% 1 £40-50k 1100% ~ £15-20k |
25% - 80% -
20% -
60% -
15% +
40% -+
10% -
596 I 20% -
0% 0% I
\_ J
/, — // VV\\"
60% - £30-40k [ 30% ~ < £15k |
50% - 25% -
40% - 20% -+
30% - 15% +
20% - 10% -
10% 5% -
0% 0%
J .
609 A
Yo -
£25-30k Staff pay
50% -
40% 7 > £50k 1.0 3% 2%
30% A £40-50k 3.0 8% 6%
20% £30-40k 8.2 21% 14%
10% A £25-30k 7.2 19% 14%
0% £20-25k 16.0 42% 28%
/ £15-20k 3.0 8%  33%
< £15k 0.0 0% 3%
Total 38.4
Page 72

Pensions Administration Page 20 15/10/2015



STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

100% - Qualified Staff | |50% - Part Qualified Staff
90% - 45%
80% A 40% -+
70% A 35%
60% - 30% A
50% - 25% A
40% ~ 20% A
30% 15% -+
20% A 10% -+
10% A 5% -
0% ] 0%
N ,/
S50 - B i
’ No Relevant Qualifications | |30% - In training
90%
80% - 25% 4
70% A
20% A
60% -
50% - 15% -
40% ~
30% - 10% -+
20%
5% -
10% A
0% 0%

Staff qualifications

Qualified Staff 9.0 23% 32%

Part Qualified Staff 11.0 29% 10%

No Relevant Qualifications 18.4 48% 58%

Total 38.4

Number in Training 4.0 10% 5%
Page 73

Pensions Administration Page 21 15/10/2015



STAFF PENSIONS EXPERIENCE

Ve
30% A < 1 year | 50% - 10-15 years
25% 40% -+
20% A
30%
15% -
20% A
10% +
50 | 10% -
0% | 0%
\_ B / .
e N\ e
70% - 1-5 years 1120% - > 15 years
60% - 100% -
50% -
80%
40% -
[v) 4
30% | 60%
20% 4 40% -
10% + 20% - I
0% ) 0%
e
[v) . -
50% 5-10 years Staff experience
40% -
< 1 year 4.0 10% 10%
30%
1-5 years 10.5 27% 17%
20% 7 5-10 years 6.0 16%  23%
10% - 10-15 years 6.5 17%  18%
> 15 years 11.4 30% 32%
0%
) Total 38.4
STAFF TURNOVER
N\ N
30% - Joining 30% - Leaving
25% - 25% 4
20% A 20% A
15% - 15% -
10% - 10% -
5% - 5% -
0% | 0%
J/ . J/
Staff Turnover FTE % change Avg
Staff at 1/4/2013 43.7
+ Staff joining Pension section 4.0 10.4% 10.8%
- Staff leaving Pension section 9.3 24.2% 10.2%
Staff at 31/3/2014 38.4 -12.1% 0.9%
Page 74

Pensions Administration Page 22 15/10/2015



SICKNESS ABSENCE

4
257 Total | | 16 Long-term
14 4
20 4
12 4
15 A 10 -
8 4
10 -
6 4
51 4 4
| 2]
0 ) 0
\ ,,/ J
4
. 10 1 Short-term
Sickness absence Days/FTE Avg 9 |
Long-term sickness 0.0 2.9 8
Short-term sickness 2.1 3.1 7
6 4
Total 2.1 5.9 s |
Long-term sick (periods of sickness over 20 working days) 4 -
Short-term sick (periods of sickness of 20 days or less) 3
2 4
1 | I
0
STAFF LOCATION
// '«\
% of home based staff to total % of office based staff to total |
45%
100% -
40%
35% 90% -
30%
259, 80%
20% A
70% -
15% -+
10% ~+ 60% -
5% A
0% | 50%
AN
% to total
Staff location FTE Avg FTE Avg
Home based 0.0 0.9 0% 4%
Office based 38.4 32.5 100% 96%

Total 38.4

Office Based: Staff members who spend >50% of their contracted time working in the office

Home Based: Staff members who spend 50% of their contracted time working from home.

Page 75
Pensions Administration Page 23 15/10/2015



]
SECTION 5 - INDUSTRY STANDARD PI's

4 Transfer in quote\‘\ ( Letter notifying actual retirement A
100% - 5
0 100% - benefit
[v) -
90% 90% |
80% - 80% -
70% - 70% 4
60% - 60% -
50% ) | 50%
N /,/ \\77 4
: Transfer out quote\‘\ 4 Letter acknowledging death of membe'F\
100% -
100% -
90%
90% -
[v) -
80% 80% |
70% - 70% -
60% - 60% -
50% / | 50%
N / N /
g Process and pay refund A ; Letter notifying dependant's benefits A
100% - 100% -
90% - 80% -
80% - 60% -
70% - 40% -
60% - 20% A
{ 50% / 0%
. /) A /
g Letter estimating retirement benefit A [ Calculate & notify deferred benefits A
100% - 100% -
90% 80%
80% - 60% -
70% - 40% -
60% - 20%
| 50% / 0%
. / . /
Industry Standard PI's Target Achieved Avg
Letter detailing transfer in quote 10 days 83.3% 89.6%
Letter detailing transfer out quote 10 days 79.2% 88.3%
Process and pay refund 5 days 76.1% 91.5%
Letter notifying estimate of retirement benefit 10 days 92.2% 89.2%
Letter notifying actual retirement benefit 5 days 85.5% 90.5%
Process and pay lump sum retirement grant 5 days 83.0% 92.2%
Letter acknowledging death of member 5 days 90.0% 94.1%
Letter notifying amount of dependant's benefits 5 days 87.9% 86.7%
Calculate and notify deferred benefits 10 days 53.8% 75.8%
Page 76

Pensions Administration Page 24 15/10/2015



]
SECTION 6 - COMPARISON BY METHOD OF SERVICE DELIVERY

COMPARISON OF OUTSOURCED/IN-HOUSE MEMBERS

Total members with data:

Outsourced members:

45

LGPS ADMIN COST PER MEMBER (INCLUDING PAYROLL)

e
£40 ~

£35 A

£30 A

£25 ~

£20 +

£15 ~

£10 A

£5 A

£0 -
\\,,

Bath

Club average
Outsourced average

In-house average

£1,730

£1,592
£1,098
£1,657

Cost per

Members Member
104,532 £16.55
91,074 £19.17
64,384 £21.06
94,586 £18.91

COST PER MEMBER COMPARED WITH NUMBER OF MEMBERS

Black bars show
outsourced members

£40 -

£35 -

£30 -

£25 -

Cost Per Member

£15 - o

£10 -

%
£20 - Q b@

¢ In-House

+ Outsourced

£0

0 50,000 100,000

150,000 200,000

Members

250,000 300,000

350,000 400,000

_

Pensions Administration

Page 77
Page 25

15/10/2015



-]
SECTION 7 - TIMESERIES

The 2014 averages are the actual club averages.

For previous years, the averages shown here are scaled up or down from the 2014 figure based on the average rate of
change in each year. This is calculated using data from members who supplied figures in consecutive years, otherwise
the simple average in each year would be distorted by changes in the composition of the club from year to year.

Ve /
Cost per member (
£25 4 £10 -

£9 A
£20 - 0——0—.—.—.\. £8

X X X X X x £7 | X X
£15 - £6 1 X X

£5 X

£10 - £4 4
£3
£5 - £2 4
£1

£0 £0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 J 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Staff cost

N

£14 - Other costs |

;X
£12 X xX)(\.
KEY:

——@— Club average £8
X Bath 6

£4

£0

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Time series analysis

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Members 82,832 85,417 88,182 91,851 99,209 104,532
Net cost (£'000) 1,518k 1,492k 1,562k 1,593k 1,813k 1,730k
Cost per member £18.33 £17.47 £17.71 £17.34 £18.27 £16.55
Average £20.26 £20.33 £19.96 £19.97 £19.98 £19.17
Staff cost £5.90 £5.28 £6.52 £5.99 £6.97 £6.73
Average £9.02 £8.94 £8.68 £8.30 £7.93 £7.83
Other costs £12.42 £12.19 £11.19 £11.48 £11.57 £10.02
Average £11.14 £11.36 £11.25 £11.98 £12.76 £11.75

Page 78

Pensions Administration Page 26 15/10/2015



Page 79



CIPFA is the leading professional accountancy We also do..
body for public services, whether provided by
the public or private sectors. It provides
education and training in accountancy and
financial management, and sets and monitors
professional standards

n add:twon to Pa C chmarking Clubs include

CIPFA also provides professional services to public
sector organisations and managers. These include
statistical and technical information services,
research semvices, consultancy, advisory networks
and forums

DLIT W sile
W . Cipfa. or

g/ services benchmarking

CIPFA holds more data on local government
performance than any other organisation in the
world and our Corporate Services Benchmarking To find out more about our other Corporate Services
Clubs are the market leader in local government Benchmarking Clubs please visit our website:
benchmarking, with high levels of participation www.cipfa.org/corporateservices

and customer satisfaction. Our detailed reports,
databases, and interactive tools provide you with
solid evidence to support decisions on budget and
improvement.

Contact us

For more information about how CIPFA Benchmarking
can help your organisation or to sign up today contact:
E: customerliaison@cipfa.org T: 020 7543 5600

‘ : I PFA The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accountancy

Registered office:
CIPFA Business Limited, 77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN
T:020 7543 5600 F: 020 7543 5700
www.cipfa.org

CIPFA Business Limited, the trading arm of CIPFA that provides a range of
services to public sector clients. Registered in England and Wales no. 2376684

C¥recycle




Agenda Item 13

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: PENSION BOARD
MEETING
DATE: 25 February 2016
COMPLIANCE REPORT - PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION
TITLE: (1) SUMMARY PERFORMANCE REPORT to 31 January 2016
(2) PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 4 MONTHS TO 31 January 2016
(3) TPR COMPLIANCE
WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:-

Appendix 1 Active members demographic as at 31 January 2016

Appendix 2  Late payers report — up to 31 December 2015

Appendix 3  Balanced Scorecard : KPI's - 4 months to 31 January 2016

Appendix 3A  Annex 1 & 2 Admin case workload status as at 31 January 2016
Appendix 4  Customer satisfaction — Feedback in the 4 months to 31 January 2016
Appendix 5 TPR — Data Improvement Plan — to 31 January 2016

1 THE ISSUE

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Pension Board of Performance Indicators
and Customer Satisfaction feedback for 4 months to 31 January 2016.

1.2 Further to the introduction of The Pension Regulator (TPR) Code of Practise 14 and
The Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping & Miscellaneous Amendments)
Regulations 2014 this report also includes progress on the Data Improvement Plan
plus level of employer compliance.

2 RECOMMENDATION
That the Pension Board notes:

2.1 Performance Indicators & Customer Satisfaction feedback for 4 months to 31 January
2016.
2.2 Progress on the Data Improvement Plan

Page 81



3. Trends in Membership

3.1 Appendix 1 provides a detailed breakdown of employer/member ratio and split
between whole time and part-time membership as well as a snapshot of individual
employer and member make up. Continued development of data reporting going forward
will enable further understanding of the demographic nature of employer type and
associated member make up as employers continue to evolve.

4. Late Payers Report

4.1 The Fund is required to monitor the receipt of contributions and report materially
significant late payments to the Pensions Regulator.

4.2 The Fund maintains a record of all late payments, showing the days late, the amount
of payment and reason for delay and whether the amount is of significance.

4.3  Appendix 2 reports late payers in the 3 month period to 31%' December 2015. There
were a small number of materially significant late payments in the reporting period.
However, the Scheme has taken mitigating action in each case to ensure employers are
aware of their responsibilities going forward.

5. Avon Pension Fund — Administration Performance

Balanced Scorecard detailing Key Performance Indicators for the 4 Months to 31°
January2016

5.1 The information provided in this report is based on the Avon Pension Fund’s Service
Level Agreement which falls in line with the industry standards set out by the LGPC
& used in CIPFA benchmarking. All standards fall within the regulatory guidelines set
out in The Occupational & Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information)
Regulations 2015 which require provision of information to members.

5.2 Full details of performance against target, in tabular and graph format, are shown in
Appendix 3. All reports are being reviewed as part of the Task Workflow Project
and it is expected that new and updated versions will be available for approval by
the Committee in June 2016.

6. Admin Case Workload

6.1 The level of work outstanding from tasks set up in the period (ltem C4 and
associated annex 1 & 2) in the 3 month period is reported in Appendix 3A by
showing what percentage of the work is outstanding. As a snapshot, at 31%
January 2016 there were 6234 cases outstanding of which 38.50% represents
actual workable cases and 61.50% represents cases that are part complete,
pending a third party response. All reports are being reviewed as part of the Task
Workflow Project and it is expected that new and updated versions will be available
for approval by the Committee in June 2016.

7. CUSTOMER SATISFACTION FEEDBACK IN 4 MONTHS TO 31St January 2016 —
Retirements

9.1 Appendix 4 reports on the customer satisfaction based on 50 questionnaires
returned from members retiring from both active and deferred status (out of a total

Page 82



of 299 questionnaires issued in respect of the reporting period). 100% of deferred
members rated the service as good or excellent, with 88% of actives rating the
service as good or excellent.

8 The pensions Regulator Data Improvement Plan

8.1 Initial testing as at 1 August 2015 of core data, against TPR’s requirement of 100%
completeness of data, identified 8887 queries, equating to 99.13% completeness of data.

8.2  There has been a net reduction of 1444 queries over the last quarter. This has mainly
been due to ongoing work to resolve missing casual hours from records, tracing and
payment of historical frozen refunds, tracing deferred member addresses as well as the
ongoing exercise from last year end to resolve missing starter and leaver forms from
employers.

8.3  With the initial year end 2016 spreadsheets all employers have been provided with a
list of their outstanding TPR queries with a request to investigate these as part of their year-
end preparation.

8.4  Summary of Data Improvement Plan Data as at 31 January 2016 is shown below
with a comprehensive breakdown attached in Appendix 5

Data type Cases New Completed | Outstanding | Completeness
brought cases in | in period of date as %
forward period of

membership

Actives 3348 209 1192 2365 99.50%

Deferreds 5082 138 547 4673 98.83%

Pensioners 339 9 56 292 99.83%

Dependants 72 6 11 67 99.75%

Total 8841 362 1806 7397 99.48%

8.5 Data improvement reports will be updated on a monthly basis and reported to
Committee quarterly. Reports will be developed to demonstrate work undertaken
on the correction of historic cases already identified and new cases identified during
each reporting period.

Page 83



9 EQUALITIES

9.1 No items in this Report give rise to the need to have an equalities impact

assessment.

10 CONSULTATION
10.1 None appropriate.

11 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION
111 There are no other issues to consider not mentioned in this Report.

12 ADVICE SOUGHT

12.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Divisional Director — Legal & Democratic
Services) and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - Business Support) have had
the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for publication.

Contact person

Geoff Cleak, Acting Pensions Manager Tel: 01225 395277

Background papers

Various Statistical Records

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative format

Page 84




Active membership demographic Appendix 1

Full-time records/members

Part-time records/members

P/T members with multiple records h 2587

PIT members with 1 record | 7157
P/ members I o7

o recorss vl |

Employer/active membership ratio by numbers

Number of employers with 5000+ members 2

Number of employers with between 1000 — 4999 members 5
Number of employers with between 100 — 999 members 23
Number of employers with 11 - 99 members 112
Number of employers with 0 - 10 members 90
Total 232

Employers/active membership ratio %
5 em2pl/<o)yers 1%
| °_—2 employers

Employers with
the following
number of
active
members:

m0-10
11-99

m 100-999
1000-4999
5000+

44%
112 employers

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



Late Payments as Percentage of total

Late Payers Report APPENDIX 2
Payroll Days | Cumulative . .
Employer Month late ocCasions Amount Significance Reason / Action
Bath Tourism October 2 1 3.272.30 Value / dgys late Clericsjl error. They have been reminded of their obligation to pay
not material. by 22™ of the month.

: : I Payroll provider supplied wrong payroll information. They have
Circadian Trust October 4 1 34,103.70 | Significant Value. been reminded of their obligation to pay by 29™ of the month.
Bristol Waste November 2 1 26,051.42 | Significant Value, New employer with proplems setting up'payrolll and payments
Company systems. January contributions were paid on time.

South West Grid for Value / days late ) . i ,
Learning November 2 1 4,794.06 not material. Misunderstood BACS timing. This has now been explained to them.
; i Cash shortage over Christmas. The matter has been discussed
The Park C t Significant d
L e rark Lommuniy | november 8 1 2,766.62 | D9 CAMLAAYS itk them and they have been reminded of their obligation to pay
& Centre late. b nd
& y 22 of the month.
5)
L Destination Bristol Novernber 17 1 7.672.40 Significant days | Administrative errors were prolonged due to Christmas & New Year
late. break. Systems are being put in place to avoid this in future.
Value / days late . - . .
Frampton Cotterell December 3 1 1,702.46 not material Misunderstood BACS timing. This has now been explained to them.
South West Grid for Value / days late ) . i ,
Learning December 3 2 4,794.06 not material. Misunderstood BACS timing. This has now been explained to them.
Bristol Waste December 4 5 20,561.71 | Significant Value, New employer had problems setting.up .payments sy;tems: These
Company are now resolved and January contributions were paid on time.
Total Days 45 105,718.73
Total Contributions in Quarter 28,911,000 0.37%

All late payers are contacted and reminded of their obligations regarding the timing of payments. Where appropriate they are advised on alternative, more
efficient methods of payment. Where material, interest will be charged on late payments at base rate plus 1% in accordance with the regulations.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



| PENSIONS SECTION ADMINISTRATION

Key Performance Indicators

APPENDIX 3 to Pension Fund Administration Report at 31 January 2016

Red Target for Actual
INDICATOR Amber | 2014/15 Actual 20?5/16 4 Months to Comments
Green 31/01/2016
A Customer Perspective
1 | General Satisfaction with Service - retirees' feedback G 97% 97% 94% 50 responses recived from 299 retirees in period - see Appendix 6
2a| Service Standards - Processing tasks within internal targets (SLA)
Deaths G 91% 92% 88% 15 of 17 Cases completed within target
Retirements G 89% 90% 85% 314 of 369 Tasks completed within target
Leavers (Deferreds) A 81% 75% 54% 677 of 1253 Tasks completed within target
Refunds G 82% 80% 75% 203 of 270 Tasks completed within target
Transfers In G 74% 75% 75% 29 of 39 Tasks completed within target
Transfers Out A 7% 75% 68% 66 of 97 Tasks completed within target
Estimates G 95% 90% 89% 717 of 787 Tasks completed within target
2b| Service Standards Processing tasks within statutory limits G 100% 100% 100%
3 | Number of complaints G Nil No complaints received in the period
4 | Pensions paid on time G 100% 100% All paid on time
5| Statutory Returns sent in on time (SF3/CIPFA) G n/a none due this period
6 | Number of hits per period on APF website G 55898/4658pcm 18,348 4587 per calendar month for reporting period
]
'&vising members of Reg Changes within 3 months of implementation n/a none this period
8 ESue of Newsletter (Active & Pensioners) 0 Yes Active member news letter issued December 2016
9 | ADBual Benefit Statements distributed by 31 August G 99.7% issued by 31st August 2015
©
B People Perspective
1 | % of new staff leaving within 3 months of joining 0%
. a) Short Term G 1.3% 3% 1%
2 |% Sickness Absence Ahead of corporate target of 5%
b) Long Term G 0% 2% 0%
C Process Perspective
o — - - -
1 | services actually delivered electronically G 12.1% 12.1% represents eligible users whg have signed up to My Pension Online.
10,337 members now have electronic access.
2 | a) Active membership covered by employer ESS G 72% 90% 75%
b) % of employers submitting data electronically G 58% 70% 60%
3 | % Telephone calls answered within 20 seconds G 97% 95% 98.7% 9160 calls, 9044 answered within 20 seconds
4 | Maintain work outstanding at below 40% G 30053 created <40% 38% 7855 created, 7359 cleared - see Appendix 5A Annex 1 & 2
27944 cleared
5 | Year End data receipt G 100% 2015/16 due by 30 April 2016
D Resource Perspective
1 | % Supplier Invoices paid within 30 day or mutually agreed terms G 89% 90% 91% Business Financial Services (inc Pensions).
2 | Temp Staff levels (% of workforce) G 0.74% 0.0%




2a

2b

Title How measured
CUSTOMER PERSPECTIVE

1 General satisfaction with service - retirees' feedback  questionnaire
Service Standards - Processing tasks within internal
targets (SLA)

Deaths (12 days)

Retirements (15 days)

Leavers - deferreds (20 days)

Refunds (5 days)

Transfers In (20 days)

Transfers Out (15 days)

Estimates (10 days)

Service Standards Processing tasks within statutory
limits

3 Number of complaints

4 Pensions paid on time

5 Statutory Returns sent in on time (SF3/CIPFA)

6 Number of hits per period on APF website
Advising members of Reg Changes within 3 months of

7 implementation

8 Issue of Newsletter (Active & Pensioners)

9 Annual Benefit Statements distributed by year end

PEOPLE PERSPECTIVE

% of new staff leaving within 3 months of joining
% Sickness Absence a) short term

% Sickness Absence b) long term

N

PROCESS PERSPECTIVE
1 a) Services actually delivered electronically
b) Services capable of delivery to members
2 a) Active membership covered by employer EDI
b) % of employers submitting data electronically
3 % Telephone calls answered within 20 seconds
4 Maintain work outstanding at below 75%
5 Year End data receipt
No. of errors (due to incomplete member data from
6 employers)

RESOURCE PERSPECTIVE

% Supplier Invoices paid within 30 day or mutually
1 agreed terms
2 Temp Staff levels (% of workforce)

Page 90



figure reported

% of respondents reporting service to
be "good", "excellent" or "average"

target  context

97% <0.8
92% <0.82
90% <0.8
75% <0.65
80% <0.7
75% <0.65
75% <0.65
90% <0.8
100% <0.9
0 >1
100% <0.9
100% <0.95
4000 pcm <3000
0% >0.1
3% >0.05
2% >0.04
10% >0.05
100% >0.75
90% >0.8
70% >0.6
95% >0.9
75% >0.8
100% >0.95
3% >0.05
90% >0.8
10% >0.2

Page 91

80%

82.00%
80%
65%
70%
65%
65%
80%

90%

90%
95%
3000

10%
5%
4%

5%
75%
80%
60%
90%
80%
95%

5%

80%
20%

97%

92%
90%
75%
80%
75%
75%
90%

100%
100%

100%
4000

o o

0%
3%
2%

10%
100%
90%
70%
95%
75%
100%

3%

90%
10%



Pension Fund Administration report: Appendix 3b

1 Website hits EZZ WEBSITE HITS
——TARGET
8000
7000

6000
5000

4000
3000
2000
1000

2 short-term
Sickness absence — ong-term

= == ST upper limit (3%)

5% e | T upper limit (2%)

4%

3%

2% -

1% -

. .
AT AF

OPHONES NOT
ANSWERED

W PHONES
5000 ANSWERED

4500
4000
3500
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000

500




Pension Fund Administration report: Appendix 3b

4

10,000
9,000
8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000

Number of open cases (columns)

1,000

Number of open cases

snapshot as at end of month
(with % of open cases that are outstanding)

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

- 0%

Total Cases
—a— % Outstanding

= + «Upper Limit

(saur)) Suipueisino sased uado jo a8bejuadiad

number of cases

Number of cases created and
completed by quarter

M cases created

E cases completed

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

Q3
2013/14

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2

2014/15 2015/16

Page 93




Admin Report: Appendix 7

Annex 1
Percentage of cases completed within target timescales (Q1-Q2 2015/2016)
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
M Retirements
40% # Deferred
30%
20% —
10% .
0% - -
NSOM SGLOS APF OTHERS
Annex 2
Percentage of Retirement Cases Completed Within Target Timescale
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
W 2011-2012
m2012-2013
50%
% ¥2013-2014
W 2014-2015
40% ¥ 2015-2016
30%
20%
10%
0%
BANES BCC NSOM SGLOS APF OTHERS
Annex 3
Percentage of Deferred Cases Completed Within Target Timescale
90%
80%
70%
60%
50% m2012-2013
m2013-2014
40% ¥ 2014-2015
W 2015-2016
30%
20%
10%
0%

BANES BCC NSOM SGLOS APF OTHERS

Page 94



Pension Fund Administration report: Appendix 4

Customer satisfaction (Jan- Mar 2015)

Responses to the question "Overall, how would you rate the service you received from Avon Pensio

Active members Deferred members

Number retiring 123 Number retiring 86
Questionnaires received 63 Questionnaires received 21
Response rate 51% Response rate 24%

M Excellent
[0 Good
M Average
O Poor

Page 95



n Fund?"

Page 96



Admin Reports - Appendices 5 and 6. Actives, Joiners and Leavers to 30th June

2015

38000

37000

36000

35000

34000

33000

32000

31000

30000

Appendix 5: ACTIVES

ACTIVES
— = = Linear (ACTIVES)

800

600

500

400

300

200

100

= == LEAVERS
e JOINERS

,,,,,,,,,, Linear (LEAVERS)
---------- Linear (JOINERS)

Page 97




Graph Format
Pensions Admin Report Balanced Scorecard Appendix 3B - GRAPHS only @30 September 2014

WEBSITE HITS

8000

7000

6000 /\ —~\ [\'A
5000 x;,/ = -\--/ \ _________ I \’\ /
4000 \ e ettt l‘ ----- k— ;[ -

3000
2000
1000
0
4‘/ O<‘f4’°1,0<~ %. "% %, %, 47 5, D, "/fff % % Yo, % %5, % @ 4@% "/f%o %, %% "% %, 0»4?9 %, % 7<3>“%b
8% 0,5, %% \’e"e 0 @85 %% ~’e~’e<>’ %% %% % 085 5% 0 % 2y N V0, % 2
2 SICKNESS ——SICKNESS ST ——SICKNESS LT

6.00%

5.00%

4.00%

3.00%

2.00%

0.00% - ———r—————— —_ —_—

Yoo 80, % Yo, %00, " B, Y %“o o/‘/oeo%o 064744700/‘/0%%%0@“ 647970479" Yy %,
2% 7 %, 205 %0 8o L0 By Y, 25, 8.5, 8000, %0 A 24, %

¢0z669¢¢¢z99 @eb@eééﬁge@ﬁéeﬁévé@ézyv

"°‘z ",

3 TELEPHONE CALLS RECEIVED

5000

4500

4000

3500

3000
2500
2000
1500

1000

500

o : : :
‘7%’& Opfs¢ OQC‘ 69 Q 47 @ 0 O/ (70 . OQ‘ %L G”) G 47 % (/ (// J70 o, (}: /kol,o 9 5’6 @ 70» 479/, (/,; {7%’ \S‘
e \’e’e % % 08205 \’e\’e"o’ % \’e"a‘ A O R A o G,

Page 98




Graph Format

Pensions Admin Report Balanced Scorecard Appendix 3B - GRAPHS only @31st July 2014

4 WORKABLE CASES & OUTSTANDING CASES " OUTSTANDING CASEs
3000 == \WORKABLE CASES
2500
2000
1500
1000

500 -
0 — T — T — T T T T T T T T T )
e ’j 2 Z % ’f g e «:’5 Z «Jz"’ SACL R N «§°¢56¢4§”j;’”2"*~5°«§/~’3°2%«7
5 WORKABLE CASES PERCENTAGE

100.00%
90.00%
80.00%
70.00% -
60.00% -
50.00% -
40.00%
30.00% -
20.00% -
10.00% -

0.00%

Vo5, P T, %05, %5 T, o, @fo,,o,v(, % % %, 20 95 % %,

'y(/ . (}« %L 9 @647 @ (/,) '7%}

9,
B e R A S h Je} &% e e e o e e S0,
6 NEW CASES CREATED & COMPLETED CREATED TASKS
4000 = = = COMPLETED TASKS
3500

3000 /\
2500 I\ I\‘
A ~d Y NA Vl\/ \/V\ /\/

LN (g e
1500 /n) 3
rd
\/’\/
1000 {===m N\
500
0

Y 5, O Yo, %, 47 @j/(/,, o/\]'?,, ,oOQ»/VOI,O@ %, " %, ,0,%//% (’/\;4‘@0 0%{%{/0@ %, @6%70»479}"0 (//\74(@
»/J Y, \7] \7]79 \79 Je‘fe Je{e EARARIRS 4) ?(){9 e J"){P ,;\9\{,) AN IS ;‘919 ) ]?,;7 % Y Y ]? ",

Page 99




Graph Format

Page 100



Pension Fund Administration report: Appendix 3A

Case Workload
A Number of open cases ) Total Cases
snapshot as at end of month —=— % Outstanding
(with % of open cases that are outstanding) = « =Upper Limit
7,000 100%

Number of open cases (columns)

6,000

5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

(sautj) Buipueisino sased uado jo a8bejuasiad

0%

Annex 2

number of cases

10,000
9,000
8,000
7,000 -
6,000 -
5,000 -
4,000 -
3,000 -
2,000 -
1,000 -

Number of cases created and

completed by quarter

M cases created

cases completed

2013/14

Ql
2014/15

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3
2015/16

Rl

Qs

Page 101




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Appendix 4
Customer satisfaction (Oct 2015 - Jan 2016)

Responses to the question "Overall, how would you rate the service you received from
Avon Pension Fund?"

Active members

Number retiring 170
Questionnaires received 35
Response rate 20%

Active members

Average
3%
1

Deferred members

Number retiring 129
Questionnaires received 15
Response rate 11%

Deferred members
Average Poor

0% 0%

Excellent
73%
11

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



TPR Improvement Plan: Data at 31 Jan 2016

APPENDIX 5

Data type Cases New Completed | Outstanding | Completeness
brought | cases in period of date as %
forward | in of

period membership

ACTIVES

Total = 36730

Addresses 374 54 64 364 99.00%

Forename 3 0 0 3 99.99%

Surname 0 0 0 0 100%

Date of birth 2 0 0 2 99.99%

NI number 4 56 6 54 99.85%

Title 0 2 2 0

Sex mismatch | 2 12 1 13 99.96%

Format of 17 18 23 12 99.97%

hours

Date joined

Fund missing 0 0 0 0 100.00%

Payroll ref

missing 76 58 12 122 99.67%

Leaver forms

missing 1068 9 152 925 97.48%

Leaver forms in | Starting

error 2/16 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Casual hours

missing 1633 0 884 749 97.96%

Starters in error | Starting
2/16 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Starters 169 0 48 121 99.67%

missing

Total 3348 209 1192 2365 99.50%

DEFERREDS

Total = 40101

Addresses 4127 138 431 3834 90.44%

Forename 9 0 1 8 99.98%

Surname 0 0 0 0 100.00%

Date of birth 3 0 1 2 99.99%

NI number 56 0 54 2 99.99%

Title 0 0 0 0 100.00%

Sex mismatch | 0 0 0 0 100.00%

Format of 0 0 0 0 100.00%

hours

Date joined

Fund missing 3 0 3 0 100%

Historic refunds | 884 0 57 827 97.94%

Total 5082 138 547 4673 98.83%

Page 105




PENSIONERS

Total = 24630

Addresses 328 7 49 286 98.84%
Forename 10 0 6 4 99.98%
Surname 0 0 0 0 100.00%
Date of birth 0 0 0 0 100.00%
NI number 0 2 1 1 99.99%
Title 0 0 0 0 100.00%
Sex mismatch | 1 0 0 1 99.99%
Total 339 9 56 292 99.83%
DEPENDANTS

Total = 3760

Addresess 43 1 3 41 98.91%
Forename 1 0 1 0 100.00%
Surname 0 0 0 0 100.00%
Date of birth 0 0 0 0 100.00%
NI number 28 4 7 25 99.34%
Title 0 0 0 0 100.00%
Sex mismatch | 0 1 0 1 99.99%
Total 72 6 1 67 99.75%

Page 106




Agenda Item 14

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD - AVON PENSION FUND

MEETING | 25" February 2016 AGENDA
DATE: ITEM

NUMBER
TITLE: Risk Register & Internal Audit Update

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 Pension Fund Risk Register

Appendix 2 Action Plan

Appendix 3  Summary of Pension Fund Internal Audit Work
Appendix 4  Draft Internal Audit Report on Pensions Governance

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The purpose of this report to present the current position of the Avon Pension
Fund Risk Register and associated Action Plan for review by the Board and an
update on Internal Audit activity.

1.2 The report and its appendices are important for the Board to consider in the
context of their understanding of the performance and management of the fund.

2 RECOMMENDATION
That the Board

2.1 Notes the report and comment on the Risk Register and Audit Plan for 2016/17.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are no direct implications related to the Pension Board in connection with
this report aside from any additional audit review costs requested by the Board.

4 REPORT

RISK REGISTER

4.1 The Risk Register follows the format of the Council’s risk register for each service.
It identifies the significant risks that could have a material impact on the Fund in
terms of value, reputation, compliance or provision of service and sets out the
action taken to manage the risk.

4.2 The Risk Register is reviewed regularly by the pension management team. Risks
identified cannot be eliminated but can be treated via monitoring.

Page 107



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

410

The risks identified fall into the following general categories:

(i) Fund administration & control of operational processes and strategic
governance processes and TPR compliance — mitigated by having
appropriate policies and procedures in place, use of electronic means to
receive and send data and information

(i) Service delivery partners not delivering in line with their contracts or SLAs
— mitigated by monitoring and measuring performance

(iif) Financial loss due to payments in error, loss of assets due to investment
strategy and/or managers failing to deliver required return, fraud or
negligence of investment managers or custodian — mitigated by processes
to reconcile payments, regular review of strategic return and manager
performance and annual review of investment strategy, robust legal
contracts to protect against fraud & negligence

(iv)Changes to the scheme — mitigated by project plans with defined
milestones and responsibilities, progress reviewed periodically by
management team

(v) Increasing political pressure to reform scheme structure and governance
frameworks and direct investment decisions — mitigated by having well
defined investment policies and by engaging with the government through
the consultation process

The Fund continues to invest significantly in systems and resources to ensure the
risks are managed effectively and resilience is built into the service. The
arrangements in place are supported by external and internal audit reviews.

The register and associated Action Plan are attached at Appendix 1 and 2.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit reviews the fund as part of their overall plan across all activities
within the Council and there is no specific audit plan for the fund as only 30 days
review work takes place. Normally one or two audit reviews occur each year and a
summary of work undertaken in the last three years is attached at Appendix 3.

During 2015/16 two audit reviews have been carried out —
Pensions Governance — See Appendix 4 for Draft Report
Pensions IT Controls (Altair System) — WIP to be finalised by March 2016.

There are no significant issues or areas of concern at this stage in relation to any
Internal Audit work carried out in 2015/16 however for information a copy of the
draft report of Pensions Governance is attached at Appendix 4 for information.

As part of preparing its audit plan for 2016/17 consultation has taken place with
various senior managers alongside a broad risk assessment against key risks
facing the Council.

At present the draft plan contains the following two reviews relevant to the Avon
Pension Fund and work of the Board —

- Pensions Governance (Remaining elements not covered in 15/16 review of Code
of Practice 14, i.e. Governance, Whistleblowing, Disputes & Breaches)

- Pensions Payroll

Page 108



4.11 The Board is asked to comment on any specific audit activity which they would
like to be considered for the 2016/17 prior to it being submitted to the Council’s
Audit Committee in March for approval. Costs for any additional work over and
above that identified in para 4.9 would need to be met from the budget for the
Board and a separate report on the agenda details this budget.

RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management
guidance and there are no significant or material risks to report.

6 EQUALITIES

6.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been undertaken and there
are no significant issues to report.

CONSULTATION

7.1 Report and Issues have been subject to consultation with the S151 Officer and
Strategic Director of Resources.

Contact person Jeff Wring, Head of Audit West 01225 477323

Background papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Page 109




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



2k bL 9L02720/51

PUNZ UOISUOH UCAY Z1Z08L0Z\PUNS UoisuBd UOASIONNOSIY Hoddng sy

joAs) Buipun; 8y] 8oNpa. pue 8jel UoRNGIIUGY|
19A0|dwa pue sai|igel| [[2J9A0 Suisesioul
veld 19beuepy
w3 Q) i $30Jn093Yy S|UBLLISBAU| A8y 80-INM-LO
enlewsio Pepun4 1oN Jeast LH ] uonaY I0NAIIS suojstied
10 $esjuRIend A1B)BUOW JUSIAIYNS INOYIIM pund
Jemol 1oedwn ‘pooytie)| pe Y u_..t o =
2B 5102 UBr perendn XSy T 565yl pue TAGwed ERG|  |
pue puny uoisued 0 suonebyigo yim Aldwos
000'00LF popung 10N - ¢ :o_uu“uu_u_tow 20ja0g 186BUB| SUOISUSY Ay €i-das-z1 o) aunie} & o) Guipeal Siskoldwa aweus
©3 000'0L3 : 1e e608IMOUY /§82.n0Sa1 B1ENb3PE JO ¥981| 6L Y
£10Z 1dag meu 500
) pes| pinoo suonedliqo Jo yoea.q (unfieniis
(suoisuad) (E1BN]28 [XBU Ul PINUSP! 8q Ajejewnin Bifiedm)
. un. P 3 ueld £02JNOSIY JaBeuepy LI £1-dag-z} SIU1) POIETS JBPUN/ISAC 8Q PINCD 1I01}8p Mjiaiis
(12 QE00.00LDY, ESPHOIION Uolay 8alnies sweshs  soueuly o(diWe puE MOlJ YSed Wie) 110yS BEensE
1098 108dwW| uonESIdW) B1E| JO BNJEA Ul 1991100l 28 BLifid
Biupod Buik L0 SI0N §
JeubiH £10Z 1deg palepdn yuL| D) 0 Siepod Buihordug wios SRonG e Y
ueld eoue|dwod 1P
JeBeuB)y SUCISUBY SN 80-INF-10 IAB/IEUILILD pesodwi Seuld Uonesijdw|
w3 01100'0043| Pepund ON jeoil ¢ UOJ2Y BIIAIRS ¥ (g6 (spiEpuEIS pue SOpOd SagL Bulpniout)
19 U019310.d} B18Q YIIM 30UBIIWOD UON | SO¥
= B10Z pUs o1P
812p uosldwod OHWH PUE puny Usemaq
ueid ANIIGQRI IO JO UOREI|[19UCTB) © xerepun
g s OTLeD dHl $90IN0O3} Jebeue)y SuoIsue, A0y Si-Bny-0) 0} JuBWaINbe) ‘9107 Ay WOl 8Anoeys
w30} LO0'00LI| PepuUNd ION =L {8 (] 13 e uopoy e9jAIes L] W d il e e
oY) BUIMO||04  BS12J8X3 UONEI|IOU008Y gD *
pejusweldw :
Aiin) 9q o} uB|d UONIE = YSII MU | Anpau susrsutd j20:00u Bulutiin PUns 1O ¥BH| LSY
SIBJSUEL} YINS JO} pasn suodWNSSE (elenioe|
l ay) 10eye Asw 11 Moy ©) se Allue|o ou 184
LoBeupy Sy 1N SI9JSUEJ) O) NP BAIEBBU BI0W 8W008Q)|
| uejq PINCO MOYSED  UONEN|BA ELOZ BU] U] paLunsse|
w = y 2 |
ueyy ..w«uuo._o EepUndieN ool ae _ L € UOlOY ARG sones mw__w%m_”w):_ s si-des-o¢ uey} A3oINb BJow pUN) SL} SSINYELL )i 1ey] sl B
| d S13J6} UONAO SIY) O SSBUBANSBIIE BYI JINPS)|
_ Aew sanieuad xe1 ybnoylly  SJO1 3U) O
Aldde (im siyL g5 ebe woy ,jod, uoisusd Jeyy
Y102 980 %Sl MON I melpyiim o) edosd smojie uohe|siBa) uoisuad| Gox
JoBeueiy sa1poq Bulkoidws a8y} £q pied sejes
i e ue|d uonNQUIUOd ey Joeye AleAnedeu pInod SIy ] |
Uik papul 3 s n|
uey sajeai LR wor |z ey e | e ooy wojieg | TONOOM S SR soinr-io ORI, RN B3 U) 100 105 S “SBURIE|
sued £ 190U Of OIIHNE TUEID] IUBIIRAL
| BABIAE 91 SHE) BUML UBISUOS iy BUY
e
-uois1oep Ul Aejsp & 9q Aew aJey) ‘paulen
Wiy | ueld a(doa, B ”._wow:m._cmmb: pLT 80-INr-10 Ky o10 Mau ayp iun
ueyj J3LIIn popund 3oN jeaiL L] L4 2 £ uody 3DAIS ! d 1 v | ™ UONo8[e-B1 BIEB) SIBQUIBW SWOS dSNesaq Aulew
pebueyoun JoedwWw! pooy!eNl|| suoistied S8SIIR ¥SH 1Y) SINILLIOD PUN4 UOISUSY
1eubiH 510Z uer vm_nva: .v_w_w _ UOAY UIUIM SBDpIemouy pue ANNUNUOD JO ¥3@7| G2y
[ TSNP T 0} BN
5110 pung 3y) JO 1S8I81UI 153G BY] Ul SUOISISISP,
w3 i ue|d p_— mcu_muwm_ - -dox S)BW JOU S0P SN0 sucheondw| :ebueya
uey) 198D F nd 0N eail ct _h_. | Uiy edIAes s3aunosy . pue soueuld =R €l-deszL 8010Jus 0) 918(S163] ABW JuswuieAob ebueyd
118 SIRENR 10 PEH I05 U 1ENG0) BARY {0U B30D PN I TudacaD
18ybiy 1oedwil pooyiel 109.1p pue i
13m0 §L0Z uer pejepdn ysiy ) R Bsweyos wiojes o 3:nsseud [gan)jod Buiseslouj Nvm..;
30 S 1] [ 1
wedu ’ 3 ovd o] powed i usy4 uonoy veid - e .
tefoueu)y o ..!.._._. _..Ew....on _ﬂ-..!ﬁ..-....a.-..un._ suopsy sBauwy oL #3jA1g 10 amiodion | uoRaY eSIAIRS fuoBeied o ,n_w i = o ) 3
0 9jpos #0 1M Juaund % ) §4Uf7 jo £)eq 10 smsodion
ABeyag
BUBIL
_ 91-qe-g1 1pesepdn ojeq _ 9L-g33-54 jea|n tommvhﬂ._mhgog N_..__

suoisuad|

pung UoIsUe UoAY ZLZ09LOZ

Page 111



Zv ¥l aL0ZROISL PUN UCIBUOG UOAY Z1Z09HOZIPUNS UOKBUSY LGRS IOHNOS T Hoddns

E[Ep er@wonal]
¥ y Kjeujue ue|d ; i
0000043 I { waoinos9y 1abUBI SUOISUSY AR £1-das-zZL 10 3jEIN008U Uonesidw| siskoidws
g Papund JoN jeoiL S e #)] Up) ue|d 32IA10S uofoy IS
©3 000043 5102 By paepdn Wiy = b= 3 i) ueid 22| ’ BWBYSS WO BIep dUo.oels uo souspusdsq | 2
] joRIUCY A19A008Y ueld suoisuad
0000043 : Joyaes)Q - 98OI A0 L] JeBeuE| Sucisusy Ay €i-dog-z) 1uswAed u Aefsp ‘Eep o uondnuios fenusiod
. nd JoN woiL | & £ yues|q v Aoy 1 I )
©1 000°0LF s : ue|d Aynupues esauieng oy e21AIes I ul (e} 'elep 0) paau
‘elep Jo s50| (enuejod uoneoidw| sweisAs|
5102 By petepdn sl Bl ) ) A1lIQISS3298 0 %0B| IO 8In|e) SWajsAS Fj
(a1qessiwsad 3q 10U pinom sjesse pinbili)
papusWe ag o] easy |m ABejens Jueund)|
“10}S8AU) [IB121 UIBWSL §)  IC|SBAU
Ji BSIeAIUN UBWISBAU] PI)ILIS
Jebeuepy E1J8]113 138U 3M 12Y) SOUSPIAS 0] PI8U 'SNIE)S|
PRpuna L3 papund JoN RLLNR Seid oo:u__M“.ao S)UBLLSeAU| Hery SL-AON-L} |euoISs8j0Id o) J08[@ JI @sueldWed JO §1S0Y
ueyj JLIID Uopdy edIAIRS 7 leba suoisueg ‘sjesse B rex 10988
peoioj sjqissed suonesiidw| JOISSAUI [enel 0]
|eucissejoid Wwoyy snies s,pung ayy ebueyd (M
eanoelpayl ZL0Z Eﬂ::ﬂ—v | wol) sAnseys
(1] 9AN281IQ SIUSLUNASU| [e10UBUL U1 SIOXEI)
PO 5 61 VIR ORI 1) G E;?ﬁitﬁ:ﬁcﬂrﬂcﬂﬁ
ueld
' Beug|y suoisueg A8y 1-090-64 pue E1ep Jo SN pue JUBLUSBRUBL JMUGjHaY|
000'0L342PUN |  PAPUNZ JON sl ebeuewl wosL ooy 3019 SRS e "
0} 6jqe os ss8201d BUIOBUO MEN = Aing spiema) oAOW SB Wil JBLO L ajR | |
Buleq s1@ssE 0) BNP 3PE) 0) ANjIgeul o BEES-
ueld JoBeuep Jo sso} ybnoiy) ABeren:
w3 930JN08IY SIUBWISBAU| PETH gl-dag-z1L joedwl |euswineq suoned
un. FLIYTR |
uBYy 193D pepaiey uopay salniag suoisuag o 1AUS [0JUOD pUB 1
1jdd 18U)0 puB UBIP
S1eBRUBL JUBWISSAUI JO 3SI BOUBLIOAOD
= Palioadns 16y
w ' un. 3l se9)j0d ¥Q¥ dO8 832UN08dY JeBrUR Suoisuag Ay 80-INC-10 sI pung Aq pasn Wa1sAs 1ey) ysiy uonesidw|
13 N4000013]  PEPURIIN ‘ uopay 20l J31ddns 81em)jos UOISUH JO 3Nz | LIy
E ueid I 98Q)/AON WOy SI8QUINU BUIYB]S Ul 95B810Ul
000'0L349pun | papuny JoN jeo) € uopoY 391AIRS §92inosay sobeue)y suoisusg ] si-Bnv-or pejoedxs Ut 6UNINSS) Yieg Ul 3INSO[D 89140
811USD JIAID LI 90BdS 8oL PeoNpaY SINEE

suswebuee Jajsuel) OQ o1 §Q Buliepisucd
Siequuew UO 19edwi 128110UI UB S| 8.8y |
1910 pUB GG PEBE SIBNPIAIPUI 10) SOWBY S
0Q uo Anngixs|s J91ea.6 Bulieyo swiosel
SUOISUSY  SUOISUBY Ul B3104Q B WOp33Jd | 6.

u
w303 100'00L3| Papund ION FLEYTR i 3 :n.«q«-o_“; 195 FETNEY JeBeueyy suoisusd FLIN] S51-8ny-0L

Page 112

5.8 L) 00ans

01 pauinbas $60Jn0s31 ‘sluswAed Ajucw
veld SnSJeA swins dwin) jo JuswAed yBnoiy) Mol
w30} 100'00L3| PIpPUNY JON ELUIT 3 aojaleg 1eBeue|y suoisued PO ] s1-Bny-0L ysen uo joedw) :suchesiidwy uone|nbes siyy
UORAY BaIAIRS Jepun 2|q1bie aq Aew seuoisued OO0Y PUNCIY|
wns dwn| e 0} paINWWO? 3q ues JuswAied

ul suoisusd |lews  199(0.Jd LONEINWWOD [BIALL | 8tY

w3 urd ﬂmr_m 1susd) - - psisenbel se punj uoisuad 0) SWoY|
umyj se)EID Popund JoN jeoiL € uopSY BOIAIRS seainoasy e MN mcwm_mcm:_ aoR 80-33q-1t0 JuBWISBAU| 1O/ pue Sidioulid Jo uimas ay) Aejep
TehS B 4 7 1ey sened18IUNOS BY] 18Y) PUNd UOISUS JO
1184ea Lo 110unog auU) AQ peiseAUl USeD ay) 1o
DEALIPG ) JUBLUURL DR OOjasD|
. ) 0] Ajlige s,pun4 8U) 1914158) PNOS SIYL 1xRIeW
000 om_rw papung JoN RLIITR 1B ueld 9rdoag ssebeuep wea) |y Aoy B80-INr~10 Alisuoibas ygers yons Jo A|ddns Joys|
©1 000’013 ueRy ealnles 2y} UAIB Je)s JUBLWIISBAU! 1O [e2Iuyos] pa|Is
L Aereudoidde )In1v91 0} 3|qeun s pund 3y [ 8Zy
| selpoq Bulfodure ay)
| | Aq pied sa1e) UON; 100 3Y] 199Ye AjeAnebau
- 4 JON ®a) n " | -3 (3 ueld $20.N0sdY mdpﬂﬂm._“‘_mmm_\mc_ pETH 801N L0 su. ﬁ-”_ﬂhwh._zh):_ méah.__mw:_ e vw._:voh
papun4 ol i | i an ! 1yoe 0] |18} SNy} pU
uey} Jaeus | _ UQIY adAIIS suorsuisg iBejens s & pund
3Y) 9SNED PINOD SIY] SYJeWYosueq JIsy] BASIYOE
1emo] 1oed W ipooyIeN) 0) |18} S18SSE 8Y] 656BUBLI O] PUN4 UOISUSH UOAY
JeybiH 510z uer pejepdn Xs| ) Ao ide sl 3 oo P47 |
i LEE | B 1 H 1
BpOped
39_...«_-.__..“ " woedun SuB)S VoMY JO BMTmS sﬁ -N..mz um__._.u._ S_E_Mmo..wﬁu& - _.o_E“uHEom e P 2Myunpoddo susiBoy
ferousuly ueun) to imusunuod ® Ayunpoddopiny 101914 ue paseju3 3120 uopdposed| N
10 9[wos o smms ueLn) oy a) U 40 S)I=Ra 10 opvsodion
FawiL IS FHE WeARa

pUN uoisuad UoAY Z1.Z09LOZ



2z vL 9102Z720/51

PUN UOIBUOS LOAY Z|.Z09L0Z\PUNS LOIUBY LOAISIONNOSIY Hoddng

EEFEES

u (suoisusd) UYsSED pun) ucisuad 198.1105Ul UE Ul 1[NS8i
W30} 100'00L3| Papund JON bLUITR =ld $22UN0EIY Jebeuspy ASY 60-23Q-10 msiyl  weisAs Bundiasss swosur ey) ybnouy;
USRDY 2|AIS sweisfg ¥ s5ueUIg Junosoe Yueq punj uoisuad 3Y) O} pS1BA0| (2|
Alereinsoe Jou e.e S3lucL puny uoisusd 8y
L Lot
10 %2z 0> - Yiuow Jad siaquisw o Sjumuded
3 seauy Aoy uejd enbeys mon) enbeus dg apew suswied
000°0L3 43pun Ppapund JoN jeouy uejg AUNujUOY sseuleng | UODY @JIAIRS meainosn #abeuep suorsusd s SGRGI0 1 oiuled b suonesrinues Buineso)
t@guiew w ATSE VORRIL| PUng USRI
Aq pasn 8o1aies [8150d Aq LDl naEnpe)
TSI [BUOREINTSI
sanssi A1suldiosip ‘soueldwwoo-uou o} ssuly
' ueld - d Ppue S¥H
ha%anwa—-.uu PoPUN4 JON jeall uopay 8aIAles aidoag sisbeusy weal iy e ei-doszl 10 10edsa1 Ul $31d1j0d 912I0dI0D PUB SIOPIO|
£10Z J2quia1des pesiAsl sysl Buipuzis 'saoi12e1d JO S8PO2 §,[I2UNOD U1 YIIM|
BB BOUIGILOT - YR MOU AldwWoD 01 S{IB] SAIASS BU] 18Ul HSl B S) YL
e ueld ulejuiew o} A1iiqeul pug AIsAlep 991A18s Jood Ul
ooua.”.cﬂm.e——uu papund joN wmaL uoljdy MJAIAG SduMes JsBeusy suoisuad A 60-das-o¢ BuUn|Nsa. SUONEIO8AXS / SPEBU JBWOoSNS 3Y) UO|
SNDOJ JOU SOOP BIIAIBS BY} JBY] ¥SU € SI 8.8y |
ueld S[9SSE pun3 uo|
0000013 val $301N090Y JoBeuep sucisusd sy 80-INr-10 Joedwl UOKBII| Jous3 4o pney
01 000'043 FSRERSIEN el uoRay BINAIS 1 Bun|nsal Jo118 Ul S)uBWAEd Ajuspl 0) einjied
TSOEUE 600Z WY
000'0043 papund joN 10011 e 8:.__«_““.3 swawiseny| Aory so-Inr-1Lo (104) UONIBWIOJU JO WOPSBIZ 3} JO SIS Y]
©} 000°0LY ajeiodioy % 1eba7 SUOISUS, 18DUN JO] PeXSE LONeWIoI epiacid 0] 3Jniz4
d g} =t
Jabeuey slequew pue sieholdwa
000'013 42puUn pepund joN 11 e6BuBLL FLOINR ooy salAIeg $32Jn0sY suolejey 21and ASRY ¥1-290-61 0} suo 1o psau pue
0] POPEBU UONEIIUNWLIOS v i B DAL S1J UCNEDIUNWWOD Y _.._outso\,oo [enuso Aq
BU B EOuTL ol s des 1503 sdedwe o uok )
m suoisuad Jo JuawAed uou Ajqissod
ol JsBeuepy PUB UMBIPISAO BUISG JUNODOE YUEQ BY) UI JNSS)
wi30)L00'00L3| POPUNY ION Jeaul € uopoy hM_ B 202IN08ARY SiuewiseAul L] 60-990-10 lmSIyL pung i os pled suolNgUILED Ul
i suolsuad LaaNEds © ¢f 9Np 07080 ARuDu B uo suoisued
Aed 0) yses ybnous BABY 10U S| 340U} %SIY 3
Buunew si 8jijosd moyyses punj uoisued 8y | bM —
w00 Bdl —
yym asuelidwod UON pung Uoisuad o) abewep e
000'001L3 ueld (euoneyndey sebieys yueq pue diyspiey
So0aior pepund joN FLIITR £ ooy eOINIAS ajdoag sJieBeuely Wes) |y ARy 8O INr-1O \ o [e))
ss900,d Ul a l ©
SIS £ /1S11e198dS LIM LeIS (0 92uasqy | 9Ly DI
2p05 Y1 UM 8oUBIdWoo|
uoN Apdwoud pied Jou ase sjuewAed
seasy Aoy ueld 186BUBJ SWOISAS §ysU [euonendey  peAelep ale sjuawhed!
000'0L343puUn | PIpUN4 JON eaiL a__ uejd fynupuo) ssauleng | ooy eaIAIRS aidoag ® sluswhed o sc-inr-1o uoisued J1 $86Jeyo yueq aiqissod pue swejqosd,
(mo)) yseo I, Aew I
$8LIBSD U]IM 39BLOIU| 10 WAISAS SOVE 1O
3Jn|ie) Jo asnevaq uoisued Jo JuewAed psheRQ | LY
f Tk Cuneede
000'0043 = ue|d S1'S[041U0D [BUIRILI JO WeISAS S puUNd BY) 18Y)
©1000'043 EEa RN wouL ¢ ¢ uopjay BDJAIRS $9oInosy #eBeuB suoisusg AR soinr-io 22UBINSSE JUspuBdspUl BAIBDS) JOU Op S3Ipeq
BuiAo|dius pue SONILLLICD PUNZ UOISUSH UOAY 80|
Bp0D Hd L Yim A)dwos o) 8injie) pue SuoIsIosp
o ue|d pawIojul 8yBW 0) UORBLWIIOI JO )oe| suoneel
i3 ok boo'coL ]l pERUDd oM BE=AL i uolaY B3RS ERRISHSHSIS JoBeusy suojsuad = SOIQIEL0 21gnd Jood ¥siJ [guoljginde. - uonesiidw|
Yyim A[9AIN28Y8 31201UNWLWOD 0] __mu__how_-
Hdl WoJj auly [enusjed pue uohensiuiwpeew
ueld soueyduwon s)yeueq Aed 'Ajyou o} A1np Asoiniers|
w30 100'0013| PepunyioN masL i 10Jju0D gy L o3 yuIT ooy B9IAISS 8 _.umﬂ JebeuBp Suoisusd A9y 8o-Inr-Lo Jo useasq L sabueys
] - N Auou o) seipog Buikoidwa jo 3.n|ie) Ag pasneo
‘spioogel diysiequisw A|swWiy PUB 8)BINJE!
UlBUIEW 0} 8P0D M| Yim A|dwod o) ainjied | 40y
. uelg @oueydwon Jebeuely SwWaisAs
000'0L349pUN |  PIPUNL JON LT ] xeRy ei-dag-zL
u @9 Bar Al
ooy 83l1AleS ?ebay g SjuelwAed ssaquIBW pue SIaAo[dua O] pasao)
£10z 1deg pa1Bpdn ysu il SESE] EAEE [ 8l 0] g&?ﬂ-ﬁgm_g
(3 I S N [ ]
' Spolieg = =
oedut e e ARy poued ueld uopOY ue|d
w i
jouBuld IN!_ “u_ susig uﬂ“u‘-ni ebauny L sajeg 10 Ariodio) | uoRay sojAeS faoBeed o L“.h_o}ax &a-n.....ERno A 19y9)Bay !
10 9pB0S Uy jueuny 0 o ey —— T, o AR poseul 9jEQ uopdusseq| IN
[T BIGTE FEiy jueang

PUN4 UOISUaY UCAY Z1.Z09LOZ



vl 9102051

pungj uaisusd LOAY Z1Z09LOZIPUNS UOIIUBY UOAVISIOHNOSIY L S

ue| 3)ep @Aow Aq jguoneledo
000'013 J9pun Papund 10N ELUEN volow hu_?_om eotAleg |5iebruR) WeS] |1y AEIH pL-tep-p) Kiing 00 m:ﬂﬂ%wﬂko_wwﬁ »EEM\T_». ol Mmuuuw
'3Jom O} sAejep Sesned erow [e2isAyd ‘pekelep
©AOW 1BY) ¥SIE 10Z 19qUUISAON £q SE0IY0
102 980 d3SO10 119UNCY MeU ) BUIAOW BIIAISS |SAOW SO |t |
—— a3SOTO - sequisly pue sisAoidus o)
ueid iy » uolBLLIOJul-SIL 'pednpa) edlales jo Ajljenb ‘s|tey
wi3 o} 100'00L3| PepuniION eal) ooy 9IRS 900IN0Y ) puB 82UBLI4 A8y c1-des-zZL AARONPOId ONEAYALL SOIAIGS BURSXS JONIOP
SSOUISNE 40 PR 0] $8DIN0SB. 4O }28| JO SeN||8) UonEusLUSidW]
£10Z %80 J3S010) juealyubls o) pes| swWeyss ey) o) ssbueyd nu_‘m.L
z
soedin = g poussd uejg orioy ueid G hihiodso) | ummse
: ferouEuLy wang vo - A = i | P et ] IR fGumddopens | soxers | wopaenz swg wopdiiosog| Iy
o9 FIogey Dadingy 0o, A car © @ BT o wesg 10 wiwaodson ; . . RS
pudil

pun4 Uoisusd UOAY ZLZ09L0Z

Page 114



20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Pensions
Liz Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

Data Entry Action Plan

2
'§ Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner Impéoyr:ent Implementation
8 c
g 2
] g _
Systems failure or lack of accessibility to systems. Policies in place: (i) SLA with B&NES IT for
rot | o1 Implication: potenlial loss of data, need to re- Treat corporate systems (i) SLA with Heywood for Pensions 31-Mar-16
process data, fall in productivity, potential pensions system (iii) APF DR policy (iv) BENES Manager
R01.1 corruption of dala, delay in payment of pensions BCP
Daily back up of pensions system limits loss of Payments &
02 Treat |[data, re-processing of data. Tested periodically (on- Systems 31-Mar-16
going) Manager
Rely on B&NES systems of conirol and firewalls to Payments &
03 Treat |prevent virus altacks Systems 31-Mar-16
Manager
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
Dependence on electronic data from scheme Internal and /or external audit to review scheme Pensions
R02 | 01 |employers. Implication: inaccurate or incomplete Treat |employer processes. 31-Mar-16
R02.1 data. Manager
Employers are trained on use of electronic data Pensions
02 Treat |submission by Fund staff, Benefits Manager 31-Mar-16
Pensions
03 Treat : 31-Mar-16
Controls in place to monitor data quality Benefits Manager
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 —
Fraudulent access to the self service facilities Rely on B&NES systems of control and firewalls to Payments &
RO3 | 01 |offered 1o employers and members Treat |prevent virus attacks Systems 31-Mar-16
R03.1 Manager
Register of aurthorised users maintained by Fund Pensions
02 Treat |and reviewed annually Benefits Manager 31-Mar-16
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
Failure to comply with TPR code to maintain Introduced electronic facilities for employers to
accurate and timely membership records caused send membership data to the Fund. Process in
ro4 | 01 by failure of employing bodies to notify Treat place to monitor employers and Fund's compliance Pensions 31-Mar-16
employment changes. Implications: breach of with agreed timescales (on-going) Benefits Manager
stalutory duty to nolify, pay benefits,
R04.1 maladministralion and potential fine from TPR
Data Quality Team in place to check and monitor Pensions
02 Treat |accuracy of data/records (on-going) Benefits Manager 31-Mar-16
03 Treat Pensions Committee and LPB awareness of TPR Pensions 31-Mar-16
requirements - access given to TPR training toolkil Manager
Hold regular employer user group meetings to Pensions
04 Treat [remind them of lheir obligations and statutory/ Fund 31-Mar-16
. Manager
policy changes
Ensure employers website is up to date with Communications
accurate information and instructions to employers & Public
05 Treat | 1 out notification of changes. Ongoing website Relations SIMac(s
updates - 6 monlhly review of content. Manager
Complete annual reconcilialion of membership Pensions
e e Benefits Manager A0duns1g
Review TPR code to ensure compliance procedures, Pensions
07 Treat |and processes in place Benefits Manager 31-Mar-16
On-going training of employers in their TPR Pensions
08 Treat obligations Manager 31-Mar-16
Admisitration Strategy sets out the compliance Pensions
09 Treat [standards. SLA in place with employers stating 31-Mar-16
employer obligations and timescales. Manager
Establish monitoring system o standards to
ensure compliance by Fund and employers. Pensions
10 Treat |jmplement APF TPR employer data improvement Manager 31-Mar-16
plan

ice Risk

Support RESOURCESAvon Pension Fummmg&nﬂg%&m B

15/02/2016 13.01



Pensions
Liz Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

2 Impl t (Implementatio
B Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner mpBemen i R
= y? Status
zZ s
5 g
Non compliance with Data Protection Act Pensions Manager responsible officer for DPA.
(including TPR's codes and standards). Pensions
RO5 | 01 |implication: Fines imposed, criminal/civil Treat Manager 30-Sep-09
prosecutions, data processing suspended, 9
R05.1 adverse publicily
Obtain Confidentiality Agreement from the Fund Pensions
02 Treat | ctuary {Mercer) and Nominated Tracing Bureau. Manager 01-Apr-08
03 Treat En_sure compliance with B&NES DP policies (on- Pensions 31-Mar-16
going) Manager
Al staff undertake to share personal data with 3rd Payments &
04 Treat |parties through controiled framework. Awareness Systems 31-Mar-16
of potential risk in not doing so. Manager
Members including pensioner members are
informed regularly (via payslips & newsletters) that Pensions
05 Treat |data is provided to lhird parties for the detection / Manager 31-Mar-16
prevention of fraud viz.National Fraud Initiative. (On 9
going)
On-going fraining of employers in their TPR Pensions
06 Treat | . qations Manager 31-Mar-16
07
08
09
10 _
Failure to provide information asked for under the FOI contaci officer have been appointed - Pensions
R06 | 01 [terms of the Freedom of Informalion (FOI) Act Treat |Investments Manager Investments 01-Apr-08
R06.1 2000 Manager
Dg?fufme:ted procedurglhave been cirlculated to all Pensions
staff for handling all FOI requests - all requests
o2 Treat passed to FOI Contact Officer to deal with. In\;:stments 20-Dec-12
Requests logged centrally for pensions. anager
Circulate FOI procedure to all staff annually Pensions
03 Treat Investments 30-Sep-16
Manager
Make generic data available via website, to reduce Pensions
04 Treat |number of requests and resonses required. Investments 31-Mar-16
Manager
05
06
07
08
08
10
Fail 1o communicate effectively with stakeholders - Regular newslelters are produced to advise
Employers, Members. Implication - reputational members of the performance of the fund and Pensions
RO7 01 |risk, poor public relations, lack of information to Treat [changes to the Pension Scheme including Mariagor 31-Mar-16
make informed decisions and failure to comply feedback. 9
R07.1 |with TPR code
Maintain a list of employer representatives to take | Communications
02 Treat part in User Groups/ attend forums.(On-going) & Public 31-Mar-16
Relations
Manager
Arrange regular Employer User Group meetings to )
03 Treat |remind them of their responsibilities and any Pensions 31-Mar-16
Statutory / Fund changes (On-going) Manager
04
Arrange annual conference for all employers, APF i
05 Treat |Committee members Local Pension Board members Pensions 30-Sep-16
and HR, payroll and Finance senior staff, Manager
Following change in LGPS benefits arrange for .
scheme documentation to be revised /re-issued to Technical &
. Treat | embers wilhin legal deadlines. (On-going) Development | 31-Dec-14
Manager
Maintain APF website up to date (On-going). Communications
& Public
07 Treat Relations 31-Mar-16
Manager
Maintain and publish a Service Charter to clearly Pensions
08 Treat | mmunicate minimum service standards. Manager S1Marie
Communication Strategy sets out Fund's statement Pensions
09 Treat | 4 approach to communications Manager 31-Mar-16
10
Avon Pension Fund Committee, LPB and Report all independent reviews, normally by inlernal|
ros | o1 employing bodies do not receive independent Treat audit {including specific reports on Fund's system of Pensions 31-Mar-16
assurance that the Fund's system of internal internal controls) of the Avon Pension Fund to the Manager
R08.1 controls is operaling effectively. APF Committes and LPB. (On-going).
02
03
04

vice Risk

usiness Support RESOURCES\Avon Pension FumEn&gavﬂ,éLr@n Fund vPB

15/02/12016 13:01



Pensions

Liz

Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

2
'§ Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner Impéer:ent Implementation
= c y Status
3 K
=3
5 g
05
06
07
08
09
10
Failure o identify payments in error resulting in Pensions
R09 | 01 [undetected fraud or error. Implication: impact on Treat Manager 31-Mar-13
R09.1 Fund assets: Sign off process in place for all payment types 9
Agree with internal audit the sirategic /annual audit Pensions
02 Treat |plan to ensure this risk is reviewed, actions Manager 31-Mar-16
ideniified and assurance provided. 9
03 Treat |Fund data provided to National Fraud Initiative to Ben:ﬁ;"":::a o 31-Mar-16
enable fraud to be detected. (every 3 years) 9
In post iraining to mitigate errors and ensure Pensions
04 Treat |understanding of controlled procedures and Manager 30-Mar-16
structured workflow 9
05
06
07
08
09
10
Contributions from Employing bodies to the Fund Monitor receipt of monthly LGPS50 forms from
are incorrect in value or late. Implication: adverse employing bodies and do reasonableness check on Finance &
r10 | o1 short term cash flow and employer specific deficit Treat payment amount. Follow up potentially incorrect Systems 31-Mar-16
could be over/funder stated (this would ultimately payments (monthly, on-going) and verify Manager
be identified in next actuarial valuation), breach of authorisation, (Pensions)
R10.1 obligations could lead to TPR fines
Annually request from each employer details of all Finance &
contributing members. This is reconciled to Systems
g2 Treat |- tribulions received from the employer. Manager 31-Mar-18
Pensi
Monitor receipt of monthly LGPS50 forms from each Finance &
employing body to check timely receipt of Systems
03 Treat | ntributions and authorisation. Follow up any late Manager S1zMari6
ayers. (monthly on-going) Pensions)
Verify receipt of employing body payments through Finance &
04 Treat review of bank statements (On-going) Systems 31-Mar-16
Manager
{Pensions)
Report Performance Indicator to Avon Pension Finance &
05 Treat Fu_nd Committee quarterly including late payers (On Systems 31-Mar-16
going) Manager
ions)
Set oul fines for non-compliance/ disproportionate Finance &
06 Treat work in Administration Strategy Systems 31-Mar-16
Manager
{Pensions)
07
08
09
10
Failure of Pension software supplier. Implication: Monopoly supplier providing service to >90% of
Risk lhat system used by Fund is not supporied LGPS funds with common system. Therefore high Pensions
A Treat | o ability business / client base will be bought by Manager 31-Mar-16
R11.1 janother provider
Monitor provider to verify sufficient market share is Pensions
- Treat |} 014 to indicate committed to client base. Manager SMasts
03 Treat Monitor financial standing annually Pensions 31-Mar-16
Manager
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
Delayed payment of pension because of failure of Documented Contingency Plan / council DRP in
BACS System or Interface with CSeries. place detailing: method of communicating problem
Implication: members may experience cash flow to members, alternative method of processing Payments &
R14 | 01 |problems and possible bank charges if pension Treat |payments. To be updated for new interface. Systems 31-Mar-16
payments are delayed. Reputational risk if B&NES IT will be reviewing SLA in April 2015 Manager
payments are not paid promptly. Non compliance
R14.1 with TPR code.
Procedure in place to enable members to claim Payments &
02 Treat |reimbursement of costs related to late pension Systems 31-Mar-16
== paymenls. To be reviewed. ___Manager
03
04 |

ice Risk

Support RESOURCESvon Pension Fund\ﬂageon]gels% Fund vPB

16/02/12016 13:01




Pensions
Liz Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

2
'§ Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner lmpéeyr:ant 's':':t'::""m"’"
2 5
g B
E b
05
06
07
08
09
10
Industrial action by postal service used by Greater use of electronic means for payments,
Pension Fund. Implication: Delay in members receiving changes to member records and
receiving communicalions or payment if payments di ination of information to members and Pensions
R15| |1 01 made by cheque. (Note: Cheque payments to Treat employers mitigates this risk (on-going) Manager SIS
members per month - <0.2% of total payments)
R15.1
02 Treat Dcc;;rpented contingency plan for those members Pensions 01-Apr-08
receiving cheque payments. Manager
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
Absence of staff with specialist / key skills. Strengthened resources within teams to increase
Implication: Delays/errors in processing payments knowledge, experience and build in resilience.
to members, Members experience hardship and All Team
R16 o1 bank charges. Reputational damage to Pension ieest Managers BUNEED
Fund. Non compliance with TPR code.
R16.1
02 Treat Revi.ew staffing level/ capacity annually as part of Al Team 31-Mar-16
|service plan Managers
03 Treat Training in Place to ensure technical skills and All Team 31-Mar-16
knowledge is shared Managers
Identified training requirements in PDRs; training All Team
04 Treat plans in place Managers g1:Marsi6
05
06
07
08
09
10
Lack of adequate resources/ knowledge at Ensure all information is provided in an accessible | Communications
R19 01 sc‘heme' employers Iead_ing 10 a failure to comply Treat and timely manner & PuPIic 31-Mar-16
with obligations to pension fund and employee Relations
R19.1 members, and TPR code Manager
Training tailored for employers' staff is provided for Pensions
02 Treat |all new employers and refresher sessions for B y 31-Mar-16
- enefits Manager
existing employers
Enforce penalties allowed under administration Pensions
03 Treat |Strategy for repetitive non-compliance with Manager 31-Mar-16
R19.3 obligations / disproportionate work
04 Treat Set out employer training obligations in Pensions
Administration Strategy. Manager 31-Mar-16
TPR improvement plan to highlight areas of Pensions
05 Treat |employer failure Benefits Manager 31-Mar-16
06 Treat Consideration {o oyerstaff Fund ‘administration Pensions 31-Mar-16
resource to maintain service delivery Manager
07
08
09
10
Governance risk of investment managers, Intérnal control reports af all investmant suppliers
custodian and other invesiment suppliers. This reviewed annually to identify and investigate any
includes the financial risk that could lead to weaknesses in the control environment and to be .
insolvency or a weak control environment (which evalusted as part of any tender exercise. Pensions
R20 | 01 |fails to prevent fraud). Implications: Detrimental Treat |Eyceplions reported to Committee. Investments 31-Dec-16
impacl to [he investment strategy through loss of Manager
assets or inability to trade due to assets being
R20.1 inaccessible.
[Financial standing of custodian is checked during Pensions
02 Treat |lender evaluation prior to appoiniment Investments 31-Dec-11
Manager
Custodian’s oversight of sub-custodian network Pensions
03 Treat |assessed in tender proocess for custodian Investments 31-Dec-11
Manager
Annual monitoring of the financial standing of the Pensions
04 Treat |[custodian during period of contract Investments 31-Dec-16
Manager
Legal agreement with custodian includes Pensions
05 Treat |requirement of custodian to exercise due care in Investments 31-Dec-11
seleclion of sub-custodians Manager
$\Service Risk B Support RESOURCES\Avon Pension Funﬂa@&wlli&n Fund vPB 15/02/2016 13:01




Pensions
Liz Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

I}
c
”§ Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner Imp:ment Implemantation
5 y? Status
2 §
s '
Custodian’s monitoring process of sub-custodian Pensions
06 Treat |network assessed annually as part of review of Investments 31-Dec-16
internal codlrols Manager
Obtain legal advice for the custody and investment Pensi
. ensions
07 Treat management contracts d.urmAg a tender process to Investments 31-Mar-16
ensure adequale protection in the event of fraud or Manager
linsolvency (as required) 9
Assurance obtained annually from the managers of
podled assets that they have In place monitoring Pensions
procedures regarding the financial standing of their
08 Treat |° clodian & that the custodians lhat lhey use gave Investments | 30-Dec-16
systems in place to monitor and control their Manager
network of sub-custodians
Due diligence undertaken by the hedge fund
managers on underlying managers/holdings on Pensions
09 Treat |controls around adminislration and prime brokers is Investments 30-Dec-16
d on appointment and monitored annually Manager
as part of the audit process
Monitoring process in place to reconcile the custody
transactional records to lhose of the fund managers Pensions
10 Treat |in respect of income receipts (dividends, coupons, Investments 31-Mar-16
tax reclaims), trades, holdings and security values Manager
Ingolvency of Participaling Employers in the Fund Fund policy is to only admit Transferee and
without sufficient monetary guarantees or bonds ta Community Admission bodies where the pension
make good their outstanding liability, Implication: liabilities are guaranteed by a scheme employer or Pensions
R23 | 01 fAny liability will be absorbed by the Fund and Treat |a bondfindemnity is in place Investments 31-Mar-07
spread across other employers, increasing overall Manager
liabilities and employer contribution rate and
R23.1 reduce the funding level.
Covenant assessment manitaring process in place Pensions
02 Treat |for on-going assessment of financial standing of Investments 30-Jun-16
fund employers Manager
Review all employers lo identify whether guarantee
arrangements are adequate as part of covenant Pensions
03 Treat |assessment and explore options for obtaining Investments 30-Jun-16
guarantee, bond or contingent assets if appropriate Manager
Exit and termination policies in place to ensure Pensions
04 Treat [financial risk to the Fund is minimised when Investments 31-Dec-14
scheme employers cease lo be aclive employers. nager
For those employers where the pension liabilities Pensions
05 Treat |undermine the financial viability of the organisation, Investments 31-Mar-16
discuss ways of capping the debt. Manager
06
07
08
09
10
Lack of continuity and knoweldge within Avon Maintain 2 independent members on the committee
Pension Fund Committee. (This risk arises mainly that are not subject to the electoral cycle. .
because some members face re-election Pensions
R25 | 01 lsimuitaneously. Until the new members are fully Treat Investments 31-Mar-16
trained, there may be a delay in decision-making). Manager
R25.1
Inlrodyclory sessions are o‘rganised‘ for all new Pensions
02 Treat f:ommlttee rpembers, covering pension ar_ld Investments 31-Mar-16
investment issues on the upcoming meeting Manager
agenda. (on-going)
Arrange basic training course for all new Committes Pensions
03 Treat |Members [organised by the LGPC] (on-going) Investments 30-Jun-16
Manager
Assess committee knoweldge and skills level; Head of
04 Treat identify training needs; agree training plan. _Business, 31-Mar-16
Finance and
Pen!
Hold workshops for committee to explore aspects of Head of
05 Treat the fund in more detail to facilitate decision making 'Business, 31-Mar-16
Finance and
Pensions
Training plan in place reported to committee Head of
06 Treat |duarterly Business, | 44 yar.q6
Finance and
Pensions
Committee members to undertake on-line TPR Head of
o7 Treat Knowledge and Skills training Business, 31-Mar-16
Finance and
Pensions
08
09
10

Risk R:

Support RESOURCES\Avon Pension Fund\Ba@@mﬂe&sgn Fund vPB

15/02/2016 13:01




Pensions
Liz Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

o
c
§ Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner Impéemem Implementation
o y? Status
3 c
=4 k]
5 3
The Avon Pension Fund fails to achieve the long The Fund periodically undertakes an asset liability
term investment returns sufficient to meet its sludy which determines the appropriate risk
liabilities, as set out in the Actuarial Valuation. adjusted return investment strategy required to .
This could negatively affect lhe contribution rates meet the liabililies, The investment strategy is Pensions
R26 | 01 |paid by the employing bodies. Treat |reviewed annually by the committee to ensure it Investments 30-Jun-16
remains appropriate. Slrategic issues or tactical Manager
opporlunities are considered at quarterly meetings
R26.1 of Panel and /or Commiltee.
Monitoring of investment performance of the Fund
is reported to the Panel and Committee quarterly.
Implementation of strategic or tactical decisions is Pensions
02 Treat |reported as required to Panel and /or Committee. Investments 31-Mar-16
Any issues will be reviewed by the investment panel Manager
prior to being considered by the committee (on-
going).
The estimated funding level is reviewed quarterly to Pensi
h N . ensions
03 Treat mon!tor the |mpacF of the investment rgturn on the Investments 31-Mar-16
funding level and is reported to Committee (on-
. Manager
going).
Ensure specialist advice is taken prior to any Pensi
- . ensions
04 Treat Invgstment qecmons are mat_je to en§ure decisions Investments 31-Mar-16
are in line with SIP and contribute to investment
L Manager
objective.
Report any potential legislation changes that may
affect lhe investment strategy to the Panel for Pensi
" . . B . ensions
05 Treat discussion. Discuss |rppllcat!ons oflconsultatlon Investments 31-Mar-16
papers or draft regulations wilh advisors Manager
immediately to assess impact and idenlify potential 9
projects.
Inform scheme employers and members as P .
" ' X . ensions
06 Treat ap_proprlale of any poler}tlal'changes in lhe relating Investments 31-Mar-16
to investments and funding in the regulations.
Manager
07
Ensure SIP (to be replaced by Investment slrategy Pensions
08 Treat [Statement) clearly sets out investment strategy and Investments 31-Mar-16
|is kept up to date Manager
Established Investment Panel to support Committee Pensions
09 Treat |in implementation of investment strategy. Investments 31-Dec-14
Manager
Explore approaches to managing liabilities more Pensions
10 Treat |effectively and build into funding and investment Investments 30-Jun-16
strategi Manager
The investment managers appointed by the Avon Monitoring & managing the performance of the
Pension Fund to manage the assets fail to achieve managers is delegated to the Panel. The RAG
their benchmarks, This could cause the Fund to performance monitoring framework identifies
underperform its strategic benchmark and thus fail managers that are underperforming and issues that .
to achieve the investmenl returns required to fund could impact future performance. Issues and Pensions
R27 | 01 |the liabilities, This could negatively affect the Treat |changes in RAG ratings are reported to the Panel Investments | 31-Mar-16
contribution rates paid by lhe employing bodies. who agree an action plan to address the issue. the Manager
Panel reports quarterly to committee on the
performance of the managers and changes in RAG
R271 ratings.
Ensure adequate due diligence is undertaken prior
to the appointment of a new manager, incorporating .
the use of external advice covering technical Pensions
02 Treat |capability, investment approach, risk management Investments 31-Mar-16
(including responsible investing risks) and value for Manager
money.
The impact of underperformance by any individual Pensions
03 Treat |manager is limited given diversification W|‘lhin Investments 31-Mar-16
investment management structure, Thus in Manager
aggregate the likelihood and impact are reduced.
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 = .
The Fund is unable to recruit appropriately skilled Complete PDR process with all staff to idenlify
technical or investment staff given the short training and professional qualification needs based All Team
R28 | 01 |supply of such staff regionally in the market. This | Treat |on Service requirements. Managers 31-Mar-16
could restricl the Fund's ability to develop and 9
R28.1 implement the service plan,
Identify al risk areas and consider succession All Team
02 Treat |planning to minimise risk of losing skilled/specialist M 31-Mar-16
staff. anagers

vice Risk R

Support RESOURCES\VAvon Pension Fum‘Bag avqllgygn Fund vPB

15/02/2016 13:01




Pensions

Liz

Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

-]
s
E Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner Imp:ment implementation
= y? Status
E 5
T
< ]
Explore options for developing apprentice and Head of
graduate level staff. Business,
03 Treat Finance and 31-Mar-16
Pensions
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 =
There is a risk that the service does not focus on Ensure all policies are in place to ensure quality
rR29 | o1 the customer needs / expectations resulting in Treat service is delivered to TPR requirements. Review Pensions 31-Mar-16
poor service delivery and inability to maintain periodically e.g. administration and communications Manager
R29.1 qood customer service strategies, SLAs
Use of feedback from members and employers to Pensions
. Treat | o ntinuaily improve the service Manager SMar-i6
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 _ =
The pension fund monies are not accurately Bank reconciliation in place whereby the pension Finance &
R38 01 allocated to the pension fund bank account Treat fund accounts are reconciled to the pension fund Systems 31-Mar-16
through the income receipting system, This will bank account on a weekly basis (ongoing). Manager
R38.1 result in an incorrect pension fund cash balance. {Pensions)
Monthly reconciliation statement reviewed by Pensions
02 Treat |[Investments Manager. Investments 31-Mar-16
Manager
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
For the cash invested by lhe Council on behalf of Annual report to Committee to obtain approval for Finance &
R39 o1 Pension Fund that the counterparlies fail / delay Treat the Pension Funds Treasury Management Policy Systems 31-Mar-16
the return of principle and /or investmenl income (sets out the maximum limits and maturity terms for Manager
R39.1 to pension fund as requested. each counterparty). {Pensions)
Monitor compliance with the PF Treasury Finance &
M: 1t Policy by reviewing Invesiment Systems
g2 Treat ) ctivity Report (ongoing). Manager 31-Mar-16
(Pensions)
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 _
The pension fund cashflow profite is maturing. Policy in place to monitor cash balance during lhe
Risk there is not have enough cash to pay monthly cycle. Monitor on ongoing basis. Finance &
pensions on a monihly basis due to a reduclion in Systems
RAO T 01 J riributions paid into the Fund. This will result in Treat Manager PG
the bank account being overdrawn and possibly (Pensions)
R40.1 non payment of pensions.
Investment policy addresses need to generate Pensi
| : N ensions
02 Treat income from investments poryfollo and / or the Investments 31-Mar-16
divestment of assets as required. The cash Manager
requirement is monitored on ongoing basis
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
There is a risk that the service fails to comply with [Ensure all managers are aware of the Council's
the Council’s codes of practices, standing orders policies which are documented on the Council's
R41 01 and corporate policies in respect of equalities, Treat information system including engagement with HR All Team 31-Mar-16
H&S and employment. Implication: fines for non- where necessary and staff annual DSE check Managers
compliance, disciplinary issues, reputational risk.
R41.1
02

Risk R

Support RESOURCESAvon Pension Fund\B@gaunlegki Fund vPB

15/02/2016 13.01



Pensions

Liz

Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

2
S |[Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner mp :yr;ent Isntl:tll::nentation
g §
c
s g
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 _
Increasing political pressure to reform scheme Have weil defined investment policies in place
struclure, governance and direct investment setting out investmenl objectives and criteria.
decisions. If fund does not ha.ve robust plan for Pensions
R42 o1 change, govgrnrr_|enl may Ie_glslate to enforce Treat Investments 31-Mar-16
change: Implications: committee does not make Manager
decsisions in lhe best interest of the Fund or is
unable to make decisions
R42.1
Engaging wilh the govenment through the| Head of
02 Treat consultation process, with consistent i g '-" i 31-Mar-16
Finance and
Pensions
Particiapte in collaborative working practices with All Team
03 Treat other LGPS funds where possible/appropriate Managers 31-Mar-16
Officers responsibility is to advise Commiltee and if Head of
04 Treat Committtee unable or unwilling to take decisions, Business, 31-Mar-16
can refer issue to $151 Officer under urgent powers|  Finance and
or report under Code of Conduct Pensions
Disccussing with other funds to agree frameworks Pensions
for collaboration and identifying opportunities for
. Jisat shared investments. Specifically participating in Investments 30-Jun-16
Project Brunel pooling of assets proposal. Manager
06
07
08
09
10 ___
Changes to the scheme lead to significant Have project plans in place with distinct milestones
implementation failures or lack of resources to and responsibilities All Team
R43 01 |deliver existing service. Implication: productivity Treat M 31-Dec-14
falls, quality of service reduced, mis-information to anagers
, quality , mis: n
R43.1 employers and members - CLOSED
02 Treat Review project plaps progress at monthly All Team 31-Dec-14
mana nt meelings Managers
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
Office move: service moving to new council offices Prepare teams for new flexible working environment
by November 2014. Risk lhat move delayed; prior to move (review filing, start working flexibly, All Team
R44 | 01 |physical move causes delays to work; access to Treat |restructure work processes for fully electronic " 30-Sep-14
" ; N 5 anagers
systems for flexible working not fully operational working).
R44.1 by move date. CLOSED
02 Treat il’esl systems thoroughly before move ‘to identify All Team 30-Sep-14
lissues and put work around solutions in place Managers
Have identified "movers & shakers" to engage All Team
03 Treat [actively with Council project team and feed back 31-Mar-14
. Managers
requirements to management team.
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 —
Pension legislation allows people to withdraw their Work with actuary to understand potential
pension "pol" from age 565. This will apply to the consequences on maturity profile of fund, funding of
LGPS. Although tax penallies may reduce the liabilities and agree a policy for valuing the
attractiveness of this option, there is a risk Lhat it transferring pension "pots”. Incorporate into 2016 Pensions
R4s | 01 [matures the fund more quickly than assumed in Treat |valuation. Initial report prepared by actuary in June Investments 30-Jun-16
Ihe 2013 valuation, Cashflow could become more 2015. Ongoing review as experience develops. Manager
negative due to transfers out, As yel no clarity as
to how it may affect the acluarial assumptions
R45.1 used for such transfers.
Review leaver process to ensure capture numbers Pensions
02 Treat |t lsave due to this option. Manager S1Mar1E
Engage with DCLG/Treasury and actuarial bodies Pensions
03 Treat |on relevant regulations / guidance. Investments 31-Mar-16
Manager

vice Risk Regt

Support RESOURCESAvon Pension FumBagﬂvqu\zn Fund vPB

15/02/2016 13:01




Pensions

Liz

Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

-]
13
® |Nr Description Strategy [Management Action | Action Owner lmpéeyr;ent Splsfantation
] 3
g 2
s g
Build assumption for transfers out into cash flow Finance &
04 Treat model once experience develops. Systems 11.Mar-16
Manager
__(Pensions)
Assess impact on investment strategy in terms of Pensions
05 Treat |maturity profile, cashflows and income generation. Investments 31-Mar-16
Manager
06
07
08
09
10 _
Transformational risk as move towards fully Training of employers to ensure staff have sufficient
electronic management and use of data and knowledge to iransact electronically. This could Pensions
46 0i information L include Fund officers working at employer sites or | Benefits Manager 31-Mar-16
R46.1 remotely to support employers
For those members that still request non-electronic Pensions
02 Treat |data receipt, have alternative systems in place to M 31-Mar-16
y anager
meet their needs.
Resourse and systems in place to support Pensions
03 Treat |[iransformation viz employer communications B : 31-Mar-16
y . enefits Manager
strategy/website/lraining
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
Introduction of employer cost cap mechanism by Ensure this is covered in employer user Communications
central government. PR/communication risk and groups/forums and explained via employer and & Public
R47 01 [increased need for communications to employers Treat |member newsletters. Relations 31-Mar-16
and members so that they understand the impact M
R47.1 on them at the loacl level. anager
Use generic material from Actuary to communicate | Communications
02 Treat to employers, & Pu'blic 31-Mar-16
Relations
Manager
The cosl cap mechanism will be discussed with the Pensions
03 Treat |Committee during the 2016 valuation process. Investments 30-Jun-16
Manager
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 —
Trivial commutation project. Small pensions in Cash flow monitoring system in place will reflect
payment can be commuted to a lump sum. anticipated cash flows. Finance &
Around 4000 pensioners may be eligible under Systems
R48 | 01 |[this regulation. Implications: Impact on cash flow Treat Manager 31-Mar-16
through payment of lump sums versus monthly (Pensions)
payments; resources required to support the
R48.1 project.
02 Treat Manage resource requirement over medium Pensions 31-Mar-16
timeframe Manager
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
Freedom & Choice in Pensions, Pensions reforms Member transfer estimate and payment requests
offering greater flexibility on DC schemes for monitored and reported Pensions
R49 | 01 [individuals aged 55 and over. There is an indirect | Treat Benefits Manager 31-Mar-16
impact on members considering DB to DC transfer
R49.1 |arrangements
Freedom and choice guidance and member F&Q's | Communications
02 Treat communicated and available on website & Public 31-Mar-16
Relations
Manager
Transfer process amended to require appropriate Pensions
03 Treat |(FCA) advice for payment requests. Recommended B 31-Mar-16
for <€30K enefits Manager
04
05
06
07

vice Risk Reg|

Business Supporl RESOURCES\Avon Pension Fum\R&@@m&% Fund vPB

15/02/2016 13:01



Pensions
Liz Woodyard/Geoff Cleak

20160212 Avon Pension Fund vPB

Data Entry Action Plan

2
‘§ Nr Description Strategy |Management Action Action Owner Impéeyr:ent .memtlon
2 8
3 3
08
09
10 =
B&NES Reduced Office Space in Civic Centre. Task workflow project implemented lo support
Office closure in Bath resulting in expecled flexible working for 50% staff officers Pensions
RS0 | 01 i crease in staffing numbers from Nov/Dec 2015, st Manager 31:Decs18
R50.1
Hot Desking Spreadsheet set up to identify desk Pensions
02 Treat |availability Benefits Manager 30-Sep-15
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10 =
Risk of Fund retaning incorrect pensions liability - Manage resource requirements over timeframe
GMP Reconcilliation Exercise. Following the
abolishment of conlracting out earnings effective Pensions
Re1 L 01 feom April 2016, requirement to undertake a Treat Manager B1-Mar-18
reconcilliation of GMP liability belween Fund and
R51.10 HMRC. Completion date due end 2018
Develop project plan to manage data reconcilliation Technical &
02 Treat |process and outcomes including volumetrics Development 31-Mar-16
Manager
Monilor and report progress and actions taken Technical &
03 Treat Development 31-Mar-16
Manager
Communicate with HMRC and members regarding Technical &
04 Treat |actions undertaken (ongeing) Development 31-Mar-16
Manager
05
06
07
08
09
10 — _
Risk to investment strategy from MIFID Il {Markets Discussions with managers to assess which
in Financial Instruments Directive I1}; effective mandates will be affecled (initial assesment) to
from 1 January 2018. The directive will change identify assels/mandates at risk.
the Fund'’s status from professional to retail
investor. Implications: possible forced sale of non- )
retail compliant assets; increased costs of Pensions
R52 | 01 |compliance if elect for professional status; need to|  Treat Investments | 30-Jun-16
evidence thal we meet criteria for elect up; Manager
restricted investment universe if stay as retail
investor. If remain retail investor, current strategy
will have to be amended (illiquid assets would not
R62.1 be permissable)
Process to be agreed for internal assessmnet of the Pensions
02 Treat |Fund against criteria for electing up to professional Investments 30-Jun-16
stalus Manager
Request elected professional status from each of Pensions
03 Treat |the relevant managers. Investments 31-Dec-16
Manager
Inform Committee of risk and update progress prior Pensions
04 Treat |to1Jan 2018. Investments 31-Dec-16
Manager
Amend delegations if required depending on Pensions
05 Treat [evidence to meet criteria to elect up. Investments 31-Dec-16
Manager
Consider implications for assets that are pooled Pensions
06 Treat |within Project Brunel. Investments 30-Sep-16
Manaaer
07
08
09
10

\\cleopalralriskregislers§\Service Risk Registers\Business Support RESOURCES\Avon Pension FumE%agﬂulrgdm Fund vPB

16/02/2016 13:01



APPENDIX 1 - Avon Pension Fund Board - Internal Audit Reviews —12/13 - 15/16

Internal Audit Work 2012/13 to 2014/15

in a timely manner.

No of
Recommendations
Year Heading Scope
(Date of Final E -y
Report) § 3 o 2
s _ £ £ 2
S ¥
< 4 o = ®©
2012/13 | Pensions Review of the framework of internal controls in relation to the ‘4 7 6
Administration | Administration processes, including ensuring that: Good
(Feb 2013) e Control arrangements are in place to certify that all benefits (*1)
g calculations are carried out timely and accurately.
<Q e Employer contributions are received in full, recorded timely and
NS accurately.
ol e Member information held within Altair is accurate and maintained

and promptly.

3) Pension payments are accurately recorded on the pension
system and reconciled monthly with the Financial Management
System.

4) Information and payments sent to external organisations,

2013/14 | Pensions Limited review concentrated on supporting the Investment Manager ‘5" Excellent 3 1
Investments in reviewing the adherence of the fund to the Myners Principles,
(July 2013) reviewing the structure of independent advice and providing ::g;
guidance on the use of electronic transaction processes with the
Global Custodian Bank.
Pensions This reviewed: ‘4’ Good 3 3
Payroll 1) Pension Payments are only made to eligible recipients.
(January 2014) | 2) Monthly and lump sum pension payments are made accurately




including government departments and agencies in an accurate
and timely manner.

5) Management reporting (which is relevant, sufficient, accurate
and timely) is produced and issued to the appropriate level
(includes exception/error reporting).

2014/15 | Pensions This audit review took place during the project period, to give ‘4’ Good 1 1
Administration | assurance that:
(i-Connect) 1) the files received from employers are managed and uploaded in a

controlled way;

2) corrections are tracked through a proper decision process and
audit trail;

3) error log management is properly controlled.

o
QD
% - Implemented final recommendation based on a revised implementation date — Review and update of the Records Retention Schedule.
H

- Adoption of guidance notes for use as and when the new electronic money transfer system is introduced.
Management Response at Follow-Up - The new electronic system was not introduced as it does not allow foreign currency transactions. Most of our money transfers through the
custodian are in foreign currencies. The custodian platform should permit this soon at which time the guidance notes will be disseminated and training given.

*3 -  The Avon Pension Fund should consider the requirement to continue with 3 sources of independent advice for reasons of value for money and potential conflict of advice.

Management Response at Follow-Up - The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 requires LGPS funds to establish a Pension Board to scrutinise the administering authority. Given this
change in the governance arrangements, the review of the Independent Investment Advisor has been postponed in order to consider the implications of the new arrangements.

Internal Audit Work 2015/16

1) Pensions Administration (Member Records / Contributions) — See Appendix 2 for Draft Report
2) IT Systems - Altair & i-Connect - WIP



APPENDIX 2 — DRAFT FINDINGS

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Draft Internal Audit Report

Pension Administration
(Contributions/Members Records)

February 2016

AUDIT WEST - Working in Partnership ~ Page 127



Draft Internal Audit Report — Pension Administration (Contributions/Members Records)

Executive Summary

Audit Opinion:
Assurance Rating Opinion

The systems of internal control are excellent with a number of strengths and

Level 5 reasonable assurance can be provided over all the areas detailed in the Assurance
Summary
The systems of internal control are good and reasonable assurance can be

Level 4 provided. Only minor weaknesses have been identified over the areas detailed
in the Assurance Summary
The systems of internal control are satisfactory and reasonable assurance can be

Level 3 provided. However there are a number of areas detailed in the Assurance Summary
which require improvement and specific recommendations are detailed in the Action
Plan

Assurance Summary:

The systems of internal controls are weak and reasonable assurance could not be
provided over a number of areas detailed in the Assurance Summary. Prompt action
is necessary to improve the current situation and reduce the risk exposure

The systems of internal controls are poor and there are fundamental weaknesses in
the areas detailed in the Assurance Summary. Urgent action is necessary to reduce
the high levels of risk exposure and the issues will be escalated to your Director and
the Audit Committee

Assessment Key Control Objectives
Excellent Members information is held in compliance with Data Protection and is provided to
relevant parties to fulfil member and regulation requirements.
Good Employer (employer and employee) contributions are accurate and received in full by
specified timescales.
Good The Pension Fund provides accurate and timely information to assist employers in
fulfilling their Pension Fund obligations.
Good A governance framework and processes are in place to manage/scrutinise Pension
Fund administration.
Satisfactory Employers provide accurate member and contribution information by specified
timescales.

Page 428




Draft Internal Audit Report — Pension Administration (Contributions/Members Records)

Detailed Report
Opinion:

Internal Audit has undertaken a review of the risks and controls related to Pension Administration
(Contributions/Members Records) and assessed the framework of internal control at Level 4. A total of 5 audit
recommendations are detailed in the Action Plan.

Scope and Objectives:

The scope and objectives of our audit were set out in the Audit Brief and a summary of our opinion against each of the
specific areas reviewed has been detailed in the Assurance Summary section above.

Context & Audit Comment:

As part of the 2015/16 Audit Plan, an audit review has been carried out on the adequacy of the framework of internal
controls in relation to the Avon Pension Fund Administration processes.

Previous audit review work on the Iconnect system was focussed on the big 4 local authority employers; therefore this
review was focussed on those employers outside of these.

The main focus of the review was the Avon Pension Fund’s compliance with code of practice 14, the following shows
which elements of this code were covered in this review and which were not, those not covered will be the subject of a
further review in 2016/17.

Covered:

Administration - Record Keeping
Administration - Contributions

Risk Management

Internal Control

Administration - Member Information

Not Covered:

» Governance of the Scheme

»  Whistleblowing, Confidentiality

» Disputes & Resolution

» Breaches & Reporting

The following figures are only in relation to the employers outside of the 4 main local authority employers,
which were the subject of this review:

Total number of employers 232 as at December 2015
Active Members 23511

Deferred Members 28158

Pensioners 13179

Dependents 1096

Source Avon Pension Fund

Page3l29



Draft Internal Audit Report — Pension Administration (Contributions/Members Records)

Based on the assessment of the overall framework of internal control, the audit review of Avon Pension Fund
Administration has been assessed as Assurance Level 4 - "Good Control Framework", with 1 element of the process
being assessed as excellent.

We identified the following strengths:

o There is a comprehensive suite of procedure notes readily available to all staff for all administration procedures.
o Receipt of LGPS50 forms from all employers is effectively monitored and managed.

o In compliance with Regulation 67 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) the Avon Pension Fund has
a Communications Policy Statement which is reviewed annually.

o There is a comprehensive service risk register in place which is regularly updated and reviewed.

o Anew role is to be created to help employers with training requirements and to aid communications and public
relations with employers.

o Annual statements of employee data held are sent to employers for them to reconcile and correct if required.

o Employers and members are informed timely of any news or information that may affect their pensions and the
fund.

We identified the following weaknesses:

o There is no formal process for independent quality checking of information input to the Altair database from
completed instruction forms to ensure that information contained within the Altair database is accurately recorded.

o There is a lack of assurance from employers concerning accuracy of data they have submitted.
¢ Independent quality checks of monthly reconciliations of LGPS50 data could not be evidenced from records held.
o No formal log maintained of employers and employees attending ESS training.
o Need for more employers to use ESS and improve on the quality of the data they submit.
Audit & Risk Personnel:
Lead Auditor: Mark Wheeler

Acknowledgements:

Sincere thanks to Carolyn Morgan, Martin Phillips, and all staff for their help & assistance throughout the Audit review.
Page 130



Draft/Final Internal Audit Report — Pension Administration (Contributions/Members Records) - 15-002B

1T abed

ACTION PLAN
MEDIUM RISK EXPOSURE
Weakness Found Implication or Potential Risk Recommendation(s) Responsible Officer
Management Comments
Implementation Date
M1 | Independent Quality Checking Financial and reputational loss due to | The Acting Pensions Benefits Manager TO BE COMPLETED & AGREED
Process inaccurate or incomplete information should implement a process of independent | - REPORT STILL DRAFT

There is no formal process for
independent quality checking of
information input to the Altair database
from completed instruction forms.

contained within the asset
management system.

monitoring (quality checking) of data input to
the Altair System to ensure the quality of
information held on the system.

The level and timing of the checking should
be appropriate to the experience of the
processing officer and any problems
identified.

The checks should be undertaken by an
independent officer and details of all cases
reviewed should be recorded on a checking
log/spreadsheet




Draft/Final Internal Audit Report — Pension Administration (Contributions/Members Records) - 15-002B

MEDIUM RISK EXPOSURE

Weakness Found

Implication or Potential Risk

Recommendation(s)

Responsible Officer
Management Comments
Implementation Date

zoT affed

M2

Independent validation for accuracy
of employer data submitted to the
APF:

Year end data returns from employer
returns of data information from
employers to the APF are not
accompanied by a declaration or
signed to state that they give assurance
that the data is accurate and has been
independently verified prior to
submission.

Data submitted may be incorrect or
false leading to employees’ pension
benefits being incorrect.

Losses to the pension fund if salaries
are incorrectly overstated.

The Acting Pensions Benefits Manager
should ensure that all forms and information
containing employee information received
from employers has a declaration requiring a
signature similar to the one already present
on the LGPS51 form, the declaration should
include:

o Assurance that all information and figures
supplied have been independently checked
and verified by the employer.

e Assurance that to the best of their
knowledge the information and figures
supplied are correct

o Sign off by an employer authorised
signatory.

This will at least give the APF some
assurance as to the validity and accuracy of
the information supplied by employers, and in
cases where there may be challenge to the
information used the APF will have at least a
declaration from employers to show that data
used is verified.

TO BE COMPLETED & AGREED
— REPORT STILL DRAFT




Draft/Final Internal Audit Report — Pension Administration (Contributions/Members Records) - 15-002B

MEDIUM RISK EXPOSURE

Weakness Found

Implication or Potential Risk

Recommendation(s)

Responsible Officer
Management Comments
Implementation Date

coT afied

M3

Independent Quality Checking of
LGPS50 Reconciliation.

Independent quality checks of monthly
reconciliations of LGPS50 data are
carried out, this is proven by errors that
are found being backed up by prompt
emails advising of the errors; however,
evidence of the reconciliation is not
always recorded.

Lack of audit trail to show that
reconciliations have taken place,
leaving doubt as to whether they have
been carried out or not, if not,
anomalies and errors may go
undetected.

The Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions)

should ensure that there is an audit trail to

show that independent quality checks of the

reconciliations have been carried out.

This may involve a signature or “stamp”
against the reconciliation to show it has
happened.

TO BE COMPLETED & AGREED
— REPORT STILL DRAFT




Draft/Final Internal Audit Report — Pension Administration (Contributions/Members Records) - 15-002B

MEDIUM RISK EXPOSURE
Weakness Found Implication or Potential Risk Recommendation(s) Responsible Officer
Management Comments
Implementation Date
M4 | No formal log held of training User to the ESS system may not know | The Acting Pensions Benefits Manager
attendance: how to use the system correctly should ensure that all attendees of training
resulting in possible incorrect input of | are logged in a spreadsheet, used for
Employer representatives attend the data, for example this could lead to reference if a request comes in for access to | TO BE COMPLETED & AGREED
APF Employee self-service training incorrect personal information being ensure they have undergone the appropriate | — REPORT STILL DRAFT
sessions, however, there is no formal | presented on employee annual training beforehand.
log kept of who has attended. statements.
This is necessary as access to the ESS
system should be denied until the
training has been attended.
0
QD
«Q
(¢]
H
w
SN




Draft/Final Internal Audit Report — Pension Administration (Contributions/Members Records) - 15-002B

MEDIUM RISK EXPOSURE

Weakness Found

Implication or Potential Risk

Recommendation(s)

Responsible Officer
Management Comments
Implementation Date

T abed

__C¢

M5 | Improving Performance:

There are further improvements which
could be made to performance. This
would include improving on the number
of employers using ESS and the quality
of data sent in by them.

Currently there are approx. 50% of
employers using ESS, the target is to
be close to 100% with very few
exceptions.

Less efficiency, more prone to errors,
insufficient or incorrect data can lead to
incorrect calculations of pension
benefits and payments.

The Acting Pensions Benefit Manager should
continue to put emphasis on employer
engagement so that there are more
employers signed up to ESS and also to
improve the quality of data they send in.

It has been agreed to help achieve this there
will be a change to the role of one person in
the Data Quality Team to concentrate just on
employer engagement and training.

The role is starting on 18 January and they
will be putting together a plan shortly of what
they will be focusing on.

TO BE COMPLETED & AGREED
— REPORT STILL DRAFT




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



Agenda Item 15

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD

MEETING AGENDA

25 February 2016 ITEM
DATE: y NUMBER
TITLE: Breaches Procedure

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1: Avon Pension Fund: Breaches Procedure

Appendix 2 — Reporting Templates

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The purpose of this item is to report to the Pension Board the proposed
procedure for dealing with and reporting breaches of the law.

1.2 This procedure takes into account guidance received from the Pensions
Regulator (tPR) as set out in its Code of Practice 14.

1.3 The procedure affects all those who are subject to the reporting requirements as
determined by the Pensions Regulator.

2 RECOMMENDATION
That the Pension Board:

2.1 Reviews the Breaches Procedure for Avon Pension Fund to adopt as outlined in
this report and recommend to the Pensions Committee for approval

3 BREACHES PROCEDURE - BACKGROUND

3.1 There is a legal requirement on all Pension Fund Committee Members, LPB
Members, officers, employers and advisors to report any significant breaches of the
law to the pensions Regulator (tPR) where they are likely to be of material
significance to them.

Page 137




3.2 TPR Code of Practice 14 (Governance and administration of public service pension
schemes) states there should be a procedure in place within wach fund to identify
and assess these breaches as they occur.

3.3 The attached Breaches Procedure sets out these responsibilities and provide a
framework for the Fund to identify, manage and where necessary report breaches
of the law applying to the management and administration of the Fund.

3.4 Where a breach of law is identified action will be undertaken in accordance with the
significance of the breach as set out in the attached procedure.

3.5 A summary of breaches reported will be included with future administration reports
to both Pensions Committee and LPB.

3.6 The breaches procedure will be reviewed on a regular basis and any amendments
put forward for approval.

4 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no specific financial implications.

5 Breaches Procedure - Background

5.1 Whenever a decision is made or in some cases not made, there are provisions
for any disagreements that arise to be dealt with under Regulations 74 — 80 of the
LGPS Regulations 2013.

5.2 The Pension Regulator has set out in its Code of Practice 14 the requirements of
the legislation to have an Internal Dispute Resolution Procedures [IDRP] to be
followed.

5.3 Annex 1 incorporates the requirements of both the regulations and Code of
Practice to set out how cases of disagreement are to be processed within the
Avon Pension Fund.

5.4 Annex 2 sets out a timeline of the process and gives details of who within the
administering authority will be responsible for decisions made at different stages
of the process.

5.5 Employers have responsibilities within the IDRP and once the procedures are
approved will need to be instructed on their role and how the relationship between
decisions made and potential disagreements works and how disputes are to be
managed.

5.6 A similar exercise will be required for officers responsible for Fund administration.

5.7 The procedures will be kept under review and guidance will be sought from the
Pension Board in the event of any changes.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 The implementation of this procedure will mitigate the risk of the Fund breaching
the regulations and failing to report this or taking appropriate remedial action.

Page 138



7 EQUALITIES

7.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary as the report is primarily for
information only.

8 CONSULTATION

8.1 This report is primarily for information and therefore consultation is not necessary.

9 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION

9.1 The issues to consider are contained in the report.

10 ADVICE SOUGHT

10.1 The Council’'s Monitoring Officer (Divisional Director — Legal & Democratic
Services) and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - Finance) have had the
opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for publication.

Contact person Geoff Cleak — Acting Pensions Manager (Tel: 01225 395277)

Background papers The Pension Regulator: Code of Practice no 14

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Page 139




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



APP 1

Avon Pension Fund

Breaches Procedure

Procedure for the review and reporting of Regulatory Breaches

The introduction of the Pensions Act 2013 extended the powers of the Pensions
Regulator to public sector schemes from 1% April 2014. The Pension Regulator
introduced Code of Practice 14 for the administration of public sector schemes in
2014 which amongst other things addressed the issue of Regulatory Breaches and
reporting requirements.

This document deals with the process of identifying, recording and determining if
breaches of the pension’s regulations should be reported to the Pension’s Regulator.

The Duty to report — legal requirement

The duty to report breaches is contained within the Pensions Act 2004 section 70.
Within this Act certain people have a legal duty to report breaches to the Pensions
Regulator where they believe that:

e a legal duty relevant to the administration of the scheme hasn’t been or isn’t
being complied with: this could relate for instance to keeping records, internal
controls, calculating benefits and, for funded schemes, includes investment
governance and administration matters

« the failure to comply is likely to be of 'material significance' to the regulator in
the exercise of its functions.

The people with a legal duty to report are

e pension board members

« any other person involved in the administration of the scheme (which includes
Committee members)

« employers

o professional advisers including auditors, actuaries, legal advisers and fund
managers

e any other person involved in advising the scheme manager in relation to the
scheme

The duty to report overrides other obligations, such as confidentiality, except where

legal professional privilege applies. Failure to report a breach without reasonable
excuse, can lead to civil penalties.

Page 141



What is a breach of the law?

A breach of the law is “an act of breaking or failing to observe a law, agreement, or
code of conduct.” In the context of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) it
can encompass many aspects of the management and administration of the LGPS,
including failure:

to do anything required under the Regulations;

to do anything required under overriding legislation, applicable statutory
guidance or codes of practice;

to maintain accurate records;

to act on any fraudulent act or omission that is identified;

to comply with policies and procedures (e.g. the Fund’'s statement of
investment principles, funding strategy, discretionary policies, etc.);

of an employer to pay over member and employer contributions on time;

to pay member benefits either accurately or in a timely manner;

to issue annual benefit statements on time or non-compliance with the Code.

For breaches to be reported to the Pensions Regulator they need to be of material
significance and specifically would include;

dishonesty

poor governance or administration

slow or inappropriate decision making practices

incomplete or inaccurate advice, or

acting (or failing to act) in deliberate contravention of the law

pension board members not having the appropriate degree of knowledge and
understanding, which may result in pension boards not fulfilling their roles, the
scheme not being properly governed and administered and/or scheme
managers breaching other legal requirements

pension board members having a conflict of interest, which may result in them
being prejudiced in the way that they carry out their role, ineffective
governance and administration of the scheme and/or scheme managers
breaching legal requirements

adequate internal controls not being established and operated, which may
lead to schemes not being run in accordance with their scheme regulations
and other legal requirements, risks not being properly identified and managed
and/or the right money not being paid to or by the scheme at the right time
accurate information about benefits and scheme administration not being
provided to scheme members and others, which may result in members not
being able to effectively plan or make decisions about their retirement
appropriate records not being maintained, which may result in member
benefits being calculated incorrectly and / or not being paid to the right person
at the right time

pension board members misappropriating any assets of the scheme or being
likely to do so, which may result in scheme assets not being safeguarded,
where a breach has been identified and those involved do not take prompt
and effective action to remedy the breach and identify and tackle its cause in
order to minimise risk of recurrence; are not pursuing corrective action to a
proper conclusion, or fail to notify affected scheme members where it would
have been appropriate to do so.

Page 142



Breaches can therefor include failure to adhere to requirements set out by
Administering Authority to support the maintenance of records requirements or policy
or procedural requirements.

Recording of Breaches

The Pensions Manager is responsible for maintaining a record of all breaches
including those which are not reported to the Regulator. The templates for recording
breaches are attached as follows:

e Appendix 1: Breaches caused by employer
o Appendix 2: Breaches caused by APF as administrator
o Appendix 3: Material Breaches

Given the scope of potential breaches and the complexity of LGPS administration for
Employers and the Administering Authority it is necessary to take a pragmatic
approach to remediation of non- material breaches based on support, training and
guidance together with remedies available to the Fund through its Administration
Strategy

Resolution of non- material Employer breaches

Many non-material breaches may be resolvable through a variety of mechanisms
and where necessary the Fund will support employers to ensure they are fully aware
of their responsibilities and have appropriate arrangements in place to comply with
them. This may be achieved through training, the issue of guidance notes and or
process review to ensure that best practice is implemented. All such arrangements
will be implemented according to an agreed plan and timescale. The agreed support
will be recorded against the breach and will be formally notified to the employer.

If the employer then fails to improve a formal notification will be issued with a fine for
persistent breach and if that fails then consideration will be given to formally
reporting the failing to the Pensions Regulator

Material Breaches by Employers

Where it is considered that there is a material breach by an employer then the
Pensions Manager will produce a report for the Head of Pensions, who will consider
the breach in line with the Code of Practice, investigate as necessary and obtain
legal advice where required in determining the necessity to report. The Chairs of the
Pensions Committee and the Pensions Board will be provided with a copy of the
report and notified of the action taken by the Head of Pensions within 10 days of
receipt of the report.

Serious breaches identified such as fraud and misappropriation will be notified to the
Regulator as soon as practicable and appropriate auditors/police authority for

Page 143



investigation. Arrangements will be made with the Regulator to support the
determination of any action once the investigations have concluded.

Non Material Breaches by the Admin Authority

Such breaches will recorded by the Pensions Manager and improvement actions
agreed with the Head of Pensions for inclusion in ongoing Improvement plans,
Services plans or Administration Strategy as appropriate.

Material Breaches by the Admin Authority

These breaches or suspected breaches will be reported to the $151 officer for
formal investigation. The investigation will be carried out by internal audit section or
referred to police as required and the Pensions regulator notified as soon as
practicable.

Reporting of Breaches

In addition to the requirement to report Material breaches to the Pensions Regulator,
the Pensions Manager will formally report all breaches to the Avon Pension Fund
Committee and the Pension Board on a quarterly basis, notifying the chairs of both
of any significant issues as appropriate.

If at any time the Committee or the Board disagree with the actions taken by the
Head of Pensions, then escalation will be to the S151 officer and or the Strategic
Director for Resources.

Full details of the Legal responsibilities and duties in respect of Breaches of the Law
can be found in Code of Practice 14

http://www.thepensionsrequlator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-administration-
public-service-pension-schemes

Page 144



EPPE bK< A

Page 145

NPT FE RN GREREEG Ral ]  [Sp(/PRA] SRUEIG TN mUSY Ny

T O e M e N e it Nl it R L i T e ) R o i

EPpAT A IR | A a..l.u. PGS SALaRE Sllew smpeay

SIHOVIYE ¥IAOTdWI



APPEND 1< 2~

Page 146

TOELN0U pIung vapag

i e ket e T 2

TON/55A) S0UESRIURTS [EHSIEA

|
uO[PY| AlEUFd [ERUI0d | Uopidiosep uIrelg

3dA] yoealg

S3HIY3IHE 4dV



ACPE A 2

Page 147

paljliou ddl

patiiou pieog lojsuayd

pa1N0U 331ILIWO) UDISUa

uonIy

uondisap yaeaug

adAy yieaug

yaeaiq 4dv \._w>o_aEm_.

SIHOVYIUEG TVIHILYIN



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 148



Agenda Item 16

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | | ocal Pension Board — Avon Pension Fund

MEETING th AGENDA

25" February 2016 ITEM
DATE: Y NUMBER
TITLE: Pension Board - Draft Budget 2016/17

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Draft Budget

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The purpose of the report is to inform the Local Pensions Board (LPB) of the
current budget proposal for the boards activities which will be made to the Avon
Pension Fund for 2016/17.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Local Pension Board is asked to recommend the proposed budget (Appendix
1) for approval by the Avon Pension Fund.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The costs of operating the board and fulfilling the terms of reference are built into
the business plan for the Avon Pension Fund and detailed in this report.

4 THE REPORT

4.1 Bath & North East Somerset Council acting as the administering authority for the
Avon Pension Fund is required to comply with the Public Sector Pension Act
(2013) along with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment
Governance) Regulations 2015.

4.2 In meeting these requirements Bath & North East Somerset approved terms of
reference and necessary supporting arrangements at its meeting of its full Council
on the 15" January 2015 and the Pension Board adopted these at its meeting in
July 2015.

4.3 The LPB is now required to consider and recommend the budget attached at
Appendix 1 to enable it to perform its duties as laid out in its terms of reference.

Printed on recycled paper Page 149



4.4 The budget is based on the first year of operation of the Board and may need
some amendment as it moves forward in future years, however a four year
position is being proposed. Key learning points are that officer support was much
higher than anticipated in year 1 and additional allowance has been made for this
to include any extra audit or external support costs in future years.

4.5 As with all elements of the public sector there is exceptional pressure to ensure
value for money can be demonstrated and the Board should consider this in its
deliberations and comments.

5 RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management

guidance.

5.2 The adoption of a budget to perform its own Terms of Reference mitigates the risk
of the administering authority not complying with the Public Sector Pension Act
(2013) and its supporting regulations.

6. EQUALITIES

6.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been undertaken and there are
no significant issues to report.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1The report was distributed to the S151 Officer for consultation.

Contact person

Jeff Wring (01225 477323)

Background
papers

Council Report — Establishment of Avon Pension Fund Board —
15" January 2015

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an

alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 150




TGT abed

Appendix 1 - Draft Budget — Local Pension Board (Avon Pension Fund)

Budget Area 2015/16 Budget (£) 2016/17 Budget (£) 2017/18 Budget (£) 2018/19 Budget (£)
Chairman’s 11,600 12,000 12,120 12,241
Allowance (&
Members Expenses)
Member Training 6,000 3,000 3,060 3,121
Democratic Support 6,000 8,000 8,160 8,323
(Meetings)
Internal & External 12,800 17,000 17,170 17,341
Support
Communications 1,000 600 612 624
Total 37,400 40,600 41,122 41,651




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 152



Agenda Item 17

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | | ocal Pension Board — Avon Pension Fund

MEETING th AGENDA

25" February 2016 ITEM
DATE: i NUMBER
TITLE: Training Update

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1 — Training Requirements

Appendix 2 — Self-Assessment Template

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The purpose of the report is to receive updates from Board Members on progress
through recent Training offered and requests for any future support.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Local Pension Board is asked to note the report and comments of Board
Members on future requests.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The cost of providing training to the LPB has been estimated for its first year of
operation and may need to be revised to ensure it is sufficient for its four year
term.

4 THE REPORT
Background

4.1 In accordance with the Pension Regulator (tPR) Code of Practice no.14:
‘Governance and Administration of public service and pension schemes’ (page 12
paragraphs 44 to 60) every individual member of a LPB must in summary:

- Be Conversant with the rules of the local government pension scheme (LGPS) &

- Have knowledge and understanding of the law relating to pensions:

Printed on recycled paper Page 153



4.2 These responsibilities begin from the date the LPB member takes up their role.
These knowledge and understanding requirements apply to every individual
member of a LPB rather than as a collective group.

4.3 The Avon Pension Fund is committed to making the appropriate training available
to LPB members to assist them in undertaking their role. In addition each LPB
member has a responsibility to demonstrate their capacity to attend meetings and
complete the training.

Degree of Knowledge and Understanding (See Appendix 1)

4.4 The legal requirement is that Members of the LPB must be conversant with the
rules of the LGPS and any document recording policy about the administration of
the Fund. This is implied as a working knowledge so that members are aware of
which legislation/policies to refer to when carrying out their role.

4.5 It is implicit that LPB members understand the duties and obligations that apply to
the Avon Pension Fund as well as to themselves. LPB members should be clear
on the roles, responsibilities and duties of the Board and its Members as set out in
the Terms of Reference. LPB Members need to be able to identify and challenge
failure to comply with the scheme rules. The rules of the LGPS would include:

a) the Regulations;
b) the Investment Regulations;
c) the Transitional Regulations; and
d) any statutory guidance referred to in these regulations
Areas of Knowledge and Understanding
4.6 LPB Members should be conversant with, but not limited to the following areas:
a) Scheme approved policies
b) Risk assessment/management
¢) Scheme booklets/members communications
d) Role of LPB Members and the scheme manager
e) Policies in relation to discretions
f) Communications with scheme members and employers
g) Key policy documents on administration, funding and investment

4.7 LPB Members should have a breadth of knowledge and understanding that is
sufficient to allow them to understand fully any professional advice the LPB is
given. Members should be able to challenge any information or advice they are
given and understand how that information or advice impacts on any decision
relating to the LPB’s duty to assist the Avon Pension Fund.

Printed on recycled paper Page 154



Acquiring, Reviewing and Updating Knowledge and Understanding

4.8 Members of this Board will need to commit sufficient time in their learning and
development alongside their other duties as training is an important part of the
individual’s role.

4.9 As members knowledge and understanding of responsibilities technically begin
from the date they take up their post, training will be required to start as soon as
possible in regard to the Regulations, key Fund documents and relevant Pension
Law. The first informal training session prior to this meeting satisfies this basic
requirement.

4.10 There is also a practical recognition that it will take a newly appointed member a
reasonable period to attain the required full level of knowledge and understanding,
while consideration needs to be given to the differing levels of existing knowledge
that LPB Members may already have attained.

Training Plans

4.11 As discussed at its previous meetings in July and November the Board will
receive training and briefing through its formal meeting cycle but this will need to
be supplemented by additional training undertaken by Board Members
themselves.

4.12 Board Members are also asked to individually update at the meeting on the initial
proposals outlined below —

a) Attendance at the LGE 3 day Pensions Fundamental Course as an introduction
to the LGPS. This is a 3 day course spread over several months (September to
December) covering all the key areas of the LGPS and provides a thorough
understanding of the scheme, its legislation and an appreciation of the different
areas of work.

b) Completion the on-line tPR e-learning trustee toolkit. This is split into modules
which can be done at each individual’s own learning pace and completed by a set
of multiple choice questions. This should effectively assist in meeting the knowledge
and understanding issues dealt with in the Regulators Code of Practice.

4.13 In addition Board Members are also asked for their views as to whether the self-
assessment template attached at Appendix 2 would be helpful to complete now
that the LGE course is finished.

4.14 It is recommended individual board members retain their own training log to
evidence how they are fulfilling their responsibilities and submit these to the
Pension Fund to aid future training needs analysis. We remain hopeful that
training will be aligned with that of the Pension Fund Committee Members over
the coming 12 months..

4.15 The Avon Pension Fund will also keep Board Members updated of relevant

conferences and any other opportunities to improve learning and development on
an ongoing basis.

Printed on recycled paper Page 155 3



5 RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management

guidance.

5.2 Appropriate training for the members of the LPB mitigates the collective risks to
the Board in that it is unable to fulfil its terms of reference or to each individual
member in fulfilling their responsibilities.

6. EQUALITIES

6.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been undertaken and there are
no significant issues to report.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1The report was distributed to the S151 Officer for consultation.

Contact person

Jeff Wring (01225 477323)

Background
papers

Council Report — Establishment of Avon Pension Fund Board —
15" January 2015

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an

alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 156




Appendix 1 — Knowledge and Skills Responsibilities under the Pensions

Requlator Code of Practice No 14

Where do knowledge and understanding responsibilities
rest under the Code of Practice No 14?

Pension Board

Scheme Manager

Nature of
Requirement

Legal Requirements

Must be conversant with:
1)The rules of the scheme
2)Any document recording
policy about the
administration of the scheme
which is for the time being
adopted in relation to the
scheme.

Statutory

Must have knowledge and
understanding of:

1)The law relating to
pensions

2)Any other matters which
are prescribed in regulations.

Statutory

Should ensure that the
degree of knowledge and
understanding they possess
is that appropriate for the
purposes of enabling them to
properly exercise the
functions of a member of the
pension board.

Statutory

Practical Guidance

Should help pension board
members meet their legal
obligations.

Code of
Practice
(paragraph
37)

Page 157




Should establish and Code of
maintain policies and Practice
arrangements for acquiring (paragraph
and retaining knowledge and | 38)
understanding to support
their pension board
members.
Should designate a person to | Code of
take responsibility for Practice
ensuring that a framework for | (paragraph
acquiring and retaining 38)
knowledge and skills is
developed and implemented.

Areas of knowledge and understanding required
Should prepare and keep an | Code of
updated list of the documents | Practice
with which they consider (paragraph
pension board members 46)
need to be conversant. This
will enable them to effectively
carry out their role. They
should make sure that both
the list and the documents
are available in accessible
formats.

Degree of knowledge and understanding Required
Clear guidance on the roles, | Code of
responsibilities and duties of | Practice
pension boards and the (paragraph
members of those boards 47)
should be set out in scheme
documentation.
Should assist individual Code of
pension board members to Practice
determine the degree of (paragraph
knowledge and 48)

understanding that is
sufficient for them to

Page 158




effectively carry out their role,
responsibilities and duties as
a pension board member.

Acquiring, reviewing and updating knowledge and understanding

Should invest sufficient time | Should provide pension Code of
in their learning and board members with the Practice
development alongside their | relevant training and support | (paragraph
other responsibilities and that they require. 55)
duties.
Newly appointed pension Should offer pre-appointment | Code of
board members should be training or arrange for Practice
aware that their mentoring by existing pension | (paragraph
responsibilities and duties as | board members. 56)
a pension board member
begin from the date they take
up their post.
Should use a personalised Code of
training plan to document Practice
training needs. (paragraph
57)
Should undertake a personal Code of
training needs analysis and Practice
regularly review their skills, (paragraph
competencies and 57)
knowledge to identify gaps or
weaknesses.
Pension board members who Code of
take on new responsibilities Practice
will need to ensure that they (paragraph
gain appropriate knowledge 58)
and understanding relevant
to carrying out those new
responsibilities.
Learning programmes Code of
should: Practice

Page 159




1)Cover the type and degree
of knowledge and
understanding required
2)Reflect the legal
requirements

3)Be delivered within an
appropriate timescale.

(paragraph
58)

Demonstrating knowledge and understanding

Should keep appropriate
records of the learning
activities of individual pension
board members and the
board as a whole.

Code of
Practice
(paragraph
59)

Page 160




Appendix 2 — Example of Competency Self-assessment Matrix

Learning needs analysis

Training Requirements and Plan

Do | possess...?

Rate my
skills

1-No
knowledge
5-Highly
skilled

Training Training Plan
Requirements | (Sources and
timing)

1- Pensions Legislation

A general understanding of
the pension’s legislative
framework in the UK.

12345

An overall understanding of
the legislation and statutory
guidance specific to the
scheme and the main
features relating to benefits,
administration and
investment.

12345

An appreciation of LGPS
discretions and how the
formulation of the
discretionary policies impacts
on the pension fund,
employers and local
taxpayers.

12345

A regularly updated
appreciation of the latest
changes to the scheme rules.

12345

2- Pensions Governance

Knowledge of the role of the
administering authority in
relation to the LGPS.

12345

Page 161




An understanding of how the
roles and powers of the
DCLG, the Pensions
Regulator, the Pensions
Advisory Service and the
Pensions Ombudsman relate
to the workings of the
scheme.

12345

Knowledge of the role of the
Scheme Advisory Board and
how it interacts with other
bodies in the governance
structure.

12345

A broad understanding of the
role of pension fund
committees in relation to the
fund, the administering
authority, employing
authorities, scheme members
and taxpayers.

12345

An awareness of the role and
statutory responsibilities of
the treasurer and monitoring
officer.

12345

Knowledge of the Myners
principles and associated
CIPFA and SOLACE
guidance.

12345

A detailed knowledge of the
duties and responsibilities of
pension board members.

12345

Knowledge of the
stakeholders of the pension
fund and the nature of their
interests.

12345

Page 162




Knowledge of consultation,
communication and
involvement options relevant
to the stakeholders.

12345

Knowledge of how pension
fund management risk is
monitored and managed.

12345

An understanding of how
conflicts of interest are
identified and managed.

12345

An understanding of how
breaches in law are reported.

12345

3- Pensions Administration

An understanding of best
practice in pensions
administration eg
performance and cost
measures.

12345

Understanding of the
required and adopted
scheme policies and
procedures relating to:
1)member data maintenance
and record-keeping
processes

2)internal dispute resolution
3)contributions collection
4)scheme communication
and materials.

12345

Knowledge of how
discretionary powers operate.

12345

Knowledge of the pensions
administration strategy and

12345

Page 163




delivery (including, where
applicable, the use of third
party suppliers, their
selection, performance
management and assurance
processes).

An understanding of howthe | 12345
pension fund interacts with
the taxation system in the UK
and overseas in relation to
benefit administration.

An understanding of what 12345
AVC arrangements exist and
the principles relating to the
operation of those
arrangements, the choice of
investments to be offered to
members, the provider’s
investment and fund
performance report and the
payment schedule for such
arrangements.

4- Pensions Accounting and Auditing Standards

An understanding of the 12345
Accounts and Audit
Regulations and legislative
requirements relating to
internal controls and proper
accounting practice.

An understanding of the role | 1 2345
of both internal and external
audit in the governance and
assurance process.

An understanding of the role | 1 234 5
played by third party
assurance providers.

5- Pensions Services Procurement and Relationship Management

Page 164




An understanding of the 12345
background to current public
procurement policy and
procedures, and of the
values and scope of public
procurement and the roles of
key decision-makers and
organisations.

A general understanding of 12345
the main public procurement
requirements of UK and EU
legislation.

An understanding of the 12345
nature and scope of risks for
the pension fund and of the
importance of considering
risk factors when selecting
third parties.

An understanding of howthe | 12345
pension fund monitors and
manages the performance of
their outsourced providers.

6- Investment Performance and Risk Management

An understanding of the 12345
importance of monitoring
asset returns relative to the
liabilities and a broad
understanding of ways of
assessing long-term risks.

An awareness of the Myners | 12345
principles of performance
management and the
approach adopted by the
administering authority.

Page 165




Awareness of the range of 12345
support services, who
supplies them and the nature
of the performance
monitoring regime.

7- Financial Markets and Products Knowledge

An understanding of therisk | 12345
and return characteristics of
the main asset classes
(equities, bonds, property
etc).

An understanding oftherole | 12345
of these asset classes in
long-term pension fund
investing.

An understanding of the 12345
primary importance of the
fund’s statement of
investment principles and the
investment strategy decision.

A broad understanding ofthe | 12345
workings of the financial
markets and of the
investment vehicles available
to the pension fund and the
nature of the associated
risks.

An understanding of the 12345
limits placed by regulation on
the investment activities of
local government pension
funds.

An understanding of the 12345
limits placed by regulation on
the investment activities of

Page 166




local government pension
funds.

An understanding of howthe | 12345
pension fund interacts with
the taxation system in the UK
and overseas in relation to
investments.

8- Actuarial Methods, Standards and Practices

A general understanding of 12345
the role of the fund actuary.

Knowledge of the valuation 12345
process, including developing
the funding strategy in
conjunction with the fund
actuary, and inter-valuation
monitoring.

An awareness of the 12345
importance of monitoring
early and ill health retirement
strain costs.

A broad understanding of the | 12345
implications of including new
employers into the fund and
of the cessation of existing
employers.

A general understanding of 12345
the relevant considerations in
relation to outsourcings and
bulk transfers.

A general understanding of 12345
the importance of the
employer covenant and the
relative strengths of the

Page 167




covenant across the fund
employers.

Page 168




Agenda Item 18

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD - AVON PENSION FUND

MEETING | 25" February 2016 AGENDA
DATE: ITEM

NUMBER
TITLE: Work Plan

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix A — Outline Work Plan

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The purpose of this report to present the outline of the Work Plan for the Board.
Board Members are asked to consider the suggested approach and input into
the plan attached at Appendix A.

2 RECOMMENDATION
That the Board
2.1 Notes the report and endorses the work plan outlined in Appendix A.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are direct implications related to the Pension Board in connection with this
report, however until the Work Plan is finalised these are difficult to estimate.

4 REPORT

4.1 In developing a work plan the Board should reflect the need to maintain a
balance between building the knowledge and understanding of the LPB
Members in its first year and delivery of the statutory obligations of the Board.

4.2 In doing so, consideration should be given to the style of the meetings,
training/briefing sessions given outside of the formal meeting, the length and
frequency of meetings and the cyclical nature of topic areas.

4.3 Currently it is proposed that the board should meet formally no more than four
times a year with a briefing session either before or as part of the meetings. This
will be kept under review as often informal workshop sessions can prove a

Page 169




successful alternative to delivering the objectives of individual topic areas rather
than through a formal meeting.

4.4 The length of meetings should not be excessive in line with any recognised good
practice and in considering this the board should be cognisant of its need to
absorb and interpret often large volumes of complex information and continue to
perform effectively. Therefore agenda’s for each meeting should therefore plan
with this context in mind.

4.5 Taking the above issues into account Year 1 of the Board should be viewed as
developmental, often receiving reports or briefings as overview to help
understand their future role on individual topics. Examples of this are today’s
agenda where several reports were given as background but would not be
expected to appear as regular items in the future.

4.6 As outlined at the Board’s meeting in July the focus of the Board is on several
key themed areas —

a) Administration — Management of the Fund, Benchmarking/VFM,
Compliance

b) Investments — Strategy, Policy Development & Actuary Valuations
c) Governance — Roles, Responsibilities & Decision Making
d) Independent Assurance - Audit & Risk Management

4.7 In detail the Chair of the Board has suggested the following approach —

Strategy

Based on LGPS and the Pension Regulator’'s (TPR) guidance on the role of Pension
Boards it would seem appropriate that the Pension Board’s business focus should be
around:

a) Its own training, knowledge and understanding

b) Avoiding any conflicts of interest

c) Ensuring its own statutory compliance

d) Checking fund governance

e) Reviewing fund risks and internal systems and controls

f) Checking fund external advisors/service providers and their internal controls
g) Reviewing fund member record keeping

h) Checking fund contributions

i) Reviewing fund administration

j) Benchmarking fund performance and Value for Money (VFM)
k) Fraud prevention

I) Employer and member communications

m) Complaints and dispute resolution

n) Reporting regulatory breaches

And more specifically on the latter,

Page 170



1) Identifying any areas of financially material breaches/ areas of requlatory
non-compliance that need remediation action such as

Things that might not be done to statutory timescales by the Fund or employers or
members, for example repeated processes:

late contributions by employers

excessively late transfers in/out

issuing ABS late

late first pension payments

Things done on time (or late) but potentially done incorrectly — for example
e incorrect contributions
e incorrect transfers
e incorrect benefit calcs

Things not often done but should be and reviewed — for example
e Data checking, cleansing and validation
e Data backups and security checks
e Checking the resilience of the fund website and external e-links
e Disaster recovery planning exercises

2) ldentifying the underlying causes of fund non-compliance and helping
ensure rectification plans are being carried out to agreed timescales — for
example in relation to:

Risk management

Data quality - common/conditional

IS/IT issues

Staff error

Resource shortage

2. Just as important to its scrutiny role described above the Pension Board should also,

3) Wherever possible undertake joint training and demonstrate it has a positive
role in helping the fund deliver good-best practice relative to other LGPS
funds for example by reviewing the results of annual external benchmarking
surveys by:

e DCLG/ONS (fund statistics)

National LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (governance/performance)

The Pensions Regulator (governance/risk/training)

CIPFA (benefits administration)

WNM-State Street (investments)

Other Pension Board commissioned benchmarking surveys

and then if appropriate making recommendations to improve the fund’s performance
in specific areas.

Page 171



Fund business cycles

3. The Pension Board also needs to take account of and work with the Pension Fund’s
cyclical annual and triennial business and actions within its Business Plan. Some of
these items have been included on the draft forward look of Pension Board business
(see Appendix). Other items need prioritizing and then may need to be
included/excluded from 2015-17 work plan.

Annual cycle items:

Pension Board Governance
Pension Board Work Plan

Pension Board Annual Training Plan
Pension Board Annual Report

Pension Fund governance:

Review/input to the Governance Compliance Statement

Annual review of the Fund’s declarations of interest (all committees)
Annual review of external advisor appointments/process and internal SLAs
Annual review of fraud risk prevention and mitigation measures

Review of the fund draft annual report and audited accounts

Fund risk management

Review of fund risk register and its use by Committee and officers
Input to annual internal and external auditing plans
Consider/comment on draft internal and draft external audit reports

Reqgulatory Compliance

Pension Board commissioned external reviews

- Fund compliance with TPR Code 14

- Fund compliance with other TPR codes (e.g. data quality)
Annual review of Fund delegations and internal controls
Annual review of employers’ compliance (vis member data and
contributions)

Annual review of reported breaches and actions taken

Fund performance

Review quarterly stewardship reports by officers and by external
advisors/suppliers

Input to the fund annual external benchmarking plan (DCLG, SAB, TPR
surveys, CIPFA, WM)

Pension Board plan for externally commissioned benchmarking exercises
Review and comment on the Fund’s and Pension Board’s commissioned
benchmark reports

Annual review VFM of Fund administration strategy — costs v LGPS/Defined
Benefit average via benchmarking

Annual review VFM of Fund investment strategy - returns v costs v
LGPS/Defined Benefit average via benchmarking

Member records and communications

Annual review/input to the Fund administration strategy
Annual review of the Fund communications strategy

Page 172



Annual review of Fund website

Review the timeliness of issuance of Annual Benefit Statements (ABS) for
active/deferred

Annual review of application of Fund and employers discretions policies
Annual review of Fund complaint handling and IDRP case outcomes

2016 triennial valuation cycle items

Review the actuarial training provided, the rationale for the key assumptions
used, and the range of liability reducing options considered and used
Review/comment on the timing of finalising the Funding Strategy Statement
Review of contribution setting, employer risks, and funding covenant
implementation

Review/comment on process/timing of reviewing the Fund’s future
investment strategy

4.8 In developing the Work Plan the views of the Board are vital in informing the
nature, frequency and cyclical nature of items. The Board is therefore requested

to consider the agenda items presented today and the suggestions made in thie

report with a view to further refining the current plan.

4.9 An outline of the Work Plan is attached at Appendix 1 and will continue to be

6

worked on and re-presented at each meeting as the year progresses using the

comments and feedback of the Board, Officers and other stakeholders such as

the Pension Fund Committee to inform its contents.

RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management

guidance and there are no significant or material risks to report.

EQUALITIES

6.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been undertaken and there
are no significant issues to report.

CONSULTATION

Report and Issues have been subject to consultation with the S151 Officer and
Strategic Director of Resources.

Contact person Howard Pearce, Chair of Pension Board

Jeff Wring, Head of Audit West, 01225 477323

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Page 173




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174



G/ T abed

APPENDIX A — Draft Work Plan — Avon Pension Fund — Local Pension Board

Meeting - 30" July 5" November 18™ February 19™ May 27" July
Proposed Items: Appointment of Avon Pension Fund | Regular Updates — | Regular Items — Regular Items —
Chair & Board Committee Minutes - Conflicts of - Conflicts of - Conflicts of
Interest Interest Interest
- Training Plan - Training Plan - Training Plan
- Work Plan - Work Plan - Work Plan
- Avon Pension - Avon Pension - Avon Pension
Fund Fund Fund
Committee Committee Committee
Minutes Minutes Minutes
- LGPS - LGPS - LGPS

Developments

Developments

Developments

Terms of Reference

LGPS
Developments &
Updates

Compliance Report

Compliance Report

Compliance Report

Role of Pensions
Board

Training Plan

Breaches Policy

Communication
Plan — Annual

Annual Report of
Avon Pension Fund

Review
Code of Conduct & | Conflicts of Interest | Benchmarking Admin Authority Benchmarking
Conflicts of Interest Update Discretions — Update

Annual Review

Training Plan &
Work Plan

Regulatory
Breaches

Avon Pension Fund
Risk Register &
Internal Audit

External Audit Plan

Avon Pension Fund
Risk Register &
Internal Audit

Update Update
Avon Pension Fund | Review of Avon Pension Board Pension Fund Annual Report of
Committee Minutes | Pension Fund Budget 2016/17 Business & Service | Board

Annual Report

Plan 2016/17




9,7 abed

APPENDIX A — Draft Work Plan — Avon Pension Fund — Local Pension Board

2014/15, Financial
Statements &

Summary of Audit

Reports

Administration Statement of TOR & Pension
Strategy Investment Board Policies —

Principles — Annual
Review

Annual Review

Administration
Performance
Report

Compliance Report

Avon Pension Fund
Work Plans

Work Plan




	Agenda
	7 MINUTES: 5 NOVEMBER 2015
	9 MINUTES OF AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 11TH DECEMBER 2015 AND 3RD FEBRUARY 2016
	Minutes Public Pack, 03/02/2016 Avon Pension Fund Committee
	Exempt Minutes Public Pack, 03/02/2016 Avon Pension Fund Committee

	10 MINUTES OF AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE INVESTMENT PANEL 18TH NOVEMBER 2015
	11 LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION FUND UPDATES AND DEVELOPMENTS
	LocalPensionBoardLGPSUpdateFeb2016App1

	12 BENCHMARKING UPDATE
	LocalPensionBoardBenchmarkingFebruary2016App1

	13 COMPLIANCE REPORT
	LocalPensionBoardComplianceFebruary2016App1
	LocalPensionBoardComplianceFebruary2016App2
	LocalPensionBoardComplianceFebruary2016App3
	LocalPensionBoardComplianceFebruary2016App3a
	LocalPensionBoardComplianceFebruary2016App4
	LocalPensionBoardComplianceFebruary2016App5

	14 RISK REGISTER AND INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE
	LocalPensionBoardRiskAuditUpdateFebruary2016App1
	LocalPensionBoardRiskAuditUpdateFebruary2016App2
	LocalPensionBoardRiskAuditUpdateFebruary2016App3
	LocalPensionBoardRiskAuditUpdateFebruary2016App4

	15 BREACHES PROCEDURE
	LocalPensionBreachesPolicyFebruary2016App1
	LocalPensionBoardBreachesPolicyFebruary2016App2

	16 PENSION BOARD BUDGET
	LocalPensionBoardBudgetFebruary2016App1

	17 TRAINING UPDATE
	LocalPensionBoardTrainingFebruary2016App1
	LocalPensionBoardTrainingFebruary2016App2

	18 WORKPLAN UPDATE
	LocalPensionBoardWorkplanFebruary2016App1


